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Review Report by the Chairman
on the Overall Performance of the Board

Alhamdolillah, I am pleased to present a report on the overall performance of the Board and effectiveness of the role 
SOD\HG�E\�WKH�%RDUG�LQ�DFKLHYLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�REMHFWLYHV�

As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the Board of the Company is carried out. 
7KH�SXUSRVH�RI�WKLV�HYDOXDWLRQ�LV�WR�HQVXUH�WKH�%RDUG·V�RYHUDOO�SHUIRUPDQFH�DQG�HIIHFWLYHQHVV�LV�PHDVXUHG�DQG�EHQFKPDUNHG 
DJDLQVW�H[SHFWDWLRQV�LQ�WKH�FRQWH[W�RI�REMHFWLYHV�VHW�IRU�WKH�&RPSDQ\�

Accordingly, performance evaluation of the Board was conducted in 2022 as per mechanism approved by the Board. It 
was concluded that the overall performance of the Board, including effectiveness of the role played by the Board in 
DFKLHYLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�REMHFWLYHV��ZDV�IRXQG�WR�EH�JHQHUDOO\�VDWLVIDFWRU\�

2YHUDOO�REMHFWLYH�RI�SHUIRUPDQFH�HYDOXDWLRQ�RI�WKH�%RDUG�LV�WR�HQVXUH�VXVWDLQDEOH�JURZWK�DQG�GHYHORSPHQW�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\� 
with focus on the following areas:

(a) Creating an Effective Board
(b) Running an Effective Board
(c) Understanding the Business including Risk
(d) Performance Evaluation
(e) Ethical & Values Driven 
�I�� 6WUDWHJLF�2EMHFWLYHV
(g) Ideas for Improvement 

Lastly, I wish to acknowledge the commitment and diligence of my fellow Directors, the executive team and all the 
employees of the Company for their hard work and contribution towards the growth of the Company.

2

  RAFIQ M. HABIB
Karachi: May 05, 2023 Chairman

Habib Insurance Company Limited



3

Habib Insurance Company Limited

Eightieth Report of the Directors to the Shareholders
for the year ended December 31, 2022

The Shareholders,
The Board of Directors have pleasure in presenting the Eightieth Annual Report, alongwith the audited accounts of the 
Company for the year ended December 31, 2022.
   Rupees in ' 000
 Profit after tax for the year 2022 111,091
 Amount available after appropriations 
� ��IRU�WKH�\HDU������ �������
   130,118

 The Board of Directors now propose:
� 3D\PHQW�RI�GLYLGHQG�DW�5V��������SHU�VKDUH
   of Rs. ����HDFK�L�H�#������� ������
 Transfer to Reserves 50,000
� 8QDSSURSULDWHG�SURILW�FDUULHG�IRUZDUG� �����
   130,118

 Basic earnings per share  0.90

The Directors are pleased to recommend payout of 12.5% to shareholders as mentioned above.
By the Grace of Allah, the written gross premium grew by 32% to Rs. 3 billion. The net premium revenue was Rs. 
����ELOOLRQ�FRPSDUHG�WR�5V��������PLOOLRQ�ODVW�\HDU�GHVSLWH�D�VXEVWDQWLDO�LQFUHDVH�LQ�WKH�DPRXQW�SODFHG�LQ�reserves, 
WKH�EHQHILW�RI�ZKLFK�ZLOO�DFFUXH�LQ�VXEVHTXHQW�SHULRG��7KHUH�ZDV�DQ�XQGHUZULWLQJ�ORVV�RI�5V�������PLOOLRQ� largely 
due to certain provisions taken in the accounts resulting from the exercise of coinsurance reconciliations. These 
provisions will be reversed in the subsequent year after the settlements with coinsurance companies are made.
7KH�LQYHVWPHQW�LQFRPH�IRU�WKH�\HDU�ZDV�5V��������PLOOLRQ�DV�DJDLQVW��������PLOOLRQ��ODUJHO\�GXH�WR�FDSLWDO�ORVVHV�
realized and impairment on equity securities recorded during the year. The dividend income rose to Rs. 150.2 million. 
As a result, the profit after tax of the Company for 2022 was Rs. 111.1 million.
The Pakistan Rating Agency has assigned A++ Insurer Financial Strength (IFS) rating to the Company. This 
denotes a strong capacity to meet policy holders and contract obligations.
7KH�*'3�RI�3DNLVWDQ�GXULQJ�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDU������UHJLVWHUHG�D�JURZWK�RI��������3UHVHQW�PDFURHFRQRPLF�FKDOOHQJHV 
have led to inflationary pressure on the economy. In order to address the external account situation and to reduce 
WKH�LQIODWLRQDU\�ZDYH��WKH�6WDWH�%DQN�RI�3DNLVWDQ�GXULQJ�WKH�FRXUVH�RI�WKH�\HDU�UDLVHG�WKH�SROLF\�UDWH�E\�������WR�
�����ZKLFK�KDV�QRZ�EHHQ�LQFUHDVHG�WR������*RLQJ�IRUZDUG��ZLWK�IXUWKHU�IRUHLJQ�repayment obligations of USD 
��EQ�GXULQJ�)<�������WKH�H[WHUQDO�DFFRXQW�ZRXOG�OLNHO\�UHPDLQ�LQ�D�WLJKW�VSRW�ZKHUH the resumption of the IMF 
program would be of utmost critical importance.
The KSE 100 Index closed at 40420 as at December 31, 2022, a decrease of 9.4% over the preceding year and 
LV�SUHVHQWO\�DURXQG�������OHYHO�DV�RQ�$SULO����������

Looking ahead for the year 2023, the Company will continue its effort to strive for progress to Inshallah attain 
better underwriting results through focusing on expansion of business, without compromising on its cautious 
underwriting, alongwith sustained investment income.
As always, we are indeed thankful to all our clients and customers who have placed confidence in our Company. 
A special mention is made for all the support and guidance we have received from our Reinsurers. The Board of 
Directors would like to express their appreciation to all staff members of the Company for their dedication and 
hard work throughout the year.
We pray to Allah for Peace and Prosperity for our Nation, Ameen!
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Composition of Board 

The Board of Directors of the Company consist of nine (9) Directors (One Female and Eight Male directors). Composition 
of Board is as under;

 Independent Directors - Male Mr. Shahid Ghaffar
  Mr. Ali Fadoo
 Independent Director - Female Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash
  Mr. Rafiq M. Habib
  Mr. Abbas D. Habib
 Non-Executive Directors Mr. Mansoor G. Habib
  Mr. Muhammad Hyder Habib
  Mr. Qumail R. Habib
 Executive Director Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
The Company is fully committed to the concept of Corporate Social Responsibility and fulfills this responsibility by 
engaging in a wide range of activities which include:
• Corporate philanthropy amounting to Rs. 3.2 million by way of donations during the year for social and educational 

development and welfare of lesser privileged sections of society. 
• Providing a safe and healthy work environment, energy conservation, environmental protection, and occupational 

safety and health by restricting unnecessary lighting, implementing tobacco control law and “No Smoking Zone”.
�� %XVLQHVV�HWKLFV��UHTXLULQJ�DOO�PHPEHUV�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWK�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�́ &RGH�RI�&RQGXFWµ��DQG�WR�HQVXUH�WKH�KLJKHVW�

levels of business and personal ethics.
• Amicable staff relations, recognition of merit and performance, and on-going opportunities for learning and growth 

RI�VWDII��ERWK�RQ�WKH�MRE�DQG�WKURXJK�IRUPDO�WUDLQLQJ�SURJUDPPHV�
• Employment through a transparent procedure, without discrimination on the basis of religion, caste, language, etc.; 

and
• Contribution to the national exchequer by the Company by way of direct taxes of Rs. 29.5 million during the year; 

furthermore, an additional amount of over Rs. 493.8 million was deducted/ collected by the Company on account of 
withholding taxes, sales tax on services and federal excise duties on behalf of and disbursed to the Government of 
Pakistan.

Risk Management Framework
The Company has had a Risk Management Framework commensurate with its size nature of business. This framework 
has developed over the years and continues to be refined and improved, and the process is overseen by the Risk 
Management Committee. The Company aims to take business risks in a prudent manner, guided by a conservative 
RXWORRN��%XVLQHVV�ULVNV�DQG�PLWLJDWLRQ�IDFWRUV�DUH�GHVFULEHG�LQ�GHWDLO�LQ�1RWHV����	����RI�WKH�1RWHV�WR�WKH�&RQYHQWLRQDO�
Financial Statements and Notes 28, 29 & 31 of Window Takaful Operations Financial Statements. 
Board Committees 
Audit Committee 
The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of three members with representation of an Independent Director as 
Chairman who is also financially literate and two Non-Executive Directors. The Audit Committee met four times during 
the year. Attendance of meetings is as follows: 
   No. of Meetings
   attended
Mr. Shahid Ghaffar Chairman 3
Mr. Mansoor G. Habib Member 3
Mr. Qumail R. Habib Member 4
Ethics, Nomination, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
The Ethics, Nomination, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee comprises of four members with representation 
of an Independent Director as Chairman, two Non-Executive Directors, an Executive Director & Chief Executive.

   
   
Mr. Ali Fadoo Chairman  
Mr. Rafiq M. Habib Member 
Mr. Abbas D. Habib Member 
Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib Member 
Syed Ather Abbas Member 
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The committee met twice during the year. At the time of the meeting the Committee comprised of the following members and 
their attendance in the meetings was as follows:

   No. of Meetings
   attended
Mr. Ali Fadoo Chairman 2
Mr. Rafiq M. Habib Member 2
Mr. Abbas D. Habib Member -
Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib Member 2
Mr. Shabbir Gulamali Member 1

Investment Committee 
The Investment Committee comprises of seven members with the representation of two Independent Directors, two Non-Executive 
Directors, an Executive Director, Chief Executive & Chief Financial Officer. The Investment Committee met four times during 
the year. Attendance of meetings is as follows:

   No. of Meetings
   attended
Mr. Shahid Ghaffar Chairman –
Mr. Mansoor G. Habib Member 2
Mr. Qumail R. Habib Member 2
Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib Member 4
Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash Member 3
Mr. Shabbir Gulamali Member 3
Mr. Murtaza Hussain Member 4
Syed Ather Abbas Member 1

Leave of absence was granted to all the directors who could not attend the meeting. 

During the year Syed Ather Abbas was appointed as a member in place of Mr. Shabbir Gulamali and one meeting was 
held after his appointment which was attended by him.  

Directors Training Programme 

2XW�RI�QLQH�'LUHFWRUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��ILYH�KDYH�DOUHDG\�DWWHQGHG�WKH�'LUHFWRUV·�7UDLQLQJ�3URJUDPPH��)RXU�'LUHFWRUV�
are exempt from this requirement based on their qualification and experience.

'LUHFWRUV·�5HPXQHUDWLRQ�3ROLF\�

7KH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�KDV�DSSURYHG�D�¶3ROLF\�DQG�3URFHGXUH�IRU�)L[LQJ�5HPXQHUDWLRQ�RI�'LUHFWRUV·��ZKLFK�VWDWHV�WKDW�

� �� 1R�GLUHFWRU�VKDOO�GHWHUPLQH�RZQ�UHPXQHUDWLRQ��5HPXQHUDWLRQ�VKDOO�EH�VXEMHFW�WR�DSSURYDO�RI�WKH�%RDUG�RI�
Directors.

 • Remuneration shall be appropriate and commensurate with the level of responsibility and expertise, to attract 
and retain directors needed to govern the Company successfully and to encourage value addition. However, 
it shall not be at a level that could be perceived to compromise their independence.

The details of the remuneration of Directors are disclosed in Note 32.

Auditors

The present auditors, M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants, retire and do not offer themselves for 
reappointment. As suggested by the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors has recommended the appointment of 
*UDQW�7KRUWRQ�$QMXP�5DKPDQ�DV�DXGLWRUV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGLQJ�'HFHPEHU�����������DW�D�IHH�WR�EH�
mutually agreed.

Statement on Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework

1. The financial statements prepared by the Company, present fairly its state of affairs, the result of its operations, 
cash flows and changes in equity.
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2. The proper book of accounts of the Company has been maintained.
3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of financial statements, changes 

LI�DQ\��KDYH�EHHQ�DGHTXDWHO\�GLVFORVHG�DQG�DFFRXQWLQJ�HVWLPDWHV�DUH�EDVHG�RQ�UHDVRQDEOH�DQG�SUXGHQW�MXGJPHQW�
4. International Financial Reporting Standards and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards as applicable in Pakistan, 

have been followed in preparation of financial statements and any departure therefrom has been adequately 
disclosed.

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.
��� 7KHUH�DUH�QR�GRXEWV�XSRQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�
��� 7KHUH�KDV�EHHQ�QR�PDWHULDO�GHSDUWXUH�IURP�WKH�EHVW�SUDFWLFHV�RI�FRUSRUDWH�JRYHUQDQFH��DV�GHWDLOHG�LQ�WKH�OLVWLQJ�

regulations.
8. Key operating and financial data for the last six years is annexed.
9. Information about the taxes and levies is given in the notes to the financial statements.
10. Value of investments and balance in deposit accounts of Provident Fund as at December 31, 2022 is Rs. 103.1 million.
11. During the year four Board meetings were held and the attendance of the Directors is as follows:

 Date of Meeting Attended by

 March 31, 2022 Mr. Rafiq M. Habib
  Mr. Mansoor G. Habib
  Mr. Qumail R. Habib
  Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib
  Mr. Shahid Ghaffar
  Mr. Ali Fadoo
  Mr. Shabbir Gulamali Chief Executive
 April 28, 2022 Mr. Rafiq M. Habib
  Mr. Abbas D. Habib
  Mr. Muhammad Hyder Habib
  Mr. Qumail R. Habib
  Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib
  Mr. Ali Fadoo
  Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash
  Mr. Shabbir Gulamali Chief Executive
 August 30, 2022 Mr. Rafiq M. Habib
  Mr. Mansoor G. Habib
  Mr. Qumail R. Habib
  Mr. Shahid Ghaffar
  Mr. Ali Fadoo
  Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib
  Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash
  Mr. Shabbir Gulamali Chief Executive 
� 2FWREHU���������� 0r. Rafiq M. Habib
  Mr. Mansoor G. Habib
  Mr. Muhammad Hyder Habib 
  Mr. Qumail R. Habib
  Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib
  Mr. Ali Fadoo
  Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash
  Syed Ather Abbas Chief Executive

 Leave of absence was granted to all the directors who could not attend the meeting. 

12. The pattern of shareholding and additional information regarding pattern of shareholding is annexed.
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13. Except as stated below, no trades in the shares of the Company were carried out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, 
Company Secretary and their spouses and minor children.

 Purchased No. of Shares
 Mr. Mansoor G. Habib        23,500
 Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib       13,384
� 0V��)DUDK�)DWLPD�+DELE�ZLIH�RI�0U��0XKDPPDG�+\GHU�+DELE�� ������������������
 Mr. Qumail R. Habib          3,822
 Mr. Abbas D. Habib          8,149

 Sold              No. of Shares
 Mr. Mansoor G. Habib        3,000

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Karachi: May 05, 2023

SYED ATHER ABBAS
Chief Executive
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Six Years' Review at a Glance

  Years 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

Gross WULWWHQ�3UHPLXP��&RQWULEXWLRQ� ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� ���������

1HW�,QVXUDQFH�3UHPLXP��&RQWULEXWLRQ� ����������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� �������

,QYHVWPHQW�,QFRPH�� � ��������� ��������� �������� �������� ��������� �������

1HW�,QVXUDQFH��7DNDIXO�&ODLPV� � ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� �������

Profit after TD[� � ��������� ��������� �������� �������� ��������� ��������

3DLG�XS�&DSLWDO� � ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� �������

5HVHUYHV�	�5HWDLQHG�(DUQLQJV� � ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� ��������� �������

Total $VVHWV� � ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� ���������

Cash Dividend - %  12.5  12.5  10  10  15  15 

(Rupees in ' 000)
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Statement of Compliance with Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016
& Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 

Regulations, 2019 for the year ended December 31, 2022
 

7KLV�VWDWHPHQW� LV�EHLQJ�SUHVHQWHG� LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK� WKH�&RGH�RI�&RUSRUDWH�*RYHUQDQFH� IRU� ,QVXUHUV��������WKH�
Code) and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) for the 
purpose of establishing a framework of good governance, whereby an insurer is managed in compliance with the best 
practices of corporate governance.
The Company has applied the principles contained in the Code and the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are nine as per the following:
 • Male   8 
 • Female   1
2. The Insurer encourages representation of independent, non-executive directors and directors representing 

minority interests on its Board of Directors. At present the Board includes:

 Category Names
 Independent Directors - Male Mr. Shahid Ghaffar
  Mr. Ali Fadoo
 Independent Director - Female Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash
  Mr. Rafiq M. Habib
  Mr. Abbas D. Habib
 Non-Executive Directors Mr. Mansoor G. Habib
  Mr. Muhammad Hyder Habib
  Mr. Qumail R. Habib
 Executive Director Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib

 Syed Ather Abbas is the Chief Executive of the Company. Being the Chief Executive of the Company, he is 
deemed to be a Director.

 The independent Directors meets the criteria of independence as laid down under the Code and the Regulations.
3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 

including this Company.
4. All the resident Directors of the Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has defaulted in payment 

of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a member of a stock exchange, has been declared 
as a defaulter by a stock exchange.

5. No casual vacancy occurred on the Board during the year.
��� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�SUHSDUHG�D�&RGH�RI�&RQGXFW�DQG�KDV�HQVXUHG�WKDW�DSSURSULDWH�VWHSV�KDYH�EHHQ�WDNHQ�WR�

disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.
��� 7KH�%RDUG�KDV�GHYHORSHG�D�YLVLRQ��PLVVLRQ�VWDWHPHQW��RYHUDOO�FRUSRUDWH�VWUDWHJ\�DQG�VLJQLILFDQW�SROLFLHV�RI�WKH�

Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved 
or amended has been maintained.

8. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the 
Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provision of the Act and these regulations. The decision on 
material transactions, including appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of 
employment of the Chief Executive, other Executive Director and key officers, have been taken by the Board.

9. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a Director elected by 
the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with 
respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meetings of the Board. Written notices of Board 
meetings, along with agenda and working papers were circulated at least seven days before the meeting.

10. The Board has established a system of sound internal control, which is effectively implemented at all levels within 
the Company. The Company has adopted and complied with all the necessary aspects of internal controls given 
in the Code.



11. The Board of Directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of Directors in accordance 
with the Act and the Regulations.

12. The Board of Directors of the Company consist of nine Directors, out of which following five Directors are certified 
XQGHU�WKH�'LUHFWRU·V�7UDLQLQJ�3URJUDP�

 a. Mr. Abbas D. Habib 
 b. Mr. Qumail R. Habib 
 c. Mr. Ali Fadoo
 d. Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash
 e. Mr. Shahid Ghaffar

Further, following four of our Directors are exempt from this requirement based on their qualification and experience:

 a. Mr. Rafiq M. Habib
 b. Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib
 c. Mr. Mansoor G. Habib
 d. Mr. Muhammad Hyder Habib

13. There was no new appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during the year.

���� 7KH�'LUHFWRUV·�5HSRUW�IRU�WKLV�\HDU�KDV�EHHQ�SUHSDUHG�LQ�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RGH�DQG�IXOO\�
describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

15. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

���� 7KH�'LUHFWRUV��&KLHI�([HFXWLYH��DQG�RWKHU�H[HFXWLYHV�GR�QRW�KROG�DQ\�LQWHUHVW�LQ�WKH�VKDUHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�RWKHU�
than disclosed in the pattern of shareholding.

���� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�FRPSOLHG�ZLWK�DOO�WKH�FRUSRUDWH�DQG�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�&RGH�

18. The Board has formed the following Management Committees:

 Underwriting, Reinsurance & Co-insurance Committee:

 Name of Members Category
 Mr. Ali Fadoo Chairman 
 Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib Member
 Syed Ather Abbas  Member
 Mr. Shabbir Gulamali  Member
 Mr. Fawwad A. Razzak Member
 Mr. Farrukh Khan Member
 Mr. Tariq Awan Secretary

 Claims Settlement Committee:

 Name of Members Category
 Mr. Mansoor G. Habib Chairman
 Syed Ather Abbas Member
 Mr. Murtaza Hussain Member
 Mr. Murtuza Barristor Secretary

 Risk Management & Compliance Committee:

 Name of Members Category
 Mr. Muhammad Hyder Habib Chairman
 Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib Member
 Mr. Shabbir Gulamali Member
 Syed Ather Abbas Member
 Mr. Murtaza Hussain Member
 Mr. Farrukh Khan  Secretary
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19. The Board has formed the following Board Committees:

 Investment Committee:

 Name of Members Category
 Mr. Shahid Ghaffar Chairman – Independent Director 
 Mr. Mansoor G. Habib Member – Non-Executive Director
 Mr. Qumail R. Habib Member – Non-Executive Director
 Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib Member – Executive Director
 Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash Member – Independent Director
 Syed Ather Abbas Member – Chief Executive
 Mr. Murtaza Hussain Member – Chief Financial Officer

 Ethics, Nomination, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee:

 Name of Members Category
 Mr. Ali Fadoo Chairman – Independent Director
 Mr. Rafiq M. Habib Member – Non-Executive Director
 Mr. Abbas D. Habib Member – Non-Executive Director
 Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib Member – Executive Director
 Syed Ather Abbas  Member – Chief Executive

20. The Board has formed an Audit committee. It comprises of three members of whom one is an Independent 
Director, two Non-Executive Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director. The composition 
of the Audit Committee is as follows:

 Name of Members Category
 Mr. Shahid Ghaffar Chairman – Independent Director
 Mr. Mansoor G. Habib Member – Non-Executive Director
 Mr. Qumail R. Habib Member – Non-Executive Director

21. The meetings of the Committees except Ethics Nomination, Human Resource & Remuneration Committee, were 
held at least once every quarter. The quarterly Meetings of Audit Committee was held prior to approval of interim 
and final results of the Company. Two meetings of Ethics Nomination, Human Resource & Remuneration 
Committee were held during the year.

22. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented, and advised to the committee 
for compliance.

23. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function which is staffed with the resources who are suitably 
qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures of the Company 
and are involved in the internal audit function on a regular basis.

24. The Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer and the Head of Internal 
Audit possess such qualification and experience as required under the Code. Moreover, the persons heading 
the Underwriting, Claim, Reinsurance, Risk Management and Grievance Departments possess qualification and 
experience of direct relevance to their respective functions, as required under section 12 of the Insurance 
Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No. XXXIX of 2000).

 Name of the Person Designation
 Syed Ather Abbas Chief Executive
 Mr. Murtaza Hussain Chief Financial Officer and Head of Grievance
 Mr. Muhammad Maaz Akbar Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
 Syed Fakhar Imam Zaidi Head of Internal Audit
 Mr. Tariq Awan Head of Reinsurance 
 Mr. Fawwad A. Razzak Head of Underwriting 
 Mr. Farrukh Khan Head of Risk Management
 Mr. Murtuza Barristor Head of Claims
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25. The statutory auditors of the Company have been appointed from the panel of auditors approved by the Commission 
in term of Section 48 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 (Ordinance No. XXXIX of 2000). The statutory auditors 
have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control review program of the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and 
minor children do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with 
International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close 
relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer 
Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary or Directors of the Company.

���� 7KH�VWDWXWRU\�DXGLWRUV�RU�WKH�SHUVRQV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKHP�KDYH�QRW�EHHQ�DSSRLQWHG�WR�SURYLGH�RWKHU�VHUYLFHV�
and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

���� 7KH�%RDUG�HQVXUHV� WKDW� WKH� ,QYHVWPHQW�3ROLF\�RI� WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�EHHQ�GUDZQ�XS� LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK� WKH�
provisions of the Code.

28. The Board ensures that the Risk Management System of the Company is in place as per the requirements of 
the Code.

29. The Company has set up a Risk Management function which carries out its tasks as covered under the Code.

30. The Board ensures that as part of the Risk Management System, the Company gets itself rated from the Pakistan 
Credit Rating Agency which is being used by its Risk Management Function and the respective Committee as 
a risk monitoring tool. The rating assigned by the said rating agency on December 09, 2022 is A++.

31. The Board has set up a Grievance Function which fully complies with the requirements of the Code.

32. The Company has not obtained any exemption from the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan in 
respect of requirements of the Code.

���� :H�FRQILUP� WKDW�DOO� UHTXLUHPHQWV�RI� UHJXODWLRQV������������������������DQG����RI� WKH�5HJXODWLRQV�KDYH�EHHQ�
complied with.

Habib Insurance Company Limited

On behalf of the Board of Directors

AUN MOHAMMAD A. HABIB
Director

SYED ATHER ABBAS
Chief Executive

Karachi: May 05, 2023
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,1'(3(1'(17�$8',725·6�5(9,(:�5(3257�

To the members of Habib Insurance Company Limited 

Review of the Statement of compliance with  the Code of Corporate Governance for Insurers, 2016 & Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Code of Corporate *RYHUQDQFH�IRU�,QVXUHU�������
and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (combined�FDOOHG�¶WKH�&RGH·��SUHSDUHG�
by the Board of Directors of Habib Insurance Company Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 31 December 
2022 in accordance with the requirements of the Code.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to 
UHYLHZ�ZKHWKHU�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&RPSOLDQFH�UHIOHFWV�WKH�VWDWXV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�SURYLVLRQV of 
the Code and report if it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review 
LV�OLPLWHG�SULPDULO\�WR�LQTXLULHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�SHUVRQQHO�DQG�UHYLHZ�RI�YDULRXV�GRFXPHQWV�SUHSDUHG�E\�WKH�&RPSDQ\ 
to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and 
internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to 
FRQVLGHU�ZKHWKHU�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV·�VWDWHPHQW�RQ�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�FRYHUV�DOO�ULVNV�DQG�FRQWUROV�RU�WR�IRUP�DQ�
RSLQLRQ�RQ�WKH�HIIHFWLYHQHVV�RI�VXFK�LQWHUQDO�FRQWUROV��WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�FRUSRUDWH�JRYHUQDQFH�SURFHGXUHV�DQG�ULVNV�

The Code require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, 
place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required 
and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by 
the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance 
GRHV�QRW�DSSURSULDWHO\�UHIOHFW�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�FRPSOLDQFH��LQ�DOO�PDWHULDO�UHVSHFWV��ZLWK�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQWV�FRQWDLQHG�
in the Code as applicable to the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Date: May 08, 2023 
Karachi KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.   
 Chartered Accountants

UDIN: CR202210201qJQSHMaE5
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,1'(3(1'(17�$8',725·6�5(3257�

To the members of Habib Insurance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Habib Insurance Company Limited (“the  Company”), which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022, the statement of comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial 
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state 
that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were 
necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of 
financial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of 
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof, conform with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 
������;,;�RI��������LQ�WKH�PDQQHU�VR�UHTXLUHG�DQG�UHVSHFWLYHO\�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�&RPSDQ\·V�
affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of the total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for 
the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV� XQGHU� WKRVH� VWDQGDUGV�DUH� IXUWKHU� GHVFULEHG� LQ� WKH�$XGLWRU·V�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV� IRU� WKH�$XGLW� RI� WKH�
Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the Company  in accordance with the International 
(WKLFV�6WDQGDUGV�%RDUG�IRU�$FFRXQWDQWV·�&RGH�RI�(WKLFV�IRU�3URIHVVLRQDO�$FFRXQWDQWV�DV�DGRSWHG�E\�WKH�,QVWLWXWH�RI�
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the Code.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

.H\�DXGLW�PDWWHUV�DUH�WKRVH�PDWWHUV�WKDW���LQ�RXU�SURIHVVLRQDO�MXGJPHQW��ZHUH�RI�PRVW�VLJQLILFDQFH�LQ�RXU�DXGLW�RI�WKH�
financial statements for the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key audit matter(s)S.No.

1

How the matters were addressed in our audit

Our audit procedures in respect of this matter included 
the following:

9DOXDWLRQ�RI�,QFXUUHG�EXW�QRW�UHSRUWHG��,%15��
claims reserves.

(Refer notes 3.20.2 and 23 of the annexed 
financial statements)

As at December 31, 2022, provision for IBNR 
amounted to Rs. 81.014 million.

The provision for IBNR claims is calculated by 
the Company as per the requirement of 
Securities Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
XQGHU�FLUFXODU�1R����RI������� IRU�HDFK�FODVV�RI�
business under the “Chain Ladder Method “or 
any other alternate method as allowed under the 
provisions of the Guidelines.

The calculation of provision for IBNR claims 
LQYROYH� HVWLPDWLRQ� DQG� MXGJHPHQW�� %HFDXVH� RI�
the significance of the impact of these 
MXGJHPHQWV�HVWLPDWLRQV��ZH�FRQVLGHUHG�WKH�DUHD�
of IBNR as a key audit matter.

• Evaluated the design and implementation of the 
relevant controls over the measurement and 
calculation of IBNR reserves and. Also, 
evaluated the appropriateness of methodologies 
and assumptions used for the purpose.

• Evaluated the completeness, accuracy and 
reliability of the underlying data used by the 
management to support the actuarial valuation.

• Involved an independent actuarial expert to test 
the working of IBNR and assess the 
reasonableness of the assumptions used therein.

• Assessed whether the financial statements 
disclosures in relation to the valuation of IBNR 
reserves are compliant with the relevant 
accounting and reporting standards applicable in 
Pakistan.

Following are the key audit matters:
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,QIRUPDWLRQ�2WKHU�WKDQ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�DQG�$XGLWRU·V�5HSRUW�7KHUHRQ

Management is responsible for the Other Information. The Other Information comprises the information included in 
WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�$QQXDO�5HSRUW�EXW�GRHV�QRW�LQFOXGH�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�RXU�DXGLWRU·V�UHSRUW�WKHUHRQ�

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in 
doing so, consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 
DQG��&RPSDQLHV�$FW��������;,;�RI��������DQG�IRU�VXFK�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�DV�PDQDJHPHQW�GHWHUPLQHV�LV�QHFHVVDU\�WR�
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

,Q�SUHSDULQJ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��PDQDJHPHQW�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�DVVHVVLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

%RDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�RYHUVHHLQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�SURFHVV�

$XGLWRU·V�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�$XGLW�RI�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

2XU�REMHFWLYHV�DUH�WR�REWDLQ�UHDVRQDEOH�DVVXUDQFH�DERXW�ZKHWKHU�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DV�D�ZKROH�DUH�IUHH�IURP�
PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW��ZKHWKHU�GXH� WR� IUDXG�RU�HUURU��DQG� WR� LVVXH�DQ�DXGLWRU·V� UHSRUW� WKDW� LQFOXGHV�RXU�RSLQLRQ��
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

$V�SDUW�RI�DQ�DXGLW��LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�,6$V�DV�DSSOLFDEOH�LQ�3DNLVWDQ��ZH�H[HUFLVH�SURIHVVLRQDO�MXGJPHQW�DQG�PDLQWDLQ 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from 
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
&RPSDQ\·V�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.
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�� &RQFOXGH�RQ�WKH�DSSURSULDWHQHVV�RI�PDQDJHPHQW·V�XVH�RI�WKH�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�DQG��EDVHG�
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may 
FDVW�VLJQLILFDQW�GRXEW�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ��,I�ZH�FRQFOXGH�WKDW�D�PDWHULDO�
XQFHUWDLQW\�H[LVWV��ZH�DUH�UHTXLUHG� WR�GUDZ�DWWHQWLRQ� LQ�RXU�DXGLWRU·V� UHSRUW� WR� WKH�UHODWHG�GLVFORVXUHV� LQ� WKH�
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
RQ�WKH�DXGLW�HYLGHQFH�REWDLQHG�XS�WR�WKH�GDWH�RI�RXU�DXGLWRU·V�UHSRUW��+RZHYHU��IXWXUH�HYHQWV�RU�FRQGLWLRQV�PD\�
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be 
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe 
WKHVH�PDWWHUV�LQ�RXU�DXGLWRU·V�UHSRUW�XQOHVV�ODZ�RU�UHJXODWLRQ�SUHFOXGHV�SXEOLF�GLVFORVXUH�DERXW�WKH�PDWWHU�RU�ZKHQ��
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 
communication.
 
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and 
WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW��������;,;�RI�������

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity 
and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the 
,QVXUDQFH�2UGLQDQFH��������WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW��������;;,�RI��������DQG�DUH�LQ�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�WKH�ERRNV�RI�
account;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
&RPSDQ\·V�EXVLQHVV��DQG

d) zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980), was deducted by the 
&RPSDQ\�DQG�GHSRVLWHG�LQ�WKH�&HQWUDO�=DNDW�)XQG�HVWDEOLVKHG�XQGHU�VHFWLRQ���RI�WKDW�2UGLQDQFH�

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Amyn Pirani.

 KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
Date: May 08, 2023  Chartered Accountants
Karachi

8',1��$5���������+FL*M9YN�



    2022 2021
  Note (Rupees in ' 000)
Assets
3URSHUW\�DQG�HTXLSPHQW� �� �������� ������
,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV� �� ����� ���
Investments
��(TXLW\�VHFXULWLHV� �� ��������� ���������
��*RYHUQPHQW�VHFXULWLHV� �� ��������� �������
��7HUP�ILQDQFH�FHUWLILFDWHV� �� ��������� ²00
/RDQV��DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV� ��� ��������� �������
,QVXUDQFH��UHLQVXUDQFH�UHFHLYDEOHV� ��� ��������� ���������
5HLQVXUDQFH�UHFRYHULHV�DJDLQVW�RXWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV� ��� ��������� �������
6DOYDJH�UHFRYHULHV�DFFUXHG� � �������� ������
'HIHUUHG�FRPPLVVLRQ�H[SHQVH� ��� ��������� �������
3UHSD\PHQWV� ��� ��������� �������
7D[DWLRQ���SURYLVLRQ�OHVV�SD\PHQW� � ������� �����
&DVK�DQG�EDQN�� ��� ��������� ������
� � � � � ����������� ���������
7RWDO�$VVHWV�RI�:LQGRZ�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � ��������� ������
Total Assets � � ����������� ���������

Equities and Liabilities
Capital and reserves attributable
to Company's equity holders
2UGLQDU\�VKDUH�FDSLWDO� ��� ��������� �������
5HVHUYHV� � ��� ��������� �������
8QDSSURSULDWHG�SURILWV� � ��������� �������
Total Equity�� � ����������� ���������

Liabilities
Underwriting provisions
��2XWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV�LQFOXGLQJ�,%15� ��� ��������� �������
��8QHDUQHG�SUHPLXP�UHVHUYHV� ��� ����������� ���������
��3UHPLXP�GHILFLHQF\�UHVHUYHV� � ������� �����
��8QHDUQHG�UHLQVXUDQFH�FRPPLVVLRQ� ��� ��������� �������
Retirement benefit obligations 12 130,311  130,859
'HIHUUHG�WD[DWLRQ� ��� �������� ������
/HDVH�OLDELOLW\�DJDLQVW�ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHWV� ��� �������� ������
3UHPLXP�UHFHLYHG�LQ�DGYDQFH� � �������� ������
,QVXUDQFH��UHLQVXUDQFH�SD\DEOHV� ��� ��������� �������
2WKHU�FUHGLWRUV�DQG�DFFUXDOV� ��� ��������� �������
� � � � � ����������� ���������
7RWDO�/LDELOLWLHV�RI�:LQGRZ�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � �������� ������
Total Liabilities� � ����������� ���������
Total Equity and Liabilities� � ����������� ���������

Contingencies and commitments 21

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Financial Position
as at December 31, 2022

SYED ATHER ABBAS
Chief Executive

AUN MOHAMMAD A. HABIB
Director

MURTAZA HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer

MANSOOR G. HABIB
Director

RAFIQ M. HABIB
Chairman

Habib Insurance Company Limited



SYED ATHER ABBAS
Chief Executive

AUN MOHAMMAD A. HABIB
Director

MURTAZA HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer

MANSOOR G. HABIB
Director

RAFIQ M. HABIB
Chairman

   2022  2021
  Note  (Rupees in ' 000)

Net insurance premium 22 ���������  �������

Net Insurance claims 23 ����������  ����������
Premium deficiency  ����  ������
Net commission and other acquisition cost 25 85,289  ������
Insurance claims and acquisition expense  (541,881 ) ���������� 

0DQDJHPHQW�H[SHQVHV� ��� ���������� (498,442 )
Underwriting results  ��������� ���������

,QYHVWPHQW�LQFRPH� ��� �������  141,031
Other income 28 39,259  ������
Other expenses 29 (11,314 ) ���������
Results of operating activities   131,859  �������

Finance cost  30 (3,282 ) (10,924 )
Profit/ (loss) before tax from Window Takaful Operations - 
� 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG  �������  ���������
Profit for the year before tax  �������  �������

Income tax expense 31 (30,105 ) ���������
Profit for the year  111,091  �������

Other comprehensive income:

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss account
Unrealised loss on available-for-sale investments during the year  (188,243 ) ����������

Less: Net (loss) / gain transferred to profit and loss on disposal /
    redemption / impairment of investment  �������   ���������
        ���������� (135,028 )
Related tax impact  48,244  39,158
        (128,093 ) ���������
Other comprehensive loss from Window Takaful Operations - 
� 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG���QHW�RI�WD[� � –00  �����
Items not to be reclassified to profit and loss account in the subsequent year

Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan 12.5  �����  �����
Related tax impact  ������ (1,880 )
        �����  �����
Other comprehensive Loss  (120,441 ) ���������

Total comprehensive income for the year  (9,350 ) ������

         (Rupees)

Earning per share - rupee 32 0.90  ����

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended December 31, 2022
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SYED ATHER ABBAS
Chief Executive

AUN MOHAMMAD A. HABIB
Director

MURTAZA HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer

MANSOOR G. HABIB
Director

RAFIQ M. HABIB
Chairman

Statement of Changes in Share Holders Equity
for the year ended December 31, 2022

   Attributable to equity holders of the Company   
                                                               Revenue Reserves
   Share Capital reserves General Available-for- Unappropriated Total
   capital Reserve for reserves sale reserve profit Equity
    exceptional    
    losses
� � � � �������������������������5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
     
Balance as at January 01, 2021� � � �������  9,122  255,000  ��������� 91,890  1,300,248

Total comprehensive income
   for the year ended December 31, 2021

Profit after tax   –00  –00  –00  –00  ��������� �������
Other comprehensive income - net of tax   –00  –00  –00  ���������� ������� ���������
Other comprehensive income for the year
   from Window Takaful Operations   –00  –00  –00  ������ ²00� � ����
Total comprehensive income for the year   –00  –00  –00  ���������� ��������� ������

Transaction with owner directly
   recorded with equity

Final dividend for the year ended
   December 31, 2020 of Rs. 0.5 per share   –00  –00  –00  –00  ���������� ���������

Balance as at December 31, 2021� � � �������� � ������ � ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������

Balance as at January 01, 2022� � � �������� � ������ � ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������

Total comprehensive income
   for the year ended December 31, 2022

Profit after tax   –00  –00  –00  –00  111,091  111,091
Other comprehensive income - net of tax   –00  –00  –00  ����������� ������� ����������
Total comprehensive income for the year   –00  –00  –00  ����������� ��������� (9,350 )

Transaction with owner directly
   recorded with equity

Final dividend for the year ended
� 'HFHPEHU����������RI�5V��������SHU�VKDUH� � � ²00  –00  –00  –00  ���������� ���������
Transfer to general reserve   –00  –00  50,000  –00  (50,000 ) –00

Balance as at December 31, 2022� � � �������� � ������ � ��������� ��������� ��������� ���������

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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RAFIQ M. HABIB
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   2022  2021
    (Rupees in ' 000)
 Operating cash flow
(a) Underwriting activities
� ,QVXUDQFH�SUHPLXP�UHFHLYHG� � ���������� � ����������
� 5HLQVXUDQFH�SUHPLXP�SDLG� � ������������� �������������
� &ODLPV�SDLG� � �������������� ������������
� 5HLQVXUDQFH�DQG�RWKHU�UHFRYHULHV�UHFHLYHG� � �������� � �������
� &RPPLVVLRQ�SDLG� � ������������ �����������
� &RPPLVVLRQ�UHFHLYHG� � �������� � �������
� 1HW�FDVK�IORZV�IURP�XQGHUZULWLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV� � ���������� � �������

(b) Other operating activities
� ,QFRPH�WD[�SDLG� � ���������� ���������
� 2WKHU�RSHUDWLQJ�SD\PHQWV� � ����������� �����������
 Other operating receipts  5,203   4,441
 Loans advanced  (5,815 )  (11,834 )
� /RDQ�UHSD\PHQW�UHFHLYHG� � ������� � ������
 Net cash flows from other operating activities� � ����������� �����������
 Total cash flows from all operating activities� � �������� � ����������
 Investment activities
� 3URILW��UHWXUQ�UHFHLYHG� � ������� � ������
� 'LYLGHQG�UHFHLYHG� � �������� � ������
� 3D\PHQW�IRU�LQYHVWPHQWV� � ������������� ������������
� 3URFHHGV�IURP�LQYHVWPHQWV� � ���������� � �������
� )L[HG�FDSLWDO�H[SHQGLWXUH� � ��������� ����������
� 3URFHHGV�IURP�VDOH�RI�SURSHUW\�DQG�HTXLSPHQW� � ������ � ��������
 Total cash flows from investing activities� � ����������� ������
 Financing activities
� 3D\PHQWV�DJDLQVW�OHDVHG�OLDELOLWLHV� � ��������� ����������
� 'LYLGHQGV�SDLG� � ���������� ����������

 Total cash flows from financing activities� � ���������� �����������
 Net cash flows from all activities� � �������� � ���������
� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�EHJLQQLQJ�RI�\HDU� � ������� � �������
 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year� � �������� � ������
 Reconciliation to profit and loss account
� 2SHUDWLQJ�FDVK�IORZV� � �������� � ����������
� 'HSUHFLDWLRQ�DQG�DPRUWLVDWLRQ�H[SHQVH� � ���������� ����������
 Financial charges expense  (3,282 ) (10,924 )
� 3URILW�RQ�GLVSRVDO�RI�SURSHUW\�DQG�HTXLSPHQW� � ������ � �������
� 3URILW��UHWXUQ�UHFHLYHG� � ������� � ������
� &DSLWDO�JDLQ� � ���������� ������
� 'LYLGHQGV�LQFRPH� � �������� � ������
� 3URYLVLRQ�IRU�JUDWXLW\� � ���������� ����������
� 3URYLVLRQ�IRU�LPSDLUPHQW� � ���������� ��������
� *UDWXLW\�SDLG� � ������� � �����
� ,QFRPH�WD[�SDLG� � ������� � �������
� 3URYLVLRQ�RI�WD[DWLRQ� � ���������� ���������
 (Decrease)/ Increase in assets other than cash  (81,929 ) 38,010
� 'HFUHDVH�LQ�OLDELOLWLHV�RWKHU�WKDQ�ERUURZLQJV� � ����������� ���������
� 3URILW�DIWHU�WD[�IURP�FRQYHQWLRQDO�LQVXUDQFH�RSHUDWLRQV� � ������� � �������

 3URILW����/RVV��IURP�:LQGRZ�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � ������� � ���������
 Profit after taxation� � �������� � �������

The annexed notes from 1 to 43 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to and Forming Part of the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 Habib Insurance Company Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a Public Limited Company in the year 
�����XQGHU�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW��������QRZ�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW����������7KH�UHJLVWHUHG�RIILFH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�
is situated at Habib Square, M.A. Jinnah Road, Karachi and the shares of the Company are quoted on the 
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Company is engaged in general insurance business comprising of Fire 
and property, Marine and transport, Motor, Group hospitalization and other classes.

 The Company, as an Operator, was allowed to work as Window Takaful Operator on  July 18, 2018 by Securities 
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) under SECP Takaful Rules, 2012 to carry on General Window 
Takaful Operations (WTO) in Pakistan. The registered office of the Operator is situated at Habib Square, M.A. 
Jinnah Road, Karachi.

1.2 The Company operates through the following locations in Pakistan;

 Locations Address
 
� +HDG�2IILFH� 6WDWH�/LIH�%XLOGLQJ�1R�����+DELE�6TXDUH��0�$��-LQQDK�5RDG��.DUDFKL�

� .DUDFKL�%UDQFK� +HDG�2IILFH��6WDWH�/LIH�%XLOGLQJ�1R���$�+DELE�6TXDUH��0�$��-LQQDK�5RDG��.DUDFKL�

� 5DZDOSLQGL�%UDQFK� �VW�)ORRU��0DMHHG�3OD]D��%DQN�5RDG��5DZDOSLQGL�&DQWW�

� 'HUD�*KD]L�.KDQ�%UDQFK� %ORFN�1R������-DPSXU�5RDG��'HUD�*KD]L�.KDQ�

� )DLVDODEDG�%UDQFK� )DWLPD�7RZHU���QG�)ORRU��.RKLQRRU�3OD]D��)DLVDODEDG��3�������:HVW�&DQDO�5RDG��
DGMDFHQW�WR�7R\RWD�)DLVDODEDG�0RWRUV�	�EHKLQG�+%/�&DQDO�5RDG�%UDQFK��)DLVDODEDG�

 Multan Branch Fiesta Gardens, OPP Income, Tax Office, L.M.Q. Road, Multan.

 Lahore Branches Room No. 01, 3rd Floor, Leeds Centre, Main Boulevard, Gulberg III, Lahore.
  43, Ground Floor, Al-Noor Building, Bank Square Lahore.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

2.1 Statement of compliance

2.1.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable 
in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
LVVXHG�E\�WKH�,QWHUQDWLRQDO�$FFRXQWLQJ�6WDQGDUGV�%RDUG��,$6%��DV�DUH�QRWLILHG�XQGHU�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW��������
SURYLVLRQV�RI�DQG�GLUHFWLYHV�LVVXHG�XQGHU�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW��������WKH�,QVXUDQFH�2UGLQDQFH��������,QVXUDQFH�
5XOHV�������,QVXUDQFH�$FFRXQWLQJ�5HJXODWLRQV��������7DNDIXO�5XOHV�������DQG�WKH�*HQHUDO�7DNDIXO�$FFRXQWLQJ�
Regulations, 2019.

� ,Q�FDVH�UHTXLUHPHQW�GLIIHU��WKH�SURYLVLRQV�RU�GLUHFWLYHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW��������WKH�,QVXUDQFH�2UGLQDQFH��
������WKH�,QVXUDQFH�5XOHV��������WKH�,QVXUDQFH�$FFRXQWLQJ�5HJXODWLRQV��7DNDIXO�5XOHV�������DQG�WKH�*HQHUDO�
Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019, shall prevail.

2.1.2 Total assets, liabilities and profit and loss of the Operator's Fund of the General Takaful Operations of the 
Company have been presented as a single line item in the financial statements in accordance with the requirements 
of General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019.

 Further, a separate set of financial statements of the General Takaful operations has been annexed to these 
financial statements as per the requirements of the Takaful Rules, 2012.
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2.2 Basis of measurement
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for available for sale 

investments that are measured at fair values.
2.3 Functional and presentation currency
� 7KHVH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�3DN�5XSHHV�ZKLFK�LV�DOVR�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�IXQFWLRQDO�FXUUHQF\��$OO�

financial information presented in Pak Rupees has been rounded to nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise 
stated.

2.4 Standards, Interpretations and amendments
2.4.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are 

effective in the current year
 There are certain new and standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the Company's 

accounting periods beginning or after January 01, 2022 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have 
any significant effect on the Company and therefore have not been detailed in these financial statements.

2.4.2 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not 
yet effective

 The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies 
$FW�������DQG�WKH�DPHQGPHQWV�DQG�LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV�WKHUHWR�ZLOO�EH�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DFFRXQWLQJ�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�RQ�
or after 1 January 2023:

 - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 in January 2020) apply retrospectively 
for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 (as deferred vide amendments to IAS 1 in October 
2022) with earlier application permitted. These amendments in the standards have been added to further 
FODULI\�ZKHQ�D�OLDELOLW\�LV�FODVVLILHG�DV�FXUUHQW��&RQYHUWLEOH�GHEW�PD\�QHHG�WR�EH�UHFODVVLILHG�DV�¶FXUUHQW·��7KH�
standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of 
WKH�HQWLW\·V�ULJKW�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�WR�GHIHU�WKH�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�OLDELOLW\�IRU�DW�OHDVW�WZHOYH�PRQWKV�
after the reporting period. An entity's expectation and discretion at the reporting date to refinance or to 
reschedule payments on a long-term basis are no longer relevant for the classification of a liability as current 
or non-current. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8. Application 
RI�WKLV�DPHQGPHQW�LV�QRW�H[SHFWHG�WR�KDYH�DQ\�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

 - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (amendment to IAS 1 in October 2022) aims to improve the information 
DQ�HQWLW\�SURYLGHV�ZKHQ� LWV� ULJKW� WR�GHIHU�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�D� OLDELOLW\� IRU�DW� OHDVW� WZHOYH�PRQWKV� LV�VXEMHFW� WR�
compliance with conditions. The amendment is also intended to address concerns about classifying such a 
liability as current or non-current. Only covenants with which a company must comply on or before the reporting 
date affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. Covenants with which the company must 
FRPSO\�DIWHU� WKH� UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH� �L�H�� IXWXUH�FRYHQDQWV��GR�QRW�DIIHFW�D� OLDELOLW\·V�FODVVLILFDWLRQ�DW� WKDW�GDWH��
+RZHYHU��ZKHQ�QRQ�FXUUHQW�OLDELOLWLHV�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�IXWXUH�FRYHQDQWV��FRPSDQLHV�ZLOO�QRZ�QHHG�WR�GLVFORVH�
information to help users understand the risk that those liabilities could become repayable within 12 months 
after the reporting date. The amendments apply retrospectively for annual reporting periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2024, with earlier application permitted. These amendments also specify the transition 
requirements for companies that may have early-adopted the previously issued but not yet effective 2020 
amendments to IAS 1 (as referred above). Application of this amendment is not expected to have any impact 
RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) – the Board has 
issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and to help companies 
provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

 - requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies.
 - clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are themselves 

immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and
 - clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are 

WKHPVHOYHV�PDWHULDO�WR�D�FRPSDQ\·V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
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 The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples on the 
application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

 - Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) introduce a new definition for accounting estimates 
FODULI\LQJ�WKDW�WKH\�DUH�PRQHWDU\�DPRXQWV�LQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�WKDW�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�PHDVXUHPHQW�XQFHUWDLQW\� 
The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by 
specifying�WKDW�DQ�HQWLW\�GHYHORSV�DQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�HVWLPDWH�WR�DFKLHYH�WKH�REMHFWLYH�VHW�RXW�E\�DQ�DFFRXQWLQJ�
policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with earlier application 
permitted, and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies 
occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company applies the 
amendments. $SSOLFDWLRQ�RI�WKLV�DPHQGPHQW�LV�QRW�H[SHFWHG�WR�KDYH�DQ\�PDWHULDO�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�
financial statements, based on the balances currently held.

 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12) 
narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply to transactions that give 
rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will need to recognize a deferred 
tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and a 
decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset 
and liabilities will need to be recognized from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, 
ZLWK�DQ\�FXPXODWLYH�HIIHFW�UHFRJQL]HG�DV�DQ�DGMXVWPHQW�WR�UHWDLQHG�HDUQLQJV�RU�RWKHU�FRPSRQHQWV�RI�HTXLW\�
at that date. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2023 with earlier application permitted. Application of this amendment is not expected to have any material 
LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV� based on the balances currently held.

� �� /HDVH�/LDELOLW\� LQ�D�6DOH�DQG�/HDVHEDFN��DPHQGPHQW�WR�,)56����LQ�6HSWHPEHU�������DGGV�VXEVHTXHQW�
measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements to be accounted 
for as a sale. The amendment confirms that on initial recognition, the seller-lessee includes variable lease 
payments when it measures a lease liability arising from a sale-and-leaseback transaction. After initial recognition, 
the seller-lessee applies the general requirements for subsequent accounting of the lease liability such that 
it recognizes no gain or loss relating to the right of use it retains. A seller-lessee may adopt different approaches 
that satisfy the new requirements on subsequent measurement. The amendments are effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 with earlier application permitted. Under IAS 8, a 
seller-lessee will need to apply the amendments retrospectively to sale-and-leaseback transactions entered 
LQWR�RU�DIWHU�WKH�GDWH�RI�LQLWLDO�DSSOLFDWLRQ�RI�,)56����DQG�ZLOO�QHHG�WR�LGHQWLI\�DQG�UH�H[DPLQH�VDOH�DQG�OHDVHEDFN 
WUDQVDFWLRQV�HQWHUHG�LQWR�VLQFH�LPSOHPHQWDWLRQ�RI�,)56����LQ�������DQG�SRWHQWLDOO\�UHVWDWH�WKRVH�WKDW�LQFOXGHG 
variable lease payments. If an entity (a seller-lessee) applies the amendments arising from Lease Liability 
in a Sale and Leaseback for an earlier period, the entity shall disclose that fact. Application of this amendment 
LV�QRW�H[SHFWHG�WR�KDYH�DQ\�PDWHULDO�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�EDODQFHV�
currently held.

 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to IFRS 
10 and IAS 28) amend accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assets.  The amendments also 
introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain 
retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred 
indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

� �� ,)56������
,QVXUDQFH�FRQWUDFWV
�KDV�EHHQ�QRWLILHG�E\�WKH�,$6%�WR�EH�HIIHFWLYH�IRU�DQQXDO�SHULRGV�EHJLQQLQJ�
on or after January 1, 2023, however it is yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan. In addition, the Company has opted for the temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 9 
as allowed by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) for entities whose activities are 
predominantly connected with insurance. Further details relating to the temporary exemption from the 
application of IFRS 9 are given in the notes below.

  The management is in the process of assessing the impacts of these standards and amendments on the 
financial statements of the Company.

 - Temporary Exemption from the Application of IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments)
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  As an insurance company, the management has opted for the temporary exemption from the application of 
IFRS 9 as allowed by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) for entities whose activities are 
predominantly connected with insurance as the percentage of the total carrying amount of its liabilities 
connected with insurance relative to the total carrying amount of all its liabilities is greater than 90 percent 
and the Company doesn't engage in significant activities unconnected with insurance based on historical 
available information. Additional disclosures, as required by IASB, for being eligible to apply the temporary 
exemption from the application of IFRS 9 are as follows:
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Financial assets with contractual cash flows that meet the SPPI criteria   As at December 31,
    2022 2021
   (Rupees in ' 000)

Debt securities - Available for sale

2SHQLQJ�IDLU�YDOXH� � ��������� �������
$GGLWLRQV����GLVSRVDOV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�� � ��������� ����������
$GMXVWPHQW�LQ�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH� � ��������� ������

Closing fair value  815,841  183,188

Financial assets with contractual cash flows that do not meet the SPPI criteria

Equity securities - Available for sale

2SHQLQJ�IDLU�YDOXH� � ����������� �������
'LVSRVDOV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU���DGGLWLRQV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU� � ����������� �������
,PSDLUPHQW� � � ���������� ������
$GMXVWPHQW�LQ�WKH�IDLU�YDOXH� � ����������� �������

Closing fair value  821,124  1,210,429

Other details of financial assets which pass the SPPI test are as follows:

Gross carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments that pass the SPPI test:

      December 31, 2022
   Rating AAA AA+ AA- Others* Sovereign Unrated /
        Bonds Unavailable
� � � � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Cash and bank  303,212 50 –00 –00 –00 –00
 Investment in debt securities
    available for sale –00 –00� �������� ²00 �������� ²00
 Insurance / reinsurance receivable –00 –00 –00 –00 –00 �������
 Loans, deposits and other receivables  –00 –00 –00 –00 –00 �������
 Reinsurance recoveries against
   outstanding claims  –00� �������� ²00� �������� ²00 ������
 Salvage recoveries accrued   –00 –00 –00 –00 –00 38,933
� � � � �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� ���������

   Rating A AA++ AA++ A+ AA Total
 
 *Reinsurance recoveries
� ���DJDLQVW�RXWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV� �������� ������� ������ ������ �� �������
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
 The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent to all 

the years presented. Details of these accounting policies are as follows:
3.1 Property and Equipment
3.1.1 Tangible assets - owned
 Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Depreciation 

on tangible fixed assets except vehicles is charged to income applying the straight line method at the rates 
specified in note 5.1 to the financial statements after taking into account residual value, if any. The useful lives, 
UHVLGXDO� YDOXHV�DQG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ�PHWKRG�DUH� UHYLHZHG�DQG�DGMXVWHG� LI� DSSURSULDWH�� DW� HDFK� UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH��
Depreciation on additions is charged for the full month in which as asset is put to use and on deletions up to the 
month immediately preceding the deletion.

 The carrying value of tangible fixed assets is reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indications exist and where the carrying 
values exceeds the estimated recoverable amounts the assets are written down to their recoverable amounts.

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any impairment in value. It includes advances to the suppliers for 
the tangible assets.

 0DLQWHQDQFH�DQG�QRUPDO�UHSDLUV�DUH�FKDUJHG�WR�LQFRPH�DV�DQG�ZKHQ�LQFXUUHG��0DMRU�UHQHZDOV�DQG�LPSURYHPHQWV 
are capitalized and assets so replaced, if any, are retired. Gain or loss on disposal of fixed asset is included in 
income currently.

3.1.2 Intangible assets
 These are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any provision for impairment loss. Amortization of 

LQWDQJLEOH�IL[HG�DVVHWV�LV�FKDUJHG�WR�LQFRPH�DSSO\LQJ�WKH�VWUDLJKW�OLQH�PHWKRG�DW�WKH�UDWHV�VSHFLILHG�LQ�QRWH���WR�
the financial statements after taking into account residual value, if any.

� )XOO�PRQWK·V�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�LV�FDOFXODWHG�IURP�WKH�PRQWK�WKH�DVVHWV�DUH�DYDLODEOH�IRU�XVH�XVLQJ�WKH�VWUDLJKW�OLQH�
method, whereby the cost of the intangible asset is amortized over its estimated useful life over which economic 
EHQHILWV�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�IORZ�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\��7KH�XVHIXO�OLIH�DQG�DPRUWL]DWLRQ�PHWKRG�LV�UHYLHZHG��DQG�DGMXVWHG�
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

      December 31, 2021
   Rating AAA AA+ AA- Others* Sovereign Unrated /
        Bonds Unavailable
� � � � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

� &DVK�DQG�EDQN� � ������� ��� ²00 –00 –00 –00
 Investment in debt securities
    available for sale –00 –00 –00 –00 183,188 –00
 Insurance / reinsurance receivable –00 –00 –00 –00 –00 1,181,492
 Loans, deposits and other receivables  –00 –00 –00 –00 –00 145,582
 Reinsurance recoveries against
   outstanding claims  –00� ������� ²00� �������� ²00 �������
 Salvage recoveries accrued   –00 –00 –00 –00 –00 ������
� � � � ������� ������� ²00� �������� �������� ���������

   Rating A AA++ A++ A+ AA Total
 
 *Reinsurance recoveries
� ���DJDLQVW�RXWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV� �������� ������� �� ������ �� �������

 Ratings are by different rating agencies including Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (PACRA), JCR-VIS and Moody's incase of 
overseas reinsurance entities.
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 The carrying values of intangible assets are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that this carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the carrying 
values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, the assets are written down to their recoverable amount.

3.1.3 Leases - Right-of-use assets and related liabilities
 A contract is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a 

period of time in exchange for consideration. The Company mainly lease properties for its operations and 
recognizes a right-of- use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is 
initially measured at cost, and subsequently at cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, 
DQG�DGMXVWHG�IRU�FHUWDLQ�UHPHDVXUHPHQWV�RI�WKH�OHDVH�OLDELOLW\��7KH�ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHW�LV�GHSUHFLDWHG�XVLQJ�WKH�
straight line method from the commencement date to the earlier of end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset 
or end of lease term. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same basis as that for owned 
assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any. 

 The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the 
commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate of the Company. The lease liability is 
subsequently increased by the interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments made. It is 
remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change 
in assessment of whether extension option is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is 
reasonably certain not to be exercised. The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease 
liabilities for short term and low value assets. The lease payments associated with these leases are recognized 
as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term. The right-of-use assets are presented in the same 
line item as it presents underlying assets for the same nature it owns.

3.2 Insurance contracts
 Insurance contracts are those contracts where the Company (the insurer) has accepted significant insurance 

risk from another party (the policy holders) by agreeing to compensate the policyholders if a specified uncertain 
future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholders. These contracts are entered with group 
companies, corporate clients, and individuals residing or located in Pakistan.

 Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance contract for the remainder 
of its period, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and liabilities are 
extinguished or expired.

 Insurance contracts are classified into following main categories:
3.2.1 Fire and property
 The perils covered under fire insurance include damages caused by fire, riot and strike, explosion, earthquake, 

atmospheric damage, flood, electric fluctuation, impact and other coverage.
3.2.2 Marine and transport
 Marine and transport insurance provides coverage against cargo risk, war risk and damages occurring in inland 

transit.
3.2.3 Motor
 Motor insurance provides comprehensive car coverage and indemnity against third party loss.
3.2.4 Health
 Group hospitalization insurance provides cover to compensate personal accident, hospitalization and outpatient 

medical coverage to the insured.
3.2.5 Other classes
 Other classes includes mainly bankers blanket bond, liability, engineering, etc.



3.3 Commission
 Deferred commission expense
 Commission expense incurred in obtaining and recording policies is deferred and recognized in the Statement 

of Comprehensive Income as an expense in accordance with the pattern of recognition of premium revenue.
 Commission income
 Commission income from reinsurers is recognized on the date of commencement of the underlying insurance 

policy. These are deferred and recognized as liability and recognized in the profit and loss account as revenue 
in accordance with the pattern of recognition of the reinsurance premiums.

 Profit commission and sliding sales commission, if any, under the terms of reinsurance arrangements, is recognized 
when due.

3.4 Unearned Premium
 Premium under a policy is recognized on the time of the commencement of the policy.
 The unearned premium reserve is the unexpired portion of the premium including administrative surcharge. 

8QHDUQHG�SUHPLXPV�KDYH�EHHQ�FDOFXODWHG�E\�DSSO\LQJ�����WK������WK�PHWKRG�DV�DSSOLFDEOH�DQG�VSHFLILHG�LQ�WKH�
,QVXUDQFH�5XOHV��������5HPDLQLQJ�SRUWLRQ�LV�UHFRJQL]HG�LQ�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�&RPSUHKHQVLYH�,QFRPH�

3.5 Premium deficiency 
 7KH�&RPSDQ\�LV�UHTXLUHG�DV�SHU�,QVXUDQFH�5XOHV��������WR�PDLQWDLQ�D�SURYLVLRQ�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�SUHPLXP�GHILFLHQF\ 

for the class of business where the unearned premium reserve is not adequate to meet the expected future 
liability, after reinsurance, from claims and other expenses, including reinsurance expense, commissions and 
other underwriting expenses, expected to be incurred after the balance sheet date in respect of the unexpired 
policies in  that class of business at the balance sheet date. The movement in the premium deficiency reserve 
is recorded as an expense in the statement of comprehensive income and the same are recognized as a liability.

 The Company determines adequacy of liability of premium deficiency by carrying out an analysis of expired 
periods. For this purpose actuarial valuation has been carried out to determine the amount of premium deficiency 
UHVHUYH�DV�UHTXLUHG�E\�XQGHU�,QVXUDQFH�5XOHV�������LVVXHG�E\�WKH�6HFXULWLHV�DQG�([FKDQJH�&RPPLVVLRQ�RI�
Pakistan on January 09, 2012.

 Provision has been made for Health business as the unearned premium reserve for the class of business as at 
the year end is not adequate to meet the expected future liability after reinsurance from claims and other expenses, 
expected to be incurred after the reporting date in respect of policies in force at the reporting date.

3.6 Reinsurance contracts held
 Insurance contracts entered into by the Company with reinsurers for compensation of losses suffered on insurance 

contracts issued are reinsurance contracts. These reinsurance contracts include both facultative and treaty 
arrangement contracts and are classified in THE same categories of insurance contracts for the purpose of 
these financial statements. The Company recognizes the entitled benefits under the contract as reinsurance 
assets. Outward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same period as the related premiums for the 
direct or accepted reinsurance business being reinsured.

 Reinsurance liabilities represent balances due to reinsurance companies. Amounts payable are estimated in a 
manner consistent with the related reinsurance contract.

 Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers 
are estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims or settled claims associated with 
the reinsurance policies and are in accordance with the related reinsurance contract.

 Reinsurance assets are not offset against related insurance liabilities. Income or expenses from reinsurance 
contract are not offset against expenses or income from related insurance assets.

 The deferred portion of reinsurance premium ceded is recognized as a prepayment which is calculated in 
accordance with the pattern of recognition of revenue.
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 7KH�&RPSDQ\�DVVHVVHV�LWV�UHLQVXUDQFH�DVVHWV�IRU�LPSDLUPHQW�RQ�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�GDWH��,I�WKHUH�LV�DQ�REMHFWLYH 
evidence that the reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance 
asset to its recoverable amount and recognizes that impairment loss in the profit and loss account.

3.7 Receivables and payables
3.7.1 Receivables related to Insurance contract
 Receivables related to insurance contracts are recognized and due at cost which is the fair value of the 

FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�JLYHQ�OHVV�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�LPSDLUPHQW��LI�DQ\��,I�WKHUH�LV�DQ�REMHFWLYH�HYLGHQFH�WKDW�WKH�LQVXUDQFH�
receivable is impaired, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition, the Company 
reduces the carrying amount of the insurance receivables and recognizes that impairment loss in the statement 
of comprehensive income.

 Provision for impairment in premium receivables is estimated on a systematic basis after analyzing the receivables 
as per their ageing.

3.7.2 Creditors, accruals and provisions
 Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 

to be paid in future for the goods and / or services received, whether or not billed to the Company.
 Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 

events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle 
the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

� 3URYLVLRQV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�DW�HDFK�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�GDWH�DQG�DGMXVWHG�WR�UHIOHFW�WKH�FXUUHQW�HVWLPDWH�

3.8 Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims
 Claims recoveries against outstanding claims from the reinsurer and salvage are recognized as an asset at the 

same time as the claims which give rise to the right of recovery are recognized as a liability and are measured 
at the amount expected to be received.

3.9 Segment reporting
 An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may 

earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the 
&RPSDQ\·V�RWKHU�FRPSRQHQWV��$OO�RSHUDWLQJ�VHJPHQWV·�UHVXOWV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�UHJXODUO\�E\�WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�WR�
make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, for which discrete 
financial information is available.

 The Company presents segment reporting of operating results using the classes of business as specified under 
WKH� ,QVXUDQFH�2UGLQDQFH�������DQG� WKH� ,QVXUDQFH�5XOHV��������7KH� UHSRUWHG�RSHUDWLQJ�VHJPHQWV�DUH�DOVR�
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Board of Directors who assess the performance of the 
operating segments. The performance of segments is evaluated on the basis of underwriting results of each 
segment.

 Assets and liabilities that are directly attributable to specific segments are assigned to them, while the carrying 
DPRXQW�RI�FHUWDLQ�DVVHWV��OLDELOLWLHV��XVHG��LQFXUUHG��MRLQWO\�E\�WZR�RU�PRUH�VHJPHQWV�DUH�DOORFDWHG�WR�VHJPHQWV�
on a reasonable basis. Those assets and liabilities which cannot be allocated to a particular segment on a 
reasonable basis are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.

 The Company has four primary business segments for reporting purposes, namely fire and property, marine 
and transport, motor and other classes. The nature and business activities of these segments are disclosed in 
note no. 3.2. Income and expenses directly attribute to a particular segment is so allocated. Underwriting expenses 
have been allocated to various classes of business on a basis deemed equitable by the management. Expenses 
not attributable to the underwriting business are charged as other expenses.

3.10 Cash and cash equivalents
 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the financial statement at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, 

cash and cash equivalents consists of cash in hand, stamps in hand and current and saving accounts with bank.

29

Habib Insurance Company Limited



3.11 Revenue recognition
3.11.1 Premium
 The revenue recognition policy for premium is given under note 3.4.
3.11.2 Commission income
 The revenue recognition policy for commission from reinsurer is given under note 3.3.
3.11.3 Dividend income
 Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.
3.11.4 Gain / loss on sale / redemption of investments
 Gain / loss on sale / redemption of investments is taken to profit and loss account in the year of sale / redemption.
3.11.5 Income on debt securities and bank balances
 Income from debt securities investments and bank balances is recognized on a time proportionate basis taking 

account the effective yield on the investment / bank balance.
3.12 Investments
 These comprises of the following:
 - In equity securities
 - In debt securities
3.12.1 Recognition
 All investments are initially recognized at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and include 

transaction costs except for held for trading investments in which case transaction costs are charged to the profit 
and loss account. All purchase and sale of investments that require delivery within the required time frame 
established by regulations or market convention are accounted for at the trade date. Trade date is the date when 
the Company commits to purchase or sell the investments. These are recognized and classified as follows:

 - Investment at fair value through profit and loss (held for trading)
 - Available-for-sale
 - Held to maturity
3.12.2 Measurement
3.12.2.1 Investment at fair value through profit or loss (held for trading)
 At the time of acquisition, quoted investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit 

from short term fluctuations in price or are part of portfolio for which there is a recent actual pattern of short term 
profit taking are classified as held for trading.

 Subsequent to initial recognition these are remeasured at fair value by reference to quoted market prices (as 
explained below) with the resulting gain or loss being included in net profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

3.12.2.2 Available-for-sale
 Available-for-Sale investments are those non-derivative instruments / contracts that are designated as 

available-for-sale or are not classified in any other category.
 At the time of acquisition, investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may be 

sold in response to the need for liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as available-for-sale. 
 Subsequent to initial measurement, the available-for-sale investments are remeasured at fair value. Surplus / 

(deficit) on revaluation from one reporting date to other is taken to other comprehensive income in the statement 
of comprehensive income. On derecognition or impairment, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in 
other comprehensive income is transferred to profit and loss for period within statement of comprehensive 
income.

 Fair value of the listed equity shares are determined with reference to the rates quoted on the stock exchange, 
while the fair value of the mutual funds units and of term finance certificates are determined with reference to 
the rates quoted on the MUFAP website. The fair value of the Government securities are determined with 
reference the rates quoted on the PKRV page.
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 These are reviewed for impairment at year end and any losses arising from impairment in values are charged 
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3.12.2.3 Held-to-maturity
 At the time of acquisition, investments with fixed maturity, where management has both the intent and the 

ability to hold till maturity, are classified as held-to-maturity.
 Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost less provision for impairment in value, if any. Amortized 

cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition by using the effective yield 
method. 

 The difference between the redemption value and the purchase price of the held-to-maturity investments is 
amortized and taken to the profit and loss account over the term of the investment.

 These are reviewed for impairment at year end and any losses arising from impairment in values are charged 
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3.13 Off setting of financial assets and liabilities
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statement, 

if the Company has a legally enforceable right to set-off and the Company intends either to settle the assets 
and liabilities on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.14 Taxation
3.14.1 Current 
 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the tax 

UDWHV�HQDFWHG�RQ�VXEVWDQWLDOO\�HQDFWHG�DV�DW�WKH�\HDU�HQG��7KH�FKDUJH�IRU�FXUUHQW�WD[�DOVR�LQFOXGH�DGMXVWPHQWV� 
where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments finalized 
during the current year for such years.

3.14.2 Deferred
 Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method, in respect of temporary differences 

arising at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts 
for financial reporting purposes.

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets 
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the periods 
when the asset is utilized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been 
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profit 
and loss account except in the case of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in 
equity.

3.15 Staff retirement benefits
3.15.1 Defined contribution plan
 The Company operates a recognized Provident Fund scheme for its employees. Equal contributions are 

made by the Company and the employees at the applicable rate.
3.15.2 Defined benefit plan
 The Company operates an unfunded approved gratuity scheme for all of its eligible permanent employees. 

*UDWXLW\�LV�EDVHG�RQ�HPSOR\HHV·�ODVW�GUDZQ�EDVLF�VDODU\�
 Provisions are made to cover the obligations under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation and are 

charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The most recent valuation was carried out as of 
'HFHPEHU����������XVLQJ�WKH�´3URMHFWHG�8QLW�&UHGLW�0HWKRGµ�

 Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability, which comprises actuarial gain and losses are recognized 
immediately in other comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) 
on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the year by applying the discount rate used to measure the 
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual year to the then net defined benefit liability (asset), 
taking into account any change in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the year as a result of 
contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expense related to defined benefit plans 
are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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 When the benefits of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefits that 
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in Statement of 
Comprehensive Income. The Company recognizes gain and loss on the settlement of a defined benefit plan 
when the settlement occurs.

3.15.3 Employees' compensated absences
 The Company accounts for its liability towards accumulating compensated absences, when the employees 

render service that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences. An actuarial valuation has 
EHHQ�FDUULHG�RXW�XVLQJ�3URMHFWHG�8QLW�&UHGLW�PHWKRG�WR�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�DPRXQW�RI�FKDUJH�DQG�OLDELOLW\�WR�EH�
recognized at the financial statement date. Charge for these benefits are immediately recognized in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

3.16 Impairment of assets
� $�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHW�LV�DVVHVVHG�DW�HDFK�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�GDWH�WR�GHWHUPLQH�ZKHWKHU�WKHUH�LV�DQ\�REMHFWLYH�

HYLGHQFH�WKDW�LW�LV�LPSDLUHG��$�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHW�LV�FRQVLGHUHG�WR�EH�LPSDLUHG�LI�WKHUH�LV�DQ�REMHFWLYH�HYLGHQFH�
that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. If a 
GHFOLQH�LQ�IDLU�YDOXH�LV�VLJQLILFDQW�RU�SURORQJHG��WKDQ�WKHUH�LV�DQ�REMHFWLYH�HYLGHQFH��RI�LPSDLUPHQW�UHJDUGOHVV�
of how long management intends to hold the investment.

 The carrying amount of non financial assets is reviewed at each financial statement date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment of any asset or group of assets. If such indication exist, the recoverable 
amount of such asset is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use an 
its fair value less cost of sell. An impairment loss is recognized the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount.

 All impairment losses are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Provision of impairment 
DUH�UHYLHZHG�DW�HDFK�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�GDWH�DQG�DUH�DGMXVWHG�WR�UHIOHFW�WKH�FXUUHQW�EHVW�HVWLPDWHV��&KDQJH�
in the provisions are recognized as an income or expense.

3.17 Dividend distribution
 Dividend declaration and reserve appropriations are recognized when approved.
3.18 Foreign currency translations
 Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in rupees at the rates prevailing on the date of the 

transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at 
the rates of exchange which approximate those prevailing at the financial statement date. Exchange differences 
are taken to the profit and loss account.

3.19 Salvage recoveries accrued
 Salvage recoveries are recognized as an asset and measured at the amount expected to be received.
3.20 Provision
3.20.1 Claims
 Insurance claims include all claims incurred during the year, whether reported or not, related internal and 

external claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims.
 The Company recognizes liability in respect of all claims incurred up to the financial statement date which 

is measured at the undiscounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considered to be 
incurred at the time of the incident giving rise to the claim except as otherwise expressly indicated in an 
insurance contract.

 The liability for claims include amounts relating to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported 
(IBNR) and expected claims settlement costs. Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reported claims is 
made on the basis of individual estimates (comprising of reports by the surveyors).

32

Habib Insurance Company Limited



3.20.3 Claims incurred but reported
 The provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is made at the financial statement date. In accordance 

ZLWK�6(&3�FLUFXODU�1R����RI�������WKH�&RPSDQ\�WDNHV�DFWXDULDO�DGYLFH�IRU�WKH�GHWHUPLQDWLRQ�RI�,%15�FODLPV��
IBNR claims have been estimated using Chain Ladder (CL) methodology. The Chain Ladder (CL) Method 
involves determination of development factors or link ratios for each period. These are then subsequently 
combined to determine Cumulative Development Factor (CDF) which represents the extent of future 
development of claims to reach their ultimate level.

3.21 Financial instruments
 Financial assets and financial liabilities within the scope of IAS-39 are recognized at the time when the 

Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognized when the 
Company loses control of contractual rights that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial 
liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss 
on derecognition of the financial assets and financial liabilities is included in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. Fair value of long term financial assets at discounted interest rates are determined initially and the 
difference carried forward as a prepayment (staff bonus), which then is expensed out over the period in 
which the services are rendered.

3.22 Earnings per share
 The company presents basic and diluted earning per share (EPS). Basic EPS is calculated by dividing profit 

after tax for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is not calculated separately, as the 
Company does not have any convertable instruments in issue.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use 

RI�FHUWDLQ�FULWLFDO�DFFRXQWLQJ�HVWLPDWHV��,W�DOVR�UHTXLUHV�PDQDJHPHQW�WR�H[HUFLVH�LWV�MXGJPHQW�LQ�WKH�SURFHVV�
RI�DSSO\LQJ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFHV��7KH�HVWLPDWHV���MXGJPHQWV�DQG�DVVRFLDWHG�DVVXPSWLRQV�XVHG�
in the preparation of the financial statements are based on historical experience and other factors, including 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which 
form the basis of making the estimates about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is 
revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision 
DIIHFWV� ERWK� FXUUHQW� DQG� IXWXUH�SHULRGV�� ,Q� WKH�SURFHVV�RI� DSSO\LQJ� WKH�&RPSDQ\·V� DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV��
PDQDJHPHQW�KDV�PDGH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�HVWLPDWHV�DQG�MXGJPHQWV�ZKLFK�DUH�VLJQLILFDQW�WR�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

  Note

 Property and equipment 3.1
 Premium deficiency 3.5
� ,QVXUDQFH���UHLQVXUDQFH�UHFHLYDEOH���LPSDLUPHQW� �����
 Provision for outstanding claims including IBNR 3.20.2
 Taxation 3.14
 Staff retirement benefits 3.15
� ,PSDLUPHQW�RI�DVVHWV� ����

    2022 2021
     Note (Rupees in ' 000)
5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

� 3URSHUW\�DQG�(TXLSPHQW� ���� ������� ������
� 5LJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHWV� ���� ������� ������
� � � � � ������� ������
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   December 31, 2022
  Cost Accumulated Depreciation Written Down Depreciation
� � � � 9DOXH� 5DWH��
  As at Additions Disposals As at  As at Charge Disposals As at As at 
  January   December January for the  December December 
  01, 2022   31, 2022 01, 2022 year  31, 2022 31, 2022    
    

 Computer equipment 17,732 3,246 1,203 19,775 13,737 2,671 1,095 15,313 4,462 33
 Furniture and fixtures 29,356 1,898 444 30,810 13,870 2,547 244 16,173 14,637 10
 Office equipment 15,591 2,422 514 17,499 9,448 2,176 261 11,363 6,136 20
 Motor vehicles - Owned 16,895 2,192 3,164 15,923 9,817 1,200 178 10,839 5,084 10*
  79,574 9,758 5,325 84,007 46,872 8,594 1,778 53,688 30,319

 * being depreciated on the basis of remaining useful lives ranging between 3 years to 10 years.       

   December 31, 2021
  Cost Accumulated Depreciation Written Down Depreciation
    Value Rate %
  As at Additions Disposals As at  As at Charge Disposals As at As at 
  January   December January for the  December December 
  01, 2021   31, 2021 01, 2021 year  31, 2021 31, 2021    
  

� &RPSXWHU�HTXLSPHQW� ������� ������ ���� ������� ������� ������ ���� ������� ������ ��
� )XUQLWXUH�DQG�IL[WXUHV� ������� ������ ������ ������� ������� ������ ������ ������� ������� ��
� 2IILFH�HTXLSPHQW� ������� ������ ���� ������� ������ ������ ���� ������ ������ ��
� 0RWRU�YHKLFOHV���2ZQHG� ������� ������ ������� ������� ������� ������ ������ ������ ������ ��
� 0RWRU�YHKLFOHV���/HDVHG� �������� ������� �������� ²00� ������� ������� ������� ²00 –00        Various over the
                             contract period
� � �������� ������� �������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������

5.1 Property and Equipment

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)
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5.1.2 Effective January 01, 2022, the Company has revised its estimate of the useful lives of the motor vehicles and have changed the depreciation rate 
from 20% to 10% per annum. The revision has been made after considering the expected pattern of the recovery of economic benefits associated 
with the use of these assets. The revision has been accounted for as a change in accounting estimate as defined in International Accounting 
6WDQGDUGV��+DG�WKH�UHYLVLRQ�LQ�WKH�XVHIXO�OLYHV�QRW�EHHQ�PDGH��GHSUHFLDWLRQ�H[SHQVH�IRU�WKH�\HDU�ZRXOG�KDYH�EHHQ�KLJKHU�E\�5V��������PLOOLRQ��
ZKLOH�SURILW�IRU�WKH�\HDU�EHIRUH�WD[�DQG�FDUU\LQJ�YDOXH�RI�WKHVH�DVVHWV�ZRXOG�KDYH�EHHQ�ORZHU�E\�5V��������PLOOLRQ��(IIHFW�RI�WKH�DERYH�UHYLVLRQ��
resulting in the (decrease) / increase of expenses for the future years would be as follows:

      December 31, December 31,  December 31, Later 
     2023 2024 2025 Years

 Impact of reduction / (increase) of expenses in future years    784       (276)       (543 ) (2,191)

(Rupees in '000)

  Cost Accumulated Book value Sale Gain / Mode of Sold to 
 Category of assets  Depreciation  proceeds  (loss) disposals 

 Motor vehicles - owned� ��� �� ��� ��� ����� &ODLP� IGI General Insurance Limited
� � ������ ²� ������ ������ ���� � 1HJRWLDWLRQ� 0RKDPPDG�$VLI��(PSOR\HH�
� � ���� ��� ���� ���� ���� � 1HJRWLDWLRQ� .RQDLQ�5D]D��(PSOR\HH�
� � ���� ���� ���� ������ ������ � 1HJRWLDWLRQ� =HHVKDQ�$EEDV��(PSOR\HH�
� � ������ ���� ������ ������ ������ � � �

 Office Equipment� ���� ���� ���� ���� ������ 1HJRWLDWLRQ� Various

 Computer equipment� ������ ������ ���� ���� ���� � 1HJRWLDWLRQ� Various

 Furniture and fixtures 444 244 200 92 (108 ) Negotiation Various     
       
� ������������������ ������ ������ ������ ������ �����

� ������������������ ������� ������ ������� ������� �����

5.1.3 Details of tangible assets disposed off during the year are as follows:

(Rupees in '000)
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5.1.4 Cost of above assets include cost of tangible operating assets amounting to Rs. 15.404 million having net book value equal to NIL at the reporting date and are
� �VWLOO�LQ�XVH���'HFHPEHU����������5V���������PLOOLRQ��



   December 31, 2022
  Cost Accumulated Depreciation Written Down Depreciation
� � � � 9DOXH� 5DWH��
  As at Additions Deletions / As at  As at Charge Deletions / As at As at 
  January  Adjustments December January for the Adjustments December December 
  01, 2022   31, 2022 01, 2022 year  31, 2022 31, 2022    
    

� /HDVHKROG�SURSHUW\� ������� ²00� ���� ������� ������� ������ ²00� ������� �����������9DULRXV�RYHU�WKH
                contract period
�� � ������� ²00� ���� ������� ������� ������ ²00� ������� ������� �����

   December 31, 2021
  Cost Accumulated Depreciation Written Down Depreciation
    Value Rate %
  As at Additions Deletions / As at  As at Charge Deletions / As at As at 
� � -DQXDU\� � $GMXVWPHQWV� 'HFHPEHU� -DQXDU\� IRU�WKH� $GMXVWPHQWV� 'HFHPEHU� 'HFHPEHU�
  01, 2021   31, 2021 01, 2021 year  31, 2021 31, 2021    
    

� /HDVHKROG�SURSHUW\� ������� ������ ������� ������� ������ ������ ������ ������� �����������9DULRXV�RYHU�WKH
                contract period
�� � ������� ������ ������� ������� ������ ������ ������ ������� ������� �����

5.2 Right of use assets 

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)
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   December 31, 2022
  Cost Accumulated Amortisation Written Down Amortisation
� � � � 9DOXH� 5DWH��
  As at Additions Write off As at  As at Charge Write off As at As at 
  January   December January for the  December December 
 Owned 01, 2022   31, 2022 01, 2022 year  31, 2022 31, 2022   
     

  

  Computer Software 13,694 –00 –0 13,694 13,028 217 –0 13,245 449 20

   December 31, 2021
  Cost Accumulated Amortisation Written Down Amortisation
    Value Rate %
  As at Additions Write off As at  As at Charge Write off As at As at 
  January   December January for the  December December 
 Owned 01, 2021   31, 2021 01, 2021 year  31, 2021 31, 2021   
     

  

  Computer Software 15,091 –00� ������ ������� ������� ���� ���� ������� ���� ��

6.1� &RVW�RI�DERYH�DVVHWV�LQFOXGH�FRVW�RI�LQWDQJLEOH�RSHUDWLQJ�DVVHWV�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�5V��������PLOOLRQ�KDYLQJ�QHW�ERRN�YDOXH�HTXDO�WR�1,/�DW�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH�DQG�DUH�
still in use. (December 31, 2021: Rs. 9.859 million).

6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

(Rupees in '000)

(Rupees in '000)
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��� ,19(670(17�,1�(48,7<�6(&85,7,(6
     2022 2021
   Cost Impairment / Revaluation Carrying Cost Impairment Revaluation Carrying
  Note� � �3URYLVLRQ� VXUSOXV���� 9DOXH  Provision surplus / Value
     (deficit)    (deficit) 
� � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
 Available-for-sale
 Related parties - Listed ordinary shares
 Bank AL Habib Limited   84,100  –00�� �������� �������� � ������� � ²00  53,920  138,020
 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited   249,082  –00  ���������� �������� � �������� � ²00  ������� � �������
 Indus Motor Company Limited� � � ������� � ²00  ������� ������� � ������� � ²00  ������� � ������
 Thal Limited   –00  –00  –00  –00� � ������� � ²00  ������� � �������
� � � � �������� � ²00  �������� �������� � �������� � ²00  �������� � �������
 Others
 Listed ordinary shares ���� � �������� � ������� ) ��������� �������� � �������� � ���� ) �������� � �������
 Listed preference shares�� ���� � ������� � ²00  ������� ������� � ������� � ²00  ������ � ������
 Mutual funds   540  –00�� ������� ������ � ���� � ²00  ������ � �����

 Modaraba certificates - listed ���
 Orix Modaraba   1,319  –00  ���� ������ � ������ � ²00  ���� � �����
 First Habib Modaraba�� � � ������� � ²00  ������� ������� � ������� � ²00  ������ � ������

    15,014  –00 � ������� ������� � ������� � ²00  ������ � ������

� � � � �������� � ���������� ��������� �������� � �������� � ������ 322,118  1,210,429
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7.1 Impairment in investment securities 2022 2021
  Cost Impairment Carrying Cost Impairment Carrying
  � �� 9DOXH   Value 
� � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Panther Tyres Limited 5,420 � ��������� ������ � ,QWHUQDWLRQDO� ������ � ������� ���
 The Hub Power Company Limited� ������� � ���������� ������  Industries 
 Engro Polymers & Chemicals Limited� ������ � ��������� �����  Limited ������ � ������� ���
 International Steel Limited 8,484  (3,949 ) 4,535   
 International Industries Limited� ������ � ��������� ���   
 Lucky Cement Limited� ������� � ��������� ������   
 Jubilee General Insurance Company Limited� ������ � ��������� �����   
� � �������� � ������� ) ������� � �



7.2 Modaraba certificates   Number of
 Company Name Chief Executive Officer Nominal value certificates
 
� 2UL[�0RGDUDED� 0U��5DKHHO�4DPDU�$KPHG�� 5V���� �������
 First Habib Modaraba  Mr. Muhammad Shoaib Ibrahim Rs.5 2,015,000

7.3 Preference shares   Number of
 Company Name Chief Executive Officer Nominal value shares
 
 Engro Polymers & Chemical Ltd -  
� ��3UHIHUHQFH�6KDUHV� 0U��-DKDQJLU�3DUDFKD�� 5V���� ���������

 Preference shares of Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited were issued on December 18, 2020 and are perpetual. The dividends are 
FXPXODWLYH�LQ�QDWXUH�DQG�ZLOO�EH�FDOFXODWHG�DW���0RQWKV�.,%25���������RQ�WKH�LVVXH�GDWH�DQG�WKHQ�UHSULFHG�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�-XQH����DQG�
December 31, each year. The company has the option to purchase the entire portfolio from investor through 30 days notice after the expiry 
of 12 months from issue Date. The conversion Option can be exercised by the investor after the expiry of 80 months from the issue date 
into 1:1 (One preference shares equals to one ordinary share).

  Note 2022  2021
    (Rupees in ' 000)

��� ,19(670(17�,1�*29(510(17�6(&85,7,(6

 Available for sale
� 3DNLVWDQ�,QYHVWPHQW�%RQGV��3,%V�� ���� �������� �������
� 7UHDVXU\�%LOOV� ���� ��������� �������

� �� � � � � � ��������� �������

8.1 3,%V�KDYH�IDFH�YDOXH�RI�5V�������PLOOLRQ��PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�5V��������PLOOLRQ��>'HFHPEHU�����������5V�������PLOOLRQ�
�PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�5V���������PLOOLRQ�@��7KHVH�FDUU\�PDUN�XS�UDQJLQJ�IURP��������WR���������'HFHPEHU�����������
9.5% to 12%) per annum and will mature on August 05, 2024 and September 09, 2024. These PIBs have been 
deposited with the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) as statutory deposit in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 29 of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and circular 1R�����RI������GDWHG�-XO\����������LVVXHG�E\�WKH�6(&3��
These investments can be replaced with alternate eligible securities.

8.2 7UHDVXU\�%LOOV��7�%LOOV��KDYH�IDFH�YDOXH�RI�5V��������PLOOLRQ��PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�5V���������PLOOLRQ��>'HFHPEHU�����
������5V��������PLOOLRQ��PDUNHW�YDOXH�RI�5V���������PLOOLRQ���,W�FDUULHV�\LHOG�DW��������DQG�ZLOO�PDWXUH�EHWZHHQ�
July 2023 to October 2023. Treasury bills are held in the IPS account maintained with Bank AL Habib Limited 
(related party).

�� ,19(670(17�,1�7(50�),1$1&(�&(57,),&$7(6���XQVHFXUHG��DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�

      December 31, 2022
 Name of Company Name of Chief Executive  Term/ Profit  No. of  Cost Impairment/ Carrying
   Payment Certificates  provision value
      (Rupees in '000)

� %DQN�$OIDODK�/LPLWHG� 0U��$WLI�%DMZD� 3HUSHWXDO�DQG��� ������� ��������� ²� �������
   Monthly Non-
   cumulative
   KIBOR + 2%
   (19.02%) at the
   year end)
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  Note 2022  2021
    (Rupees in ' 000)
���� ,1685$1&(���5(,1685$1&(�5(&(,9$%/(6
    Unsecured and considered good
 Due from insurance contract holders     
� &RQVLGHUHG�JRRG� � �������� � �������
� &RQVLGHUHG�GRXEWIXO� � ������� � ������
 Less: Provision for impairment of receivables
� ����������IURP�,QVXUDQFH�FRQWUDFW�KROGHUV� ����� ���������� ���������
� � � � � �������� � �������
 Due from other insurers/ reinsurers (note 19.2)
� &RQVLGHUHG�JRRG� � �������� � �������

� &RQVLGHUHG�GRXEWIXO� � ������� � �����
 Less: Provision for impairment of due
� ���������IURP�RWKHU�LQVXUHUV��UHLQVXUHUV� ����� ���������� ��������

� � � � � � �������� � �������
� � � � � � �������� � ���������
11.1 Movement of balances due from the contract holders considered doubtful

� 2SHQLQJ�EDODQFH� � ������� � ������
� 3URYLVLRQ�IRU�LPSDLUPHQW�RI�EDODQFHV�GXH�IURP�LQVXUDQFH�FRQWUDFW�KROGHUV� � ������ � �����

� &ORVLQJ�EDODQFH�� � ������� � ������

11.2 Movement of the balances due from other insurer / reinsurer considered doubtful

� 2SHQLQJ�EDODQFH� � ������ � �����
 Provision for impairment of balances due from insurer / reinsurer  10,394  –00
� &ORVLQJ�EDODQFH�� � ������� � �����

  Note 2022  2021
    (Rupees in ' 000)
���� /2$16�$1'�27+(5�5(&(,9$%/(6���&RQVLGHUHG�JRRG

� $FFUXHG�LQYHVWPHQW�LQFRPH� � ������ � ������
� 6HFXULW\�GHSRVLWV� � ������� � ������
� $GYDQFHV� ����� ������ � �����
� $GYDQFH�WR�FRPPLVVLRQ�DJHQWV� � ������� � ������
� /RDQV�WR�HPSOR\HHV� ����� ������� � ������
 Receivable against sale of investments  85,483  –00
 Receivable from Window Takaful operations 
  (for expenses incurred on their behalf)  –00  1,453
 Receivable against sale of vehicle to employees  –00� � ������
� 5HFHLYDEOH�IURP�HPSOR\HHV���3DUHQWV�LQVXUDQFH�SROLF\� � ������ � �����
 Input sales tax  9,901  5,085
� 5HFHLYDEOH�IURP�D�7UXVW� ����� ������ � –00
� �� � � � � � �������� � �������

10.1� 7KLV�LQFOXGHV�5V�1LO�PLOOLRQ��������5V������PLOOLRQ��UHFHLYDEOH�IURP�UHODWHG�SDUWLHV�
10.2 The loans are secured against provident fund balances or deposits of the title documents. These loans are recoverable in 

PRQWKO\� LQVWDOPHQWV�RYHU� WKH� ORDQ�SHULRGV�DQG� LQFOXGHV�5V��������PLOOLRQ� �������5V���������PLOOLRQ�� UHFHLYDEOH� LQ������
representing the current portion of loans to employees. The loans carry mark-up rate ranging from 8.33% to 19.34% (2021: 
������WR���������SHU�DQQXP�

10.3 Due from a Trust, which is a related party for their share of Corporate and Social Responsibility expenses already incurred 
by the Company.
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     2022 2021
     Number of Employees
 The number of employees covered under
 the defined benefit scheme are: 125 120

12.1 The following principal actuarial assumptions were used for the valuation of above mentioned scheme:
     2022 2021
 Financial assumptions 
� ��'LVFRXQW�UDWH��SHU�DQQXP�FRPSRXQGHG�� ������� ������
� ��6DODU\�LQFUHDVH�SHU�DQQXP� ������� ������
 Demographic assumptions
 - Expected service length of the employees 15 years 15 years
� ��1RUPDO�UHWLUHPHQW� � ���\HDUV� ���\HDUV
 - Rate of employee turnover Light Light
 - Mortality rate   SLIC (2001-05) - 1 SLIC 2001-05) - 1
      
    Note 2022 2021
� � � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
12.2 Liability in financial statement
 Present value of defined benefit obligations 12.3 130,311 130,859

12.3 Reconciliation of defined benefit obligations

 Present value of defined benefit obligations as at January 01,  130,859  119,302
� &XUUHQW�VHUYLFH�FRVW� ����� ������� �����
� ,QWHUHVW�FRVW� � � �������� ������
� %HQHILWV�SDLG� � � ���������� ��������
 Liability transfer to WTO  –00�� ��������
� $FWXDULDO�JDLQ�RQ�REOLJDWLRQ� ����� ��������� ��������
 Present value of defined benefit obligations as at December 31,  130,311  130,859

12.4 Charge for the defined benefit plan
 Cost recognised in profit and loss
� &XUUHQW�VHUYLFH�FRVW� � ������ �����
� ,QWHUHVW�FRVW� � � ������� ������
� � � � � ������� ������
12.5 Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation
     recognised in other comprehensive income
 Loss due to change in financial assumptions  1,433  892
� *DLQ�GXH�WR�FKDQJH�LQ�H[SHULHQFH�DGMXVWPHQWV� � ��������� ��������
� � � � � ��������� ��������
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12 RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
 Defined benefit obligation - unfunded gratuity scheme
 The Company is operating an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees who become eligible for gratuity 

after five years of service. Gratuity entitlement is based on the last drawn basic salaries. The obligation under this scheme 
LV�GHWHUPLQHG�XQGHU�DQ�DFWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQ�FDUULHG�RXW�E\�D�TXDOLILHG�DFWXDU\�XVLQJ�WKH�3URMHFWHG�8QLW�&UHGLW�0HWKRG��7KH�
latest valuation was carried out as of December 31, 2022.

Habib Insurance Company Limited

12.6 Sensitivity analysis
 Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and 

calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations on various employee benefit 
schemes. The increase / (decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in 
each assumption is summarized below:
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     2022 2021
    (Rupees in ' 000)

� ,QFUHDVH�LQ�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�E\������ ����������� ���������
� 'HFUHDVH�LQ�GLVFRXQW�UDWH�E\������ �������� � �������
� ,QFUHDVH�LQ�H[SHFWHG�IXWXUH�LQFUHPHQW�LQ�VDODU\�E\������ �������� � �������
� 'HFUHDVH�LQ�H[SHFWHG�IXWXUH�LQFUHPHQW�LQ�VDODU\�E\������ ����������� ���������

12.7 Comparison for Five Years
 As at December 31, 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
      (Rupees in ' 000)

� 'HILQHG�EHQHILW�REOLJDWLRQ� �������� �������� �������� ������� ������
� ([SHULHQFH�DGMXVWPHQW�ORVV�RQ
     obligation (as percentage of
� ����SODQ�REOLJDWLRQV�� ������� ������� ������� ������� �����

12.8 Others   2022 2021
     (Rupees in ' 000)

 Expected contributions to the fund in the following year  18,348 18,348
    (as per the actuarial advise)
 Expected benefit payments to retirees in the following year  4,944 4,944
 Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation (year)  10.42 9.92

13. DEFERRED TAXATION
 Deductable differences in respect of
 Provisions for:   
� ��GRXEWIXO�GHEWV��LQVXUDQFH���UHLQVXUDQFH�UHFHLYDEOH�� � ���������� ��������
� ��FRPSHQVDWHG�DEVHQFHV� � ��������� ��������
 - impairment on available-for-sale investments  (11,923 ) –00
� � � � � ���������� ���������

 Lease liability - net  (1,588 ) (388 )
� � � � � ���������� ���������

 Taxable temporary differences in respect of:
� $FFHOHUDWHG�GHSUHFLDWLRQ� � ������� �����
 Actuarial gain on defined benefit plan  2,455  2,189
� 8QUHDOL]HG�JDLQ�RQ�DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH�LQYHVWPHQWV� � �������� ������
� � � � � �������� ������
 Deferred tax Liability� � �������� ������
13.1 Reconciliation of deferred tax
 Opening balance  82,023  124,128
 Directly recognised in other comprehensive income due to
� ��DFWXDULDO�JDLQ�RQ�VWDII�UHWLUHPHQW�EHQHILW� � ����� �����
 Directly recognised in other comprehensive income due to
   unrealised gain on available-for-sale investments  (48,244 ) (39,158 ) 
 Directly recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive 
� ���,QFRPH��SURILW�RU�ORVV�� � ���������� ��������
� &ORVLQJ�EDODQFH� � �������� ������

Habib Insurance Company Limited



     2022 2021
    Note (Rupees in ' 000)

14. PREPAYMENTS
� 3UHSDLG�UHLQVXUDQFH�SUHPLXP�FHGHG� � ��������� �������
 Prepaid insurance on leased vehicles  –00  1,404
 Prepaid employees group/health insurance  9,154  8,089
� 2WKHUV� � ����� �������� ������
� � � � � ��������� �������

14.1 7KLV�LQFOXGHV�WKH�SUHSDLG�GLVFRXQW�HIIHFW�RI�5V���������PLOOLRQ��������5V���������PLOOLRQ��UHODWLQJ�WR�
staff loans.

15. CASH AND BANK
 Cash and cash equivalent
� � ��&DVK�LQ�KDQG� � ����� ���
� � ��3ROLF\�VWDPSV� � ������� ���
� � � � � ������� ���

 Cash at bank
  - Current accounts  32,301  30,349
� � ��6DYLQJ�DFFRXQWV� ����� ��������� ������
� � � � � ��������� ������
� � � � � ��������� ������

15.1 7KHVH�EDODQFHV�DUH�KHOG�ZLWK�D�UHODWHG�SDUW\�DQG�FDUULHV�PDUN�XS�UDWHV�UDQJLQJ�EHWZHHQ�������DQG������� 
������������WR��������SHU�DQQXP�� � �� ��
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     2022 2021
     (Rupees in ' 000)
16. SHARE CAPITAL
 Authorised capital  
 2022 2021 
   (Number of Shares) 
   
� � ������������ ������������ �2UGLQDU\�VKDUHV�RI�5V������HDFK� �������� �������

16.1 Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital
    Ordinary shares of Rs. 5/- each at
� � ������������ ������������ ��WKH�EHJLQQLQJ�DQG�HQG�RI�WKH�\HDU�� �������� �������

16.2 $W� 'HFHPEHU� ���� ����� � +DELE� ,QVXUDQFH� &RPSDQ\� /LPLWHG
V� DVVRFLDWHG� XQGHUWDNLQJ� KHOG� ������PLOOLRQ�
��������>������������PLOOLRQ��������@�QXPEHU�RI�RUGLQDU\�VKDUHV�RI�5V���HDFK�

     2022 2021
    Note (Rupees in ' 000)
���� 5(6(59(6
 Capital Reserves
� 5HVHUYH�IRU�H[FHSWLRQDO�ORVVHV� ����� ������ �����
 Revenue Reserves
 General reserves  305,000 255,000
 Available-for-sale investments reserve  100,839 228,932
     405,839 483,932
� � � � � �������� �������



17.1 Under the Income Tax Act, 1922 applicable to insurance companies, the Company had set aside in prior years 
amounts up to ten percent of premium earnings, net of reinsurances of the year as a reserve for exceptional 
losses, which was treated as an allowable deduction in arriving at the taxable income. This option was withdrawn 
E\�WKH�,QFRPH�7D[�2UGLQDQFH�������ZLWK�UHWURVSHFWLYH�HIIHFW�IURP�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�\HDU�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU�����
������$FFRUGLQJO\��WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�FHDVHG�WR�VHW�DVLGH�VXFK�DPRXQWV��EXW�KDV�UHWDLQHG�WKH�UHVHUYHV�FUHDWHG�
XS�WR�'HFHPEHU����������

    Note 2022 2021
    (Rupees in ' 000)
18. LEASE LIABILITY - against right-of-use assets
   (leasehold property)

� /HDVH�OLDELOLW\�� ����� ������� ������

� &XUUHQW�SRUWLRQ� � ������� ������
� 1RQ�FXUUHQW�SRUWLRQ� � ������� ������
� � � � � ������� ������
18.1 Lease Liability
 The amount of future lease payments and the period in which these become due are as follows:
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   2022 2021
   Minimum Financial Present value Minimum Financial Present value 
   Lease Charges minimum lease Lease Charges minimum lease
   Payments  payments Payments  payments
   (Rupees in ' 000)

� 1RW�ODWHU�WKDQ�RQH�\HDU� ������� ���� ������� ������� ������ ������
 Later than one year but 
� ���QRW�ODWHU�WKDQ�ILYH�\HDUV� ������� ������ ������� ������� ������ ������
� �� � � ������� ������ ������� ������� ������ ������

� $ERYH�OHDVH�OLDELOLW\�KDV�EHHQ�GLVFRXQWHG�DW�UDWHV�UDQJLQJ�EHWZHHQ�������WR��������SHU�DQQXP�

    Note 2022 2021
    (Rupees in ' 000)
19. INSURANCE/ REINSURANCE PAYABLES
� 'XH�WR�RWKHU�LQVXUHUV��UHLQVXUHUV� ����� �������� �������

19.1 Due to other insurers/ reinsurers
� ��)RUHLJQ�UHLQVXUHUV� � �������� �������
� ��/RFDO�UHLQVXUHUV� � �������� ������
� ��&R�LQVXUHUV� � � ������� �������

� � � � � ��������� �������

The Company has co-insurance and re-insurance arrangements with various insurance and a domestic re-insurance 
company. Under the above arrangements, the receivable and payable balances originate mainly due to premiums 
collected or claims settled by the lead insurer on behalf of other co-insurers, and in case of re-insurance, the premium 
ceded to and claims recoverable from the re-insurer under the respective contracts. As per the prevailing industry 
practices, settlements of balances under co-insurance arrangements are done between the respective insurance 
companies in normal course of business. The current balances of co-insurers and re-insurer reflected in the records 
of the Company are based on the underlying contracts and transactions. As advised by SECP, the process for 
reconciliation of these balances with the respective insurance companies will be formalized as per the guidelines 
suggested by the Insurance Association of Pakistan for the insurance industry.



    Note 2022 2021
    (Rupees in ' 000)

20. OTHER CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS
 Agents commission payable  118,451 113,900
� )HGHUDO�H[FLVH�GXW\� � ������� ������
� )HGHUDO�LQVXUDQFH�IHH� � ������ �����
� $FFUXHG�H[SHQVHV� ����� ������� ������
� :LWKKROGLQJ�LQFRPH�WD[�SD\DEOH� � ������ ²00
 Payable for the purchase of listed equity shares  13,380 –00
� 8QFODLPHG�GLYLGHQGV� � ������� ������
� 6XQGU\�FUHGLWRUV� ����� ������� ������
 Payable to Window Takaful Operations  415 –00
� 2WKHUV� � � ���� ���
� � � � � �������� �������

20.1� 7KLV�LQFOXGHV�SURYLVLRQ�IRU�VWDII�FRPSHQVDWHG�DEVHQFHV�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�5V��������PLOOLRQ��������5V�������PLOOLRQ��
7KH�OLDELOLW\�LV�GHWHUPLQHG�WKURXJK�DQ�DFWXDULDO�YDOXDWLRQ�FDUULHG�RXW�XQGHU�WKH�SURMHFWHG�XQLW�FUHGLW��38&��DFWXDULDO 
FRVW�PHWKRG��E\�DQ�DFWXDU\���$Q�DPRXQW�RI�5V�����PLOOLRQ��������UHYHUVDO�RI�5V������PLOOLRQ��KDV�EHHQ�FKDUJHG�
to profit and loss account in the current year based on the actuarial advice.

20.2� 7KLV�LQFOXGHV�RXWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV�LQ�UHVSHFW�RI�ZKLFK�FKHTXHV�DJJUHJDWLQJ�WR�5V���������PLOOLRQ��������5V��������
million) have been issued by the Company for claim settlement but the same have not been encashed by the 
claimants.

 The following is the ageing as required by SECP Circular No. 11 of 2014 dated May 19, 2014:

    Age-wise break-up    
  
 Claims not�� � ��WR��� ��WR���� ���WR���� ���WR���� %H\RQG���� �
   encashed  months months months months months Total
    (Rupees in ' 000)
       
� ����� � � ����� ����� �������� ������� ��������� ��������
          
� ����� � � ������� ����� �������� ������� ��������� �������
 

21 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

21.1 Contingencies

21.1.1 $�FDVH�KDV�EHHQ�LQVWLWXWHG�DJDLQVW�WKH�&RPSDQ\�IRU�WKH�UHFRYHU\�RI�LQVXUDQFH�FODLP�RI�5V�������PLOOLRQ�DORQJ�
ZLWK�OLTXLGDWHG�GDPDJHV��7KH�VDLG�VXLW�LV�EHLQJ�DGMXGLFDWHG�EHIRUH�WKH�+RQRXUDEOH�,QVXUDQFH�7ULEXQDO��7KH�VXLW�
is at the stage of arguments and is being argued on maintainability. It may get dismissed at the maintainability 
stage in favour of the Company. The Company has a good prima facie case.

 In addition, an insurance appeal is pending before the Division Bench of the Honourable Lahore High Court in 
ZKLFK�WKH�&RPSDQ\�KDV�FKDOOHQJHG�DQ�H[�SDUWH�MXGJHPHQW�RI�5V��������PLOOLRQ�DJDLQVW�WKH�&RPSDQ\��7KH�+LJK�
&RXUW�ZDV�SOHDVHG�WR�JUDQW�DQ�LQMXQFWLYH�RUGHU�VXEMHFW�WR�WKH�IXUQLVKLQJ�RI�VXUHW\�RI�5V��������PLOOLRQ�ZKLFK�KDV�
been furnished. The Company has a good prima facie case with future stages of available appeals.

21.1.2 Tax related contingencies are reported in note 31.2 to the financial statements.

21.2 Commitments

 There are no commitments as at December 31, 2022.
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      2022 2021
      (Rupees in ' 000)
22. NET INSURANCE PREMIUM  

 Written gross premium ���������� ���������
� $GG�� 8QHDUQHG�SUHPLXP�UHVHUYH�RSHQLQJ� � ����������� �������
� /HVV��8QHDUQHG�SUHPLXP�UHVHUYH�FORVLQJ� � ������������� ������������
 Premium earned� � ���������� ���������

 Less: 5HLQVXUDQFH�SUHPLXP�FHGHG� � ���������� ���������
� $GG�� 3UHSDLG�UHLQVXUDQFH�SUHPLXP�RSHQLQJ� � ��������� �������
� /HVV��3UHSDLG�UHLQVXUDQFH�SUHPLXP�FORVLQJ� � ����������� ����������
 Reinsurance expense� � ���������� ���������
 Net insurance premium� � ���������� �������

23. NET INSURANCE CLAIMS

 Claims paid � � ���������� ���������
� $GG�� 2XWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV�LQFOXGLQJ�,%15�FORVLQJ� � ��������� �������
� /HVV��2XWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV�LQFOXGLQJ�,%15�RSHQLQJ� � ����������� �����������
 Claims expense� � ���������� ���������

 Less: Reinsurance and other recoveries received� � �������� �������
 Add: Reinsurance and other recoveries in respect of
� � RXWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV�QHW�RI�LPSDLUPHQW���FORVLQJ� � ��������� �������
 Less: Reinsurance and other recoveries in respect of
� � RXWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV�QHW�RI�LPSDLUPHQW���RSHQLQJ� � ����������� ����������
 Reinsurance and other recoveries revenue� � �������� �������
 Net insurance claims� � �������� �������

���� &/$,0�'(9(/230(17

 The following table shows the development of claims over a period of time on gross basis. For each class of 
business the uncertainty about the amount and timings of claims payment is usually resolved within a year.

 Accident year 2018 & Prior 2019 2020 2021 2022
� � � � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Estimate of ultimate claims costs:

� $W�HQG�RI�DFFLGHQW�\HDU� ����������� ��������� ����������� ����������� ���������
� 2QH�\HDU�ODWHU�� �������� �������� ��������� ���������  –00
 Two year later  810,855  955,231  �������  –00  –00
� 7KUHH�\HDU�ODWHU� �������� 951,442  –00  –00  –00 
� )RXU�\HDU�ODWHU� �������  –00  –00  –00  –00 
� &XUUHQW�HVWLPDWH�RI�XOWLPDWH�FODLPV�FRVW�� ��������� ��������� ��������� ����������� ���������
� &XPXODWLYH�SD\PHQWV�WR�GDWH� ����������� ����������� ����������� ������������� ����������
 Liability for outstanding claims� ��������� �������� �������� ��������� �������
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      2022 2021
     Note (Rupees in ' 000)
25. NET COMMISSION INCOME

 Commissions paid or payable� �������� � �������
� $GG�� 'HIHUUHG�FRPPLVVLRQ���RSHQLQJ� � �������� � ������
� /HVV��'HIHUUHG�FRPPLVVLRQ���FORVLQJ� � ����������� ���������

 Commission expense� �������� � �������

 Less: Commission from reinsurers
� &RPPLVVLRQ�UHFHLYHG�RU�UHFHLYDEOH� �������� � �������
� $GG�� 8QHDUQHG�UHLQVXUDQFH�FRPPLVVLRQ���RSHQLQJ� �������� � �������
� /HVV��8QHDUQHG�UHLQVXUDQFH�FRPPLVVLRQ���FORVLQJ� ����������� ����������
 Commission from reinsurers 391,538  258,842

 Net commission income� ������� � ������

26. MANAGEMENT EXPENSES

� (PSOR\HH�EHQHILW�FRVW� ����� �������� � �������
� 7UDYHOLQJ�H[SHQVHV� � ������� � ������
� $GYHUWLVHPHQW�DQG�VDOHV�SURPRWLRQ� � ������ � ���
� 3ULQWLQJ�DQG�VWDWLRQDU\� � ������ � �����
� 'HSUHFLDWLRQ�� � � ������� � ������
� $PRUWLVDWLRQ� � � ���� � ���
� 5HQW��UDWHV�DQG�WD[HV� � ������ � �����
� /HJDO�DQG�SURIHVVLRQDO�FKDUJHV� ����� ������� � �����
� (OHFWULFLW\��JDV�DQG�ZDWHU� � ������� � �����
 Entertainment   9,389  5,151
� 2IILFH�UHSDLUV�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH� � ������ � ������
� %DQN�FKDUJHV�� � ���� � ���
 Postages, telegrams and telephone  12,244  9,824
� $QQXDO�VXSHUYLVLRQ�IHH�RI�6(&3� � ������ � �����
� %DG�DQG�GRXEWIXO�GHEWV� � ������� � �����
� 0LVFHOODQHRXV�� � ������ � �����
� � � � � �������� � �������

26.1� 7KLV�LQFOXGHV�5V����������PLOOLRQ��������5V����������PLOOLRQ���EHLQJ�VDODULHV�DQG�RWKHU�EHQHILWV�DQG�5V���������
million (2021: Rs. 10.435 million) being contribution to employees' provident fund. This also includes staff vehicles 
expenses of Rs. 113.233 million (2021: Rs. 39.105 million), earlier included as a separate line item.

26.2 This includes Rs. 19.310 million services charges charged by the co-insurance companies.

Habib Insurance Company Limited



      2022 2021
     (Rupees in ' 000)
���� ,19(670(17�,1&20(

 Income from equity securities - available-for-sale
� ��'LYLGHQG�LQFRPH� � �������� � ������

 Income from debt securities - available-for-sale
� ��3DNLVWDQ�,QYHVWPHQW�%RQGV� � ������ � ������
 - Treasury Bills  11,181  –00
 - Term Finance Certificates  4,233  –00
� � � � � ������� � ������

 Net realised gain on investments - available-for-sale    
 - Equity securities  15,141  9,501
� ��0XWXDO�IXQGV�XQLWV� � ������� � �����
 - Debt securities  –00� � ������
     25,904  31,921
 Net realised loss on investments available-for-sale      
� ��(TXLW\�VHFXULWLHV� � ���������� ��������
� 7RWDO�LQYHVWPHQW�LQFRPH� � �������� � �������

 Less: Impairment in value of investments available-for-sale      
� ��(TXLW\�VHFXULWLHV� � ���������� ������

 Less: Investment related expenses  (304 ) (195 )

� � � � � �������� � �������

28. OTHER INCOME
� 5HWXUQ�RQ�EDQN�EDODQFHV� ������� � �����
� *DLQ�RQ�VDOH�RI�IL[HG�DVVHWV� � ������ � ������
 Return on loan to employees  4,803  2,834
� /LDELOLWLHV�QR�ORQJHU�SD\DEOH�ZULWWHQ�EDFN� � ������� � –00
 Miscellaneous   488  5,389
� � � � ������� � ������

29. OTHER EXPENSES
� $XGLWRU·V�UHPXQHUDWLRQ� ����� ������ � �����
� 6XEVFULSWLRQ� � � ������ � �����
 Donations  29.2 3,200  3,200
� � � � � ������� � ������

����� $XGLWRU·V�UHPXQHUDWLRQ
� $XGLW�IHH� � � ������ � �����
� 5HYLHZ�RI�FRQGHQVHG�LQWHULP�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV� � ���� � ���
� 6SHFLDO�FHUWLILFDWLRQV� � ������ � ���
     2,843  2,242

 Sindh sales tax  291  218
� 2XW�RI�SRFNHW�H[SHQVHV� � ���� � ���
� � � � � ������ � �����

29.2 Details of donation of Rs. 3.2 million (2021: Rs. 3.2 million) are as follows:  
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  Name of Directors Interest in Name of Donee Address of Donee Amount
    Donee   (Rupees in '000)

� 0U��5DILT�0�+DELE� 7UXVWHH� $O�6D\\HGD�� 8%/�%XLOGLQJ�� ����
 Mr. Mansoor G.Habib &  Benevolent Trust I.I.Chundrigar Road, Karachi
 Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib

� 0U��$XQ�0RKDPPDG�$��+DELE� 7UXVWHH� 5HKPDWEDL�+DELE�� 8%/�%XLOGLQJ�� ���
     Widows & Orphans Trust I.I.Chundrigar Road, Karachi 

� 0U��$XQ�0RKDPPDG�$��+DELE� 7UXVWHH� 5HKPDWEDL�+DELE�)RRG�� 8%/�%XLOGLQJ�� ���
     & Clothing Trust I.I.Chundrigar Road, Karachi 

� 0U��0DQVRRU�*�+DELE�	� 7UXVWHH� +DELE�3RRU�)XQG� 8%/�%XLOGLQJ�� ���
 Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib   I.I.Chundrigar Road, Karachi
 
� 0U��5DILT�0�+DELE� 7UXVWHH� +DELE�0HGLFDO�7UXVW� 8%/�%XLOGLQJ�� ����
      I.I.Chundrigar Road, Karachi

        3,200

    2022 2021
     (Rupees in ' 000)
30. FINANCE COST

� 0DUN�XS�RQ�VKRUW�WHUP�ILQDQFLQJ� � ��� � ���
� 0DUN�XS�RQ�OHDVH�OLDELOWLHV� � ������ � ������
     3,282  10,924

31. TAXATION

 For the year  
� &XUUHQW� � � ������� � ������
� 3ULRU� � � � ���������� �����
� 'HIHUUHG� � � ���������� ��������
� � � � � ������� � ������

31.1 Relationship between tax expense and accounting profit
� 3URILW�EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ� � �������� � �������

� 7D[�DW�HQDFWHG�UDWH�RI����������������� � ������� � ������
� 3ULRU�\HDU�WD[� � � ���������� �����
 Super tax on taxable income @ 1%  1,952  –00
 Others   (2,031 ) (3,454 )
� � � � � ������� � ������

31.2 Details of pending tax appeals / cases / notices are as follows:

 - The Income Tax department has made an assessment order for the tax year 2018 by adding back certain 
expenses, written off of bad debts, loan to employees, capitalization of renovation expenses and provision 
IRU�JUDWXLW\��7KH�&RPSDQ\�KDG�ILOHG�DQ�DSSHDO�EHIRUH�WKH�&RPPLVVLRQHU��,QODQG�5HYHQXH��$SSHDOV�,��>&,5�$@ 
on which partial relief was allowed to the Company and amount of Rs 1.5 million was payable by the Company. 
7KH�VHFRQG�DSSHDO�KDV�EHHQ� ILOHG��ZKLFK� LV�SHQGLQJ� IRU�DGMXGLFDWLRQ��7KH�PDQDJHPHQW��EDVHG�RQ� WKH�
discussion with the tax advisor believes that the case will be decided in favour of the Company.
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 - The Income Tax department has issued an assessment order for the tax years 2011, 2012,  2014, 2015 and 
�����UDLVHG�DGGLWLRQDO�WD[�GHPDQG�RI�5V�����PLOOLRQ��5V�������5V������PLOOLRQ��5V������PLOOLRQ�DQG 

  Rs. 23.24 respectively by charging tax on dividend and capital gain as single basket, disallowance of provision 
for IBNR, non-deduction of tax on commission payment, addition of cash withdrawals, provision for impairment, 
provision for gratuity, provision for workers welfare fund, donations, capital expenditure, renovation of rented 
premises, bonus shares and loan to employees. The Company has filed an appeal before the Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) in respect of above tax years. The appeals are yet to be fixed for hearing. 
The management, based on the discussion with the tax advisor believes that the case will be decided in 
favour of the Company.

 - The Income Tax department has filed an appeal before the Sindh High Court  against the appellate order 
SDVVHG�E\�WKH�$7,5�IRU�WKH�WD[�\HDU������DQG������UDLVHG�DGGLWLRQDO�WD[�GHPDQG�RI�5V������DQG�5V�������
UHVSHFWLYHO\��7KH�DIRUHVDLG�DSSHDO�LV�SHQGLQJ�IRU�DGMXGLFDWLRQ��7KH�PDQDJHPHQW��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�GLVFXVVLRQ�
with the tax advisor believes that the case will be decided in favour of the Company.

 - In respect of tax years 2000, 2001, 2008 and 2009 Civil Appeals were filed by the Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (CIR) against the Consolidated Judgment passed by the Honourable High Court of Sindh (SHC) 
RQ�WKH�LVVXH�RI�DOORFDWLRQ�RI�([SHQVHV�WRZDUGV�GLYLGHQG�LQFRPH�XQGHU�VHFWLRQ����RI�WKH�,QFRPH�7D[�2UGLQDQFH� 
2001 (the Ordinance). Civil Appeals were ordered to be heard ex-parte. An application was filed for setting 
aside the order for ex-parte proceedings and to allow enter appearance to argue the case on merits. The 
,QFRPH�7D[�GHSDUWPHQW�KDG�ILOHG�FLYLO�SHWLWLRQ�OHDYH�WR�DSSHDO�DJDLQVW�WKH�MXGJHPHQW�SDVVHG�E\�WKH�6+&�LQ�
the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP). The Civil petition leave to appeal has been granted and 
converted into Civil Appeal. The proceedings are still pending before the Honorable Supreme Court of 
Pakistan (SCP). The main appeals along with the said applications were last fixed for hearing on February 
���� ������ KRZHYHU�� RQ� WKH� VDLG� GDWH� WKH�PDWWHU�ZDV�DGMRXUQHG��1R� IXUWKHU� GDWH�RI� KHDULQJ�KDV�EHHQ�
communicated till date. The management, based on the discussion with the tax advisor believes that the 
case will be decided in favour of the Company.

 - In respect of tax year 2005, the Company had challenged the notice issued by Federal Board of Revenue 
under section 122(9) for further amendment of assessment under section 122(5A) of the Ordinance. The 
SHC has granted an interim stay order and the matter is still pending before the Court. The management, 
based on the discussion with the tax advisor believes that the case will be decided in favour of the Company.

 - An appeal is pending before the Commissioner Appeals Sindh Revenue Board, Karachi relating to sales 
tax on reinsurance. The Company obtained the interim stay order from Honorable High Court of Sindh, 
.DUDFKL�WLOO�WKH�MXGJHPHQW�SDVVHG�E\�&RPPLVVLRQHU�$SSHDOV�65%��7D[�DPRXQW�LQYROYHG�LV�5V������PLOOLRQ��
Based on the opinion of tax advisor, the management believes that the case will be decided in favour of the 
Company, hence no provision is recorded in the financial statements.

 - The Company received show cause notice from the office of Assistant Commissioner Sindh Revenue Board, 
Karachi for short payment of sales tax on reinsurance services obtained from July till December 2011 and 
-DQXDU\������WLOO�'HFHPEHU�������7KH�DGMXGLFDWLRQ�SURFHHGLQJV�DUH�XQGHU�SURFHVV��7KH�&RPSDQ\�REWDLQHG�
WKH�LQWHULP�VWD\�RUGHU�IURP�+RQRUDEOH�+LJK�&RXUW�RI�6LQGK��.DUDFKL��7D[�DPRXQW�LQYROYHG�LV�5V�����PLOOLRQ�
would arise. Based on the opinion of tax advisor, the management believes that the case will be decided in 
favour of the Company, hence no provision is recorded in the financial statements.

 - The Company has filed an appeal before the Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) against the order 
&RPPLVVLRQHU��$SSHDOV��ZKR�FRQILUPHG�WKH�RUGHU�SDVVHG�XQGHU�VHFWLRQ���������RI�WKH�,QFRPH�7D[�2UGLQDQFH��
������WKH�2UGLQDQFH���IRU�WKH�WD[�\HDU�������ZKHUHE\�DQ�XQMXVWLILHG�GHPDQG�DPRXQWLQJ�WR�5V������PLOOLRQ�
ZDV�UDLVHG�XQGHU�VHFWLRQ�������������RI�WKH�2UGLQDQFH��7KH�$SSHDO�KDV�QRW�\HW�EHHQ�KHDUG��7KH�UHFRYHU\�
of demand has been stayed vide an stay order issued by ATIR. Based on the opinion of tax advisor, the 
management believes that the case will be decided in favour of the Company, hence no provision is recorded 
in the financial statements.

� �� 'XULQJ�WKH�\HDU��D�VKRZ�FDXVH�QRWLFH�IRU�VKRUW�SD\PHQW�RI�VDOHV�WD[�5V���������PLOOLRQ�KDV�EHHQ�LVVXHG�E\�
Assistant Commissioner - Sindh Revenue Board (SRB), for the period from January 2014 to December 
�����DQG�-DQXDU\������WR�'HFHPEHU�������7KH�DGMXGLFDWLRQ�SURFHHGLQJ�DUH�XQGHU�SURFHVV�DQG�DQ�LQWHULP�
stay order has been obtained from the Honorable High Court of Sindh. Against in the case also, the Company 
believes on the opinion of tax advisor, the management believes that the case will be decided in favour of 
the Company, hence no provision is recorded in the financial statements.
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  Chief Executive Officer Directors Executives  Total
  Note 2022 2021  2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
� � � � � ��5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Fee –00 –00 530 ��� –00 –00� ���� ���
� 0DQDJHULDO�UHPXQHUDWLRQ�������� ������� ������� ������� ������� �������� ������� �������� �������
� %RQXV� ������ ������ ����� ����� ������� ������� ������� ������
 Retirement benefits ��� ��� 1,159 1,100 ������ ������ ������ �����
 Vehicle allowance 3,211 1,553 –00 –00 ������� ������� ������� �������
 Others –00 –00 1,398 2,482 –00 –00 1,398 2,482
� � ������� ������� ������ ������� �������� �������� �������� �������

� 1XPEHU�RI�SHUVRQV� �� �� �� �� ��� ��� ��� ��

 * During the year a new Chief Executive was appointed by the Board.     

33.1 Managerial remuneration includes basic salary, house rent allowance and utility allowance.

 The Chief Executive Officer, Executive director and other executives of the Company are entitled to medical 
reimbursement upto a prescribed limit as per Company's policy. They are also entitled to avail benefits under 
the un-funded approved gratuity scheme operated by the Company.

 In addition the Executive Director is provided with free use of Company maintained car in accordance with his 
entitlement.

33.2 Chief Executive Officer and the Directors of the Company are considered as the Key Management Personnel 
of the Company.

34 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

� 5HODWHG�SDUWLHV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\�FRPSULVH�RI�DVVRFLDWHG�FRPSDQLHV��FRPSDQLHV�ZLWK�FRPPRQ�GLUHFWRUV��PDMRU�
shareholders, staff retirement funds, directors and key management personnel.

 The balances with the related parties and transactions with them, other than those which have been specifically 
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, are as follows:

    2022 2021
     (Rupees in ' 000)
32. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

� 3URILW�DIWHU�WD[�IRU�WKH�\HDU� �������� � �������

     (Number of Shares)

� :HLJKWHG�DYHUDJH�QXPEHU�RI�RUGLQDU\�VKDUHV�RI�5V���HDFK� ������������ � �����������

     (Rupees)

� (DUQLQJV�SHU�VKDUH� ����� � ����

32.1 No figure for diluted earnings per share has been presented as the Company has not issued any instrument which 
would have an impact on earnings per share when exercised.

33. &203(16$7,21�2)�&+,()�(;(&87,9(�2)),&(5��',5(&7256�$1'�(;(&87,9(6���.(<��0$1$*(0(17 
PERSONNEL        

 The aggregate amount charged to in the financial statements, including all benefits, to the Chief Executive Officer, 
Directors and Executives of the Company are as follows:



 Transactions and balances with related parties
      2022 2021
     (Rupees in ' 000)   
 Transactions during the year with associated companies

� 3UHPLXP�ZULWWHQ� ��������� �������
� &ODLPV�SDLG� ��������� �������
 Dividend received 43,991  33,825
� 'LYLGHQG�SDLG� ������� �����
� ,QWHUHVW�UHFHLYHG�RQ�EDQN�DFFRXQWV� �������� �����
� %DQN�FKDUJHV� ����� ���
� )HHV�SDLG� ����� ���
 Lease rentals paid –00  22,504
 Security deposit paid –00�� �����
 Capital Expenditure –00�� ������
� ,QWHUHVW�H[SHQVH� ���� �����
 Donations 3,200  3,200
� 3UHPLXP�FHGHG�WR�UHLQVXUHU� ��������� �������
� &RPPLVVLRQ�LQFRPH� ��������� ������
� 5HLQVXUDQFH�UHFRYHULHV�UHFHLYHG� ��������� �������
          
 Balances with associated companies
� 3UHPLXP�GXH�EXW�XQSDLG� �������� �������
� &ODLPV�RXWVWDQGLQJ� �������� ������
� %DQN�EDODQFHV� ���������� �������� �
� ,QYHVWPHQW�KHOG� ���������� �������
� 5HLQVXUDQFH�SD\DEOH� ����������� ���������� �

 Transactions during the year with other related
   parties including key management personnel
� %URNHUDJH�H[SHQVHV�SDLG� ����� ���
 Contribution to the provident fund 11,439  10,442
 Remuneration of key management personnel 51,185  42,519 
 
 Balances with other related parties including
   key management personnel
 Premium due but unpaid –00  101  
� 5HFHLYDEOH�IURP�D�7UXVW� ������� ²00   

34.1 Remuneration to the key management personnel are in accordance with the terms of their employment (refer 
note 33). Contribution to the provident fund is in accordance with the Company's staff services rules and other 
transactions with the related parties are in accordance with the agreed terms.
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  Fire and Marine and   Other 
  property transport Motor  Health Classes Aggregate

 Premium receivable (inclusive of Federal
 Excise Duty, Federal Insurance Fee and
� $GPLQLVWUDWLYH�VXUFKDUJH�� �������������� ���������� ������������� ��������� ���������� ���������
� /HVV��)HGHUDO�([FLVH�'XW\� ������������ ��������� ����������� �������� ��������� �������
� �����)HGHUDO�,QVXUDQFH�)HH� ���������� �������� ���������� ������ �������� ������
 Gross written premium (inclusive of
� �����$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�6XUFKDUJH�� ������������ ���������� ������������� ��������� ���������� ���������

� �����*URVV�GLUHFW�SUHPLXP� ������������ ���������� ������������� ��������� ���������� ���������
� �����)DFXOWDWLYH�LQZDUG�SUHPLXP� ���������� ������ ������� ²00   –00��� �����
� �����$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�VXUFKDUJH� ���������� ��������� ���������� ����� �������� ������
� ��� �������� �� ���������� ������������� ��������� ���������� ���������

� ,QVXUDQFH�SUHPLXP�HDUQHG� ������������ ���������� ����������� ��������� ���������� ���������
� ,QVXUDQFH�SUHPLXP�FHGHG�WR�UHLQVXUHUV� ������������� ����������� ����������� �²00� � ������������ �������������
 Net insurance premium� ��������� �� ����������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ������������
 Premium deficiency reserve  –00    –00    –00��� ������� �²00��� �����
� &RPPLVVLRQ�LQFRPH� ��������� �� ���������� ���������� �²00��� ���������� ����������
 Net underwriting income� ��������� �� ����������� ����������� ���������� ����������� ������������
� ,QVXUDQFH�FODLPV� ��������� �� ����������� ����������� ���������� ����������� ������������
� ,QVXUDQFH�FODLPV�UHFRYHUHG�IURP�UHLQVXUHUV� ���������� �� ������������ ������������ �²00� � ����������� �����������
 Net Claims� �������� �� ����������� ����������� ���������� ���������� ����������
� &RPPLVVLRQ�H[SHQVH� ���������� �� ����������� ����������� �������� ����������� �����������
� 0DQDJHPHQW�H[SHQVHV� ���������� �� ������������ ������������ ���������� ����������� �����������
� 1HW�LQVXUDQFH�FODLPV�DQG�H[SHQVHV� ���������� �� ������������ ������������ ���������� ����������� �������������
 Underwriting result� ��������� �� ���������� ���������� ���������� ����������� �����������
� ,QYHVWPHQW�LQFRPH���XQDOORFDWHG� � � � � � � � � � � ���������
 Other income - unallocated            39,259
 Other expenses - unallocated            (11,314)
 Results of operating activities            131,859  
 Financial charges - unallocated            (3,282 )
 Loss from Window Takaful Operations 
� �����2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � � � � � � � � � � �������
 Profit before tax�� � � � � � � � � � � ����������

 
 Segment assets

 Allocated Assets
� 3UHPLXP�GXH�EXW�XQSDLG� ��������� �� ���������� ����������� �������� � ���������� ����������
� 3UHSDLG�UHLQVXUDQFH�SUHPLXP�FHGHG� ��������� �� ���������� ���������� �²00��� ���������� ����������
� 5HLQVXUDQFH�UHFRYHULHV�DJDLQVW�RXWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV� ��������� �� ���������� ���������� �²00��� ���������� ����������
� 6DOYDJH�UHFRYHULHV�RXWVWDQGLQJ� ����� �� ���������� ��������� �²00    58    38,933  
� 'HIHUUHG�FRPPLVVLRQ�H[SHQVH� �������� �� ��������� ���������� ������ ���������� ��������
� �� ���������� � �������� � �������� � ������� � ��������� ���������

 Unallocated Assets
� )L[HG�$VVHWV��DW�FRVW�OHVV�GHSUHFLDWLRQ� � � � � � � � � � � ������
� $PRXQWV�GXH�IURP�RWKHU�LQVXUHUV��UHLQVXUHUV� � � � � � � � � � � �������
� &DVK�DQG�&DVK�HTXLYDOHQWV� � � � � � � � � � � �������
 Loans - secured, considered good           40,319
� ,QYHVWPHQWV� � � � � � � � � � � ���������
� $FFUXHG�LQYHVWPHQW�LQFRPH� � � � � � � � � � � �����
 Receivable against sale of investments           85,483
� $GYDQFHV��GHSRVLWV�DQG�SUHSD\PHQWV� � � � � � � � � � � ������
 Taxation provision less payments           5,835
 Prepayments           24,145
� �� � � � � � � � � � � ���������
� 7RWDO�$VVHWV� � � � � � � � � � � ���������
� 8QDOORFDWHG�DVVHWV�RI�*HQHUDO�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � � � � � � � � �������
� �� � � � � � � � � � � ���������

35. SEGMENT REPORTING

(Rupees in '000)

2022
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  Fire and Marine and   Other 
  property transport Motor  Health Classes Aggregate

 Allocated Liabilities
� 2XWVWDQGLQJ�&ODLPV� ��������� �� ����������� ����������� ������� � ����������� ����������
� 8QHDUQHG�3UHPLXP� ��������� �� ���������� ����������� ��������� ����������� ������������
� 8QHDUQHG�5HLQVXUDQFH�&RPPLVVLRQ� ��������� �� ��������� ���������� �²00��� ���������� ����������
 Premium Deficiency Reserve  –00    –00    –00��� ��������� �²00��� ��������

� �� ���������� � �������� � �������� � ������� � ��������� ���������

 Unallocated Liabilities
� 3UHPLXPV�UHFHLYHG�LQ�DGYDQFH� � � � � � � � � � � ������
� $PRXQWV�GXH�WR�RWKHU�LQVXUHUV��UHLQVXUHUV� � � � � � � � � � � �������
 Staff retirement benefits           130,311
� 'HIHUUHG�WD[� � � � � � � � � � � ������
 Financial lease liability           30,908
� 2WKHU�FUHGLWRUV�DQG�DFFUXDOV� � � � � � � � � � � �������
� �� � � � � � � � � � � �������
 
� 7RWDO�/LDELOLWLHV� � � � � � � � � � � ���������
� 8QDOORFDWHG�OLDELOLWLHV�RI�*HQHUDO�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � � � � � � � � ������
� �� � � � � � � � � � � ���������

(Rupees in '000)

2022
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  Fire and Marine and  Group Other 
  property transport Motor  Hospitalisation Classes Aggregate

 Premium receivable (inclusive of Federal
 Excise Duty, Federal Insurance Fee and
� $GPLQLVWUDWLYH�VXUFKDUJH�� ������������ ���������� ����������� ��������� ���������� ���������
� /HVV��)HGHUDO�([FLVH�'XW\� ������������ ��������� ����������� �������� ��������� �������
� �����)HGHUDO�,QVXUDQFH�)HH� ���������� �������� ��������� ������ �������� ������
 Gross written premium (inclusive of
� �����$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�6XUFKDUJH�� ������������ ���������� ����������� ��������� ���������� ���������

� �����*URVV�GLUHFW�SUHPLXP� ������������ ���������� ����������� ��������� ���������� ���������
� �����)DFXOWDWLYH�LQZDUG�SUHPLXP� ����������� ������ ��������� ²00��� ����� ������
� �����$GPLQLVWUDWLYH�VXUFKDUJH� ���������� ��������� ���������� ����� �������� ������
� ��� �������� �� ���������� ����������� ��������� ���������� ���������

� ,QVXUDQFH�SUHPLXP�HDUQHG� ������������ ���������� ����������� ��������� ���������� ���������
� ,QVXUDQFH�SUHPLXP�FHGHG�WR�UHLQVXUHUV� ������������� ����������� ����������� �²00� � ����������� �������������
 Net insurance premium� �������� �� ����������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ����������
 Premium deficiency reserve  –00    –00    –00��� ��������� �²00��� ��������
� &RPPLVVLRQ�LQFRPH� ��������� �� ���������� ���������� �²00    14,054    258,842  
 Net underwriting income� ��������� �� ����������� ����������� ���������� ���������� ������������
� ,QVXUDQFH�FODLPV� ��������� �� ����������� ����������� ���������� ����������� ������������
� ,QVXUDQFH�FODLPV�UHFRYHUHG�IURP�UHLQVXUHUV� ���������� �� ����������� ������������ �²00� � ����������� �����������
 Net Claims� �������� �� ���������� ����������� ���������� ���������� ����������
� &RPPLVVLRQ�H[SHQVH� ���������� �� ����������� ����������� ������� ����������� �����������
� 0DQDJHPHQW�H[SHQVHV� ���������� �� ����������� ������������ ���������� ����������� �����������
� 1HW�LQVXUDQFH�FODLPV�DQG�H[SHQVHV� ���������� �� ������������ ������������ ���������� ����������� �����������
 Underwriting result� ���������� �� ���������� ���������� ���������� ����������� �����������
 Investment income - unallocated            141,031 
� 2WKHU�LQFRPH���XQDOORFDWHG� � � � � � � � � � � �������
� 2WKHU�H[SHQVHV���XQDOORFDWHG� � � � � � � � � � � ����������
 Results of operating activities� � � � � � � � � � � ����������
 Financial charges - unallocated            (10,924 )
 Loss from Window Takaful Operations 
� �����2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � � � � � � � � � � ����������
 Profit before tax�� � � � � � � � � � � ����������

 
 Segment assets

 Allocated Assets
� 3UHPLXP�GXH�EXW�XQSDLG� ��������� �� ����������� ����������� ������� � ���������� ����������
� 3UHSDLG�UHLQVXUDQFH�SUHPLXP�FHGHG� ��������� �� ���������� ���������� �²00��� ���������� ����������
� 5HLQVXUDQFH�UHFRYHULHV�DJDLQVW�RXWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV� ��������� �� ���������� ���������� �²00��� ���������� ����������
� 6DOYDJH�UHFRYHULHV�RXWVWDQGLQJ� �������� �� ���������� ���������� �²00��� ������ ���������
� 'HIHUUHG�FRPPLVVLRQ�H[SHQVH� �������� �� ��������� ���������� ������� ���������� ��������
� �� �������� � �������� � �������� � ������ � ��������� ���������

 Unallocated Assets
� )L[HG�$VVHWV��DW�FRVW�OHVV�GHSUHFLDWLRQ� � � � � � � � � � � ������
� $PRXQWV�GXH�IURP�RWKHU�LQVXUHUV��UHLQVXUHUV� � � � � � � � � � � �������
� &DVK�DQG�&DVK�HTXLYDOHQWV� � � � � � � � � � � ������
� /RDQV���VHFXUHG��FRQVLGHUHG�JRRG� � � � � � � � � � � ������
� ,QYHVWPHQWV� � � � � � � � � � � ���������
 Accrued investment income           3,833
 Advances, deposits and prepayments           114,109
� 7D[DWLRQ�SURYLVLRQ�OHVV�SD\PHQWV� � � � � � � � � � � �����
 Prepayments           25,081
� �� � � � � � � � � � � ���������
� 7RWDO�$VVHWV� � � � � � � � � � � ���������
� 8QDOORFDWHG�DVVHWV�RI�*HQHUDO�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � � � � � � � � ������
� �� � � � � � � � � � � ���������

(Rupees in '000)

2021



37 MANAGEMENT OF INSURANCE RISK AND FINANCIAL RISK

 The Company issue contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. This section summarises 
the insurance risks and the way the Company manages them.
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  Fire and Marine and   Other 
  property transport Motor  Health Classes Aggregate

 Allocated Liabilities
� 2XWVWDQGLQJ�&ODLPV� ��������� �� ���������� ����������� ������� � ����������� ����������
� 8QHDUQHG�3UHPLXP� ��������� �� ���������� ����������� ��������� ���������� ������������
 Unearned Reinsurance Commission  103,214    12,392    34,404    –00��� ���������� ����������
 Premium Deficiency Reserve  –00    –00    –00��� ��������� �²00��� ��������

� �� �������� � �������� � �������� � ������� � ��������� ���������

 Unallocated Liabilities
 Premiums received in advance           15,992
� $PRXQWV�GXH�WR�RWKHU�LQVXUHUV��UHLQVXUHUV� � � � � � � � � � � �������
 Staff retirement benefits           130,859
 Taxation - provision less payments           –00
 Deferred tax           82,023
� )LQDQFLDO�OHDVH�OLDELOLW\� � � � � � � � � � � ������
� 2WKHU�FUHGLWRUV�DQG�DFFUXDOV� � � � � � � � � � � �������
� �� � � � � � � � � � � �������
 
 Total Liabilities           2,901,181
� 8QDOORFDWHG�OLDELOLWLHV�RI�*HQHUDO�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � � � � � � � � ������
� �� � � � � � � � � � � ���������

���� 029(0(17�,1�,19(670(176

  Available-for-Sale
  Rs. '000

 As at January 01, 2021 1,315,548
� $GGLWLRQV� ���������
 Transfer due to reclassification –000
 Disposals (sale and redemption) (932,129 )
� )DLU�YDOXH�QHW�JDLQV��H[FOXGLQJ�QHW�UHDOL]HG�JDLQV�� ����������
 Impairment of investments (208 )
 Amortisation of premium / discount 824
 As at December 31, 2021� ���������

� $GGLWLRQV� ���������
� 'LVSRVDOV��VDOH�DQG�UHGHPSWLRQ�� ������������
 Fair value net gains (excluding net realized gains) (188,243 )
� ,PSDLUPHQW�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV� ���������
 Amortisation of premium / discount 12,455
 As at December 31, 2022� ���������

(Rupees in '000)

2021



37.1 Insurance risk management

37.1.1 Insurance risk

 The risk under any insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of 
the amount of compensation to the insured. Generally most insurance contracts carry the insurance risk for a 
period of one year, except that in case of marine insurance policies, these may be of lesser periods.

 The Company accepts insurance through issuance of general insurance contracts. For these general insurance 
contracts the most significant risks arise from fire, atmospheric disturbance, earthquakes, transit, theft and 
third party liabilities, etc.

 Risk associated with general insurance contracts includes the reasonable possibility of significant loss as well 
as the frequent occurrence of the insured events. This has been managed by having in place underwriting 
strategy, reinsurance arrangements and proactive claim handling procedures. 

37.1.2 Frequency and severity of claims

 Risk associated with general insurance contracts includes the reasonable possibility of significant loss as well 
as the frequent occurrence of the insured events. This has been managed by having in place underwriting 
strategy, reinsurance arrangements and proactive claim handling procedures. 

� 7KH� UHLQVXUDQFH�DUUDQJHPHQWV�DJDLQVW�PDMRU� ULVN� H[SRVXUH� LQFOXGH�H[FHVV�RI� ORVV�� TXRWD� VKDUH�� VXUSOXV�
DUUDQJHPHQWV�DQG�FDWDVWURSKLF�FRYHUDJH��7KH�REMHFWLYH�RI�KDYLQJ�VXFK�DUUDQJHPHQWV�LV�WR�PLWLJDWH�DGYHUVH�
impacts of severe losses on Company's net retentions.

37.1.3 Uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

 Claims on general insurance contracts are payable on a claim occurrence basis. The Company is liable for all 
insured events as per terms and condition of the insurance contract.

 The key source of estimation uncertainty at the financial statement date relates to valuation of outstanding 
FODLPV��ZKHWKHU�UHSRUWHG�RU�QRW��DQG�LQFOXGHV�H[SHFWHG�FODLPV�VHWWOHPHQW�FRVWV��&RQVLGHUDEOH�MXGJPHQW�E\�
management is required in the estimation of amounts due to policyholders arising from claims made under 
insurance contracts. Such estimates are necessarily based on assumptions about several factors involving 
YDU\LQJ�DQG�SRVVLEO\� VLJQLILFDQW� GHJUHHV�RI� MXGJPHQW� DQG�XQFHUWDLQW\� DQG�DFWXDO� UHVXOWV�PD\�GLIIHU� IURP�
PDQDJHPHQW·V�HVWLPDWHV�UHVXOWLQJ�LQ�IXWXUH�FKDQJHV�LQ�HVWLPDWHG�OLDELOLWLHV��4XDOLWDWLYH�MXGJPHQWV�DUH�XVHG�WR�
assess the extent to which past trends may not apply in the future, for example one-off occurrence, changes 
in market factors such as public attitude to claiming and economic conditions. Judgment is further used to 
DVVHVV�WKH�H[WHQW�WR�ZKLFK�H[WHUQDO�IDFWRUV�VXFK�DV�MXGLFLDO�GHFLVLRQV�DQG�JRYHUQPHQW�OHJLVODWLRQ�DIIHFW�WKH�
estimates.

 In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the financial 
statement date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) at the financial 
statement date. The details of estimation of outstanding claims (including IBNR) are given under note 3.20.

 There are several variable factors which affect the amount and timing of recognised claim liabilities. The 
Company takes all reasonable measures to mitigate the factors affecting the amount and timing of claim 
settlements. However, uncertainty prevails with estimated claim liabilities and it is likely that final settlement of 
these liabilities may be different from initial recognised amount. Similarly, the provision for claims incurred but 
not reported is based on historic reporting pattern of the claims; hence, actual amount of incurred but not 
reported claims may differ from the amount estimated. Outstanding claims are reviewed on a periodic basis.

37.1.4 Key assumptions

 The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to 
result in neutral estimates of the most likely or expected income. The nature of the business makes it very 
difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. 
Each notified claim is assessed on a separate case to case basis with due regard to the claim circumstances, 
information available from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Core estimates are 
reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information is available.
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� 7KH�HVWLPDWLRQ�RI�,%15�LV�JHQHUDOO\�VXEMHFW�WR�D�JUHDWHU�GHJUHH�RI�XQFHUWDLQW\�WKDQ�WKH�HVWLPDWLRQ�RI�WKH�FRVW�
of settling claims already notified to the Company, in which case information about the claim event is available. 
The estimation process takes into account the past claims reporting pattern and details of reinsurance programs.

 The premium liabilities have been determined such that the total premium liability provisions (unearned premium 
reserve and premium deficiency reserve) would be sufficient to service the future expected claims and expenses 
likely to occur on the unexpired policies as of financial statement date. The expected future liability is determined 
using estimates and assumptions based on the experience during the expired period of the contracts and 
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable.

������� 6(16,7,9,7<�$1$/<6,6

� 7KH�ULVNV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�LQVXUDQFH�FRQWUDFWV�DUH�FRPSOH[�DQG�VXEMHFW�WR�D�QXPEHU�RI�YDULDEOHV�ZKLFK�
impacts the quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Company makes various assumptions and techniques based 
on past claims development experience. This includes indications such as average claims cost, ultimate claims 
numbers and expected loss ratios. The Company considers that the liability for claims recognized in the financial 
statement is adequate. However, actual experience may differ from the expected outcome.

 The claim liabilities are sensitive to the incidence of insured events and severity / size of claims. As the Company 
enters into short term insurance contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of changes in market 
conditions on unexpired risks. However, some results of sensitivity testing are set out below, showing the 
impact on profit before tax net of reinsurance. The impact of 10% increase / decrease in incidence of insured 
events on profit before tax and shareholder's equity is as follows:

   Underwriting results/
   profit before tax Shareholder·s equity
   2022 2021 2022 2021
� � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����� �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
 ,PSDFW�RI�FKDQJH�LQ�FODLPV�OLDELOLWLHV������������

� )LUH�DQG�SURSHUW\� ������� ������� ������� ������
� 0DULQH�DQG�WUDQVSRUW� �������� ������� ������� ������
� 0RWRU� �� �� �������� �������� �������� �������
 Group hospitalisation� ������� ������� ������� ����
� 2WKHU�FODVVHV� �� ������� ������� ������� ������               
� � �� �� �������� �������� �������� ������

37.1.6 Concentration of risk

 To optimise benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is of 
extreme importance. There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation 
of risk with reference to the geographical location, the most important of which is risk survey.

 Risk surveys are carried out on a regular basis for the evaluation of physical hazards associated with the 
commercial / industrial / residential occupation of the insured. Details regarding the fire separation / segregation 
with respect to the manufacturing process, storage, utilities, etc. are extracted from the layout plan of the 
insured facility. Such details are formed part of the reports which are made available to the underwriters / 
reinsurance personnel for their evaluation. Reference is made to the standard construction specification as 
laid down by IAP (Insurance Association of Pakistan). For instance, the presence of perfect party walls, double 
ILUH�SURRI�LURQ�GRRUV��SK\VLFDO�VHSDUDWLRQ�EHWZHHQ�WKH�EXLOGLQJ�ZLWKLQ�DQ�LQVXUHG·V�SUHPLVHV��,W�LV�EDVLFDOO\�WKH�
property contained within an area which is separated by another property by sufficient distance to confine 
insured damage from uncontrolled fire and explosion under the most adverse conditions to that one area.

 For marine risks, complete underwriting details such as sums insured, mode of transport (air / inland transit), 
vessel identification, sailing dates, origin and destination of the shipments, per carry limits, accumulation of 
sum insured on a single voyage etc. are taken into consideration.
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 The ability to manage catastrophic risk is tied managing the density of risk within a particular area. For 
catastrophic aggregates, the system assigns precise geographic CRESTA (Catastrophe Risk Evaluating and 
standardising Target Accumulations) codes with reference to the accumulation of sum insured in force at any 
particular location against natural perils.

 A number of proportional and non-proportional reinsurance arrangements are in place to protect the net 
account. Apart from the adequate event limit which is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery 
from the proportional treaty, any loss over and above the said limit would be recovered from the non-proportional 
treaty which is very much in line with the risk management philosophy of the Company.

 The Company minimizes its exposure to significant losses by obtaining reinsurance from a number of reinsurers, 
who are dispersed over several geographical regions.

 The concentration of risk by type of contracts based on single risk with maximum exposure is summarised below.

   Gross sum insured Reinsurance Net
   2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
   (Rupees in ' 000)

� )LUH�DQG�SURSHUW\� ����������� ���������� ����������� ���������� ����� 3,500
� 0DULQH�DQG�WUDQVSRUW� ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ������ �����
� 0RWRU� � �������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������
 Group hospitalisation 1,500 1,500 –00 –00 1,500 1,500
� 2WKHU�FODVVHV� �������� �������� �������� �������� ������ �����

� � � � ����������� ����������� ����������� ����������� ������� ������

38 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
 The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the 

Company's risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of 
financial instruments:

 - Credit risk
 - Liquidity risk
 - Market risk
 Risk management framework
� 7KH�&RPSDQ\·V� ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW� SROLFLHV�DUH�HVWDEOLVKHG� WR� LGHQWLI\� DQG�DQDO\VH� WKH� ULVNV� IDFHG�E\� WKH�

Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the 
&RPSDQ\·V�DFWLYLWLHV�

38.1 Credit risk
 Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge 

its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control credit risk 
by monitoring credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a large number of counterparties in various 
industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

38.1.1 Management of credit risk
 The Company's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board 

of Directors. Credit risk is managed and controlled by the management of the Company in the following manner:
 -  Credit rating and / or credit worthiness of the counter party is taken into account along with  the financial 

background so as to minimize the risk of default. Collaterals are obtained wherever appropriate / relevant.
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 -  The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss to the Company is mitigated 
by a periodic review of the credit ratings, financial statements, credit worthiness, etc. on a regular basis 
and makes provision against those balances considered doubtful of recovery.

 -  Loans given to employees are deductible from the salary of the employees.
 - Cash is held with reputable banks only.
 To reduce the credit risk, the management continuously reviews and monitors the credit exposure towards 

the policyholders and other insurers/reinsurers and makes provision against those balances considered 
doubtful of recovery.

38.1.2 Exposure to credit risk
 In summary, compared to the amount included in statement of assets and liabilities, the maximum exposure 

to credit risk as at December 31, is as follows:
   2022 2021
   Balance as per Maximum Balance as per Maximum
   the financial exposure the financial exposure
   statement  statement
   (Rupees in ' 000)

 Investment in equity securities 821,124 –00 1,210,429 –00
� ,QYHVWPHQW�LQ�GHEW�VHFXULWLHV� �������� �������� �������� ²00
� /RDQV��GHSRVLWV�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV� �������� �������� �������� �������
� ,QVXUDQFH��UHLQVXUDQFH�UHFHLYDEOHV� �������� �������� ���������� ���������
� 5HLQVXUDQFH�UHFRYHULHV�DJDLQVW�RXWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV� �������� �������� �������� �������
� 6DOYDJH�UHFRYHULHV�DFFUXHG� ������� ������� ������� ������
� %DODQFHV�ZLWK�EDQNV� �������� �������� ������� ������
� :LQGRZ�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQV� ������� ������� ������� ������
� � � � ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������

� ,QYHVWPHQWV�RI�5V����������PLOOLRQ��������5V����������PLOOLRQ��LV�QRW�FRQVLGHUHG�WR�EH�H[SRVHG�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN��

38.1.3 Past due / impaired assets
 Age analysis of premium due but unpaid at the reporting date was:    
     2022 2021
   Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
   (Rupees in ' 000)

� � � � 8SWR���\HDU� �������� ²00� �������� ²000
� � � � ����\HDUV� ������� ²00� ������� ������
� � � � ����\HDUV� ������� ������� ������ �����
    Over 3 years 1,324 1,324 –00 –00
� � � � 7RWDO� �������� ������� �������� ������

 Age analysis of amount due from other insurers/ reinsurers at the reporting date was:
   2022 2021
   Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
   (Rupees in ' 000)

� � � 8SWR���\HDU� ��������� ²00 405,454 –00
   1-2 years 98,442  –00 91,501  –00
� � � 2YHU���\HDUV� �������� ������� ������� �����
� � � 7RWDO� ��������� ������� �������� �����
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 Age analysis of reinsurance and other recoveries against outstanding claims at the reporting date was:

   2022 2021
   Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
   (Rupees in ' 000)

� � � 8SWR���\HDU� �������� ²000� �������� ²000
   1-2 years 31,845   –000� ��������� ²000
� � � 2YHU���\HDUV� ���������� ²000� ��������� ²000
� � � 7RWDO� ���������� ²000� ��������� ²000

Habib Insurance Company Limited

 In respect of the aforementioned insurance and reinsurance assets, the Company takes into account its past history / track 
record of recoveries and financial position of the counterparties while creating provision for impairment. Further, reinsurance 
recoveries are made when corresponding liabilities are settled.

38.1.4 Credit Rating and Collateral

 The credit quality of Company's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit rating as follows:

   Short/ Long Rating 2022 2021
   term Rating Agency (Rupees in ' 000) 

� � �� � � +DELE�%DQN�/LPLWHG� $�����$$$� -&5�9,6� ������� ������
      Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A1+ / AA+ PACRA 50 50
� � �� � � %DQN�$/�+DELE�/LPLWHG� $�����$$$� 3$&5$� �������� ������
� � �� � � � � � �������� ������
38.1.5 The Company enters into re-insurance / co-insurance arrangements with re-insurers / other insurers having sound credit 

ratings accorded by reputed credit rating agencies. The Company is required to comply with the requirements of circular no. 
����������GDWHG�2FWREHU����������LVVXHG�E\�6(&3�ZKLFK�UHTXLUHV�DQ�LQVXUDQFH�FRPSDQ\�WR�SODFH�DW�OHDVW�����RI�WKHLU�
outward treaty cessions with reinsurers rated 'A' or above by Standard & Poor's with the balance being placed with entities 
rated at least 'BBB' by reputable ratings agency. An analysis of all reinsurance assets relating to outward treaty cessions 
recognised by the rating of the entity from which it is due is as follows:    

   Amount due Reinsurance Prepaid 2022 2021
   from other recoveries reinsurance
   insurers /  against premium
   reinsurers outstanding ceded
    claims   
� � � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

      A or above 
� � �� � � ���LQFOXGLQJ�35&/�� �������� �������� �������� ���������� ���������

38.1.6 Concentration of credit risk

 Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. As a result, 
any change in economic, political or other conditions would effect their ability to meet contractual obligations in similar 
manner. The company manages concentration of credit risk through diversification of activities among individuals, groups 
and industry segments.



 Sector-wise analysis of premium due but unpaid at the reporting date was:     
       

   December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

� � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶������ �� �5XSHHV�LQ�¶������� �
     
    
� $XWRPRELOHV� � �������� ����� �������� ����
� %DQNV��PRGDUDED�DQG�OHDVLQJ� ������ ���� �������� ����
� 7H[WLOH�DQG�FRPSRVLWH� �������� ����� ������� ����
 Sugar� � � ������� ���� ������� ���
� &KHPLFDOV�DQG�DOOLHG�LQGXVWULHV� ������� ���� ������� ���
� *ODVV��FHUDPLFV�DQG�WLOHV� ������� ����� ²00 –
� &DEOH��HQJLQHHULQJ�DQG�VWHHO� ������ ���� ������ ���
� )RRG�DQG�FRQIHFWLRQDU\� ������� ���� ������� ���
� 3KDUPDFHXWLFDOV� ������� ���� ������ ���
� 2WKHUV�� � �������� ����� �������� ����

� � � � �������� ���� �������� ���

38.1.7 Settlement risk

� 7KH�FRPSDQ\·V�DFWLYLWLHV�PD\�JLYH�ULVH�WR�ULVN�DW�WKH�WLPH�RI�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�WUDQVDFWLRQV��6HWWOHPHQW�ULVN�LV�WKH�
risk of loss due to the failure of an entity to honour its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as 
contractually agreed on sale.

 This risk is addressed more or less in accordance with the parameters set out in the credit risk management 
above.

38.1.8 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they 
fall due. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its liabilities 
earlier than expected or may face difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial 
liabilities as they fall due.

38.1.9 Management of liquidity risk

 7KH�&RPSDQ\·V�DSSURDFK�WR�PDQDJLQJ�OLTXLGLW\�LV�WR�HQVXUH��DV�IDU�DV�SRVVLEOH��WKDW�LW�ZLOO�DOZD\V�KDYH�VXIILFLHQW 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable 
ORVVHV�RU�ULVNLQJ�GDPDJH�WR�WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�UHSXWDWLRQ��7KH�&RPSDQ\·V�OLTXLGLW\�PDQDJHPHQW�LQYROYHV�SURMHFWLQJ 
cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to fulfil its obligation; monitoring financial 
statement liquidity ratios against internal and external requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

38.1.10 Maturity analysis for financial assets and liabilities

 The table below analyses the Company's financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based 
on the remaining period at the financial statement date to maturity date and represents the undiscounted cash 
flows. The information given below is based on contractual reprising or maturity dates, whichever is earlier.
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     December 31, 2022
   Interest/   Non-Interest/
   Markup bearing   Non-markup bearing
  Maturity Maturity  Maturity  Maturity  
  upto after Sub upto after Sub
  one year one year Total one year one year Total Total
� � � � � �5V��LQ�¶����

 FINANCIAL ASSETS
 Investments
    Equity securities –00 –00 –00 821,124 – 821,124 821,124
� ���*RYHUQPHQW�VHFXULWLHV� �������� ������� �������� ²00 – –00� �������
� ���2WKHU�GHEW�VHFXULWLHV� �������� ²00� �������� ²00 – –00� �������
� /RDQV�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV� ������� ������� ������� �������� ²� �������� �������
 Insurance / reinsurance receivables –00 –00 –00� �������� ²� �������� �������
 Reinsurance recoveries against
    outstanding claims –00 –00 –00� �������� ²� �������� �������
    Salvage recoveries accrued –00 –00 –00 38,933 – 38,933 38,933
� &DVK�DQG�EDQN�EDODQFHV� �������� ²00� �������� ������� ²� ������� �������
 Window Takaful Operations - 
� ���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� ²00 –00 –00� ������� ²� ������� ������

� $V�DW�'HFHPEHU���������� ���������� ������� ���������� ���������� ²� ���������� ���������

 
 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

 Outstanding claims including IBNR –00 –00 –00 –00� �������� �������� �������
 Lease liability against right of use asset� ������� ������� ������� ²00 – –00 30,908
 Insurance / reinsurance payables –00 –00 –00� �������� ²� �������� �������
 Other creditors and accruals –00 –00 –00 258,343 – 258,343 258,343
 Financial Liabilities - OPF –00 –00 –00� ������� ²� ������� ������
� $V�DW�'HFHPEHU���������� ������� ������� ������� �������� �������� ���������� ���������



64

Habib Insurance Company Limited

     December 31, 2021
   Interest/   Non-Interest/
   Markup bearing   Non-markup bearing
  Maturity Maturity  Maturity  Maturity  
  upto after Sub upto after Sub
  one year one year Total one year one year Total Total
� � � � � �5V��LQ�¶����

 FINANCIAL ASSETS
 Investments
    Equity securities –00 –00 –00 1,210,429 – 1,210,429 1,210,429
� ���*RYHUQPHQW�VHFXULWLHV� �������� ������� �������� ²00 – –00 183,188
� /RDQV�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV� ������� ������� ������� ������� ²� ������� �������
 Insurance / reinsurance receivables –00 –00 –00 1,181,492 – 1,181,492 1,181,492
 Reinsurance recoveries against
    outstanding claims –00 –00 –00� �������� ²� �������� �������
 Salvage recoveries accrued –00 –00 –00� ������� ²� ������� ������
� &DVK�DQG�EDQN�EDODQFHV� ������� ²00� ������� ������� ²� ������� ������
 Window Takaful Operations - 
� ���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� ²00 –00 –00� ������� ²� ������� ������

� $V�DW�'HFHPEHU���������� �������� ������� �������� ���������� ²� ���������� ���������

 
 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 

 Outstanding claims including IBNR –00 –00 –00 –00� �������� �������� �������
� /HDVH�OLDELOLW\�DJDLQVW�ULJKW�RI�XVH�DVVHW�������� ������� ������� ²00 – –00� ������
 Insurance / reinsurance payables –00 –00 –00� �������� ²� �������� �������
 Other creditors and accruals –00 –00 –00 253,212 – 253,212 253,212
 Financial Liabilities - OPF –00 –00 –00 22,408 – 22,408 22,408
� $V�DW�'HFHPEHU���������� ������� ������� ������� �������� �������� ���������� ���������

 Details of the interest rates on interest bearing financial instruments are given in the respective notes. Besides please also refer note 38.3.1.

38.2 Fair value of financial instruments

 Fair value in the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).

 Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement of assets and liabilities 
date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and financial liabilities is considered not significantly different from book value.

 The following table shows financial instruments recognized at fair value, analysed between those whose fair value is based on:

 Level 1: quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

 Level 2: those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
  (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

 Level 3: those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
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    December 31, 2022
 Available Loans & Other Financial Total Fair value measurement using 
 for sale receivable financial liabilities  
   assets   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
� � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
 Equity securities - quoted 802,514   –00  –00   –00  802,514  802,514  –00  –00
� 0XWXDO�IXQG�XQLWV� �����   –00  –00   –00� � ������� ²00� � ������ � ²00
� 0RGDUDED�FHUWLILFDWHV� ��������� ²00  –00   –00� � ��������� ������� � ²00  –00
� 'HEW�VHFXULWLHV� �������   –00  –00   –00� � ���������� ²00� � �������� � ²00
� 2WKHU�GHEW�VHFXULWLHV� �������   –00  –00   –00� � ���������� ²00� � �������� � ²00

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loans, deposits and other receivables –00��� ����������� ²00    –00��� ����������� �²00  –00  –00 
Insurance / reinsurance receivable –00 �� �������� � ²00   –00� � ���������� ²00  –00  –00
Reinsurance recoveries against  
  outstanding claims –00��� ����������� ²00    –00��� ����������� �²00  –00  –00 
Salvage recoveries accrued –00   38,933   –00    –00    38,933    –00  –00  –00
Cash and bank balances –00    –00��� ���������� �²00��� ����������� �²00  –00  –00
Total financail assets of Window Takaful 
� 2SHUDWLRQV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� ²00   –00� � ������� � �²00� � ��������� ²00  –00  –00 

� � ������������ ������������� ���������� �²00��� ������������� ��������� � �������  –00 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Outstanding claims including IBNR –00    –00   –00��� ������������� ������������� �²00  –00  –00 
Lease liability against right of use asset –00    –00   –00    (30,908 )   (30,908 )   –00  –00  –00 
Insurance / reinsurance payables –00    –00   –00��� ������������� ������������� �²00  –00  –00 
Other creditors and accruals –00    –00   –00    (258,343 )   (258,343 )   –00  –00  –00
Total financial liabilities of Window Takaful 
� 2SHUDWLRQV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� ²00   –00  –00� � ����������� ����������� ²00  –00  –00 
  –00    –00   –00������������������ ��������������� �²00  –00  –00 



    December 31, 2021
 Available Loans & Other Financial Total Fair value measurement using
 for sale receivable financial liabilities  
   assets   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
    �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
� (TXLW\�VHFXULWLHV���TXRWHG� ���������   –00  –00   –00� � ����������� ���������� � ²00  –00
 Mutual fund units 2,382   –00  –00   –00  2,382  –00  2,382  –00
� 0RGDUDED�FHUWLILFDWHV� ������   –00  –00   –00� � ��������� ������� � ²00  –00
 Debt securities 183,188   –00  –00   –00   183,188  –00  183,188  –00

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loans, deposits and other receivables –00    141,902   –00    –00    141,902    –00  –00  –00 
Insurance / reinsurance receivable –00   1,181,492  –00   –00   1,181,492  –00  –00  –00
Reinsurance recoveries against  
  outstanding claims –00��� ����������� ²00    –00��� ����������� �²00  –00  –00 
Salvage recoveries accrued –00��� ���������� ²00    –00��� ���������� �²00  –00  –00
Cash and bank balances –00    –00��� ��������� �²00��� ���������� �²00  –00  –00
Total financial assets of Window Takaful 
� 2SHUDWLRQV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� ������   –00  15,823   –00� � ��������� ²00  –00  –00 
� � ������������ ������������� ���������� �²00��� ������������� ����������� � �������  –00 

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Outstanding claims including IBNR –00    –00   –00��� ������������� ������������� �²00  –00  –00 
Lease liability against right of use asset –00    –00   –00��� ������������ ������������ �²00  –00  –00 
Insurance / reinsurance payables –00    –00   –00��� ������������� ������������� �²00  –00  –00 
Other creditors and accruals –00    –00   –00    (253,212 )   (253,212 )   –00  –00  –00
Total financial liabilities of Window Takaful 
� 2SHUDWLRQV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� ²00   –00  –00   (22,408 )  (22,408 ) –00  –00  –00 
  –00    –00   –00������������������ ��������������� �²00  –00  –00 
 
The fair value of the investments have been determined in the manner explained in note number 3.12.2.2. 
The carrying values of remaining financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate 
to their fair value.
38.3 Market risk
 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange rates 

DQG�FUHGLW�VSUHDGV��QRW�UHODWLQJ�WR�FKDQJHV�LQ�WKH�REOLJRU·V�LVVXHU·V�FUHGLW�VWDQGLQJ��ZLOO�HIIHFW�WKH�FRPSDQ\·V�
LQFRPH�RU� WKH�YDOXH�RI� LWV�KROGLQJV�RI� ILQDQFLDO� LQVWUXPHQWV��7KH�REMHFWLYH�RI�PDUNHW� ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW� LV� WR�
manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk.

 All transactions are carried in Pak Rupees therefore, the Company is not exposed to currency risk. However 
the Company is exposed to interest rate risk and other price risk.

38.3.1 Interest rate risk
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate exposure arises from balances held in profit and loss sharing 
accounts with reputable banks, staff loans and government securities. The Company limits interest rate risk by 
monitoring changes in interest rates. Other risk management procedures are the same as those mentioned in 
the credit risk management.

38.3.1.1 Sensitivity analysis
� $W�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW�GDWH�WKH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�SURILOH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�LQWHUHVW�EHDULQJ�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�

are as follows:

Habib Insurance Company Limited
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   2022 2021 2022 2021
 Financial assets� (IIHFWLYH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH��LQ���� �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
    
� $VVHWV�VXEMHFW�WR�IL[HG�UDWH�
� ��3DNLVWDQ�,QYHVWPHQW�%RQG� ���������������� ��������������� ������� ������
� ��7UHDVXU\�ELOOV� ��������������� ������� �������� ������
� ��2WKHU�GHEW�VHFXULWLHV� ��������������� ²� �������� ²
� ��/RDQ�WR�HPSOR\HHV� ������WR�������� ������WR�������� ������� ������

� $VVHWV�VXEMHFW�WR�YDULDEOH�UDWH�
� ��%DQN�EDODQFHV� ��������������� ���������������� �������� ������
� � � � � � ���������� �������

 Financial liabilities 
� ��/HDVH�OLDELOLWLHV� ��������������� ����������������� ���������� ���������
� � � � � � ����������� �������

 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
 The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. 

Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit and loss account and equity 
of the Company.

 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
 A hypothetical change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / 

(increased) profit for the year by the amounts shown below. It is assumed that the changes occur immediately 
and uniformly to each category of instrument containing interest rate risk. Variations in market interest rates 
could produce significant changes at the time of early repayments. For these reasons, actual results might 
differ from those reflected in the details specified below. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain 
constant.

   2022 2021
   Mark-up 100 bps Mark-up 100 bps
   Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
� � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
    
 Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate
� ��ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV� ������� ���������� ������ ��������

 Please also refer 38.1.9
38.3.2 Price risk
 Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

the market prices (other than those arising from interest / mark-up rate risk or currency risk), whether those 
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting 
all or similar financial instruments traded in the market. Company is exposed to equity price risk since it has 
investments in quoted equity securities and investments in available for sale debt securities at the financial 
statement date.

 The Company's strategy is to hold its strategic investments for long period of time. Thus, Company's 
management is not concerned with short term price fluctuations with respect to its strategic investments 
provided that the underlying business, economic and management characteristics of the investee remain 
favorable. Company strives to maintain above average levels of shareholders' capital to provide a margin of 
safety against short term equity price volatility. Company manages price risk by monitoring exposure in these 
securities and implementing the strict discipline in internal risk management and investment policies.
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   Fair value  Hypothetical Estimated Increase / Increase
    price change fair value (decrease) (decrease)
� � � � � DIWHU�FKDQJH� VKDUHKROGHUV·� SURILW
     in prices equity before tax
   �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����   �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
� ����� � �������� ����LQFUHDVH� �������� �������� 82,112
� � � � ����GHFUHDVH� �������� ���������� ���������

� ����� � ���������� ����LQFUHDVH� ���������� ��������� 121,043
� � � � ����GHFUHDVH� ���������� ����������� ����������

38.3.3 Foreign currency risk
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of 

FKDQJHV�LQ�IRUHLJQ�H[FKDQJH�UDWHV��7KH�&RPSDQ\��DW�SUHVHQW�LV�QRW�PDWHULDOO\�H[SRVHG�WR�FXUUHQF\�ULVN�DV�PDMRULW\�RI�WKH�
transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.

38.4 Capital Management
� 7KH�&RPSDQ\
V�REMHFWLYH�ZKHQ�PDQDJLQJ�FDSLWDO�LV�WR�VDIH�JXDUG�WKH�&RPSDQ\
V�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�

so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong 
capital base to support the sustained development of its businesses.

� 7KH�&RPSDQ\�PDQDJHV�LWV�FDSLWDO�VWUXFWXUH�E\�PRQLWRULQJ�UHWXUQ�RQ�QHW�DVVHWV¬�DQG�PDNHV�DGMXVWPHQWV�WR�LW�LQ�WKH�OLJKW�
RI�FKDQJHV� LQ�HFRQRPLF�FRQGLWLRQV�� ,Q�RUGHU� WR�PDLQWDLQ�RU�DGMXVW� WKH�FDSLWDO�VWUXFWXUH�� WKH�&RPSDQ\�PD\�DGMXVW� WKH�
amount of dividend paid to shareholders or issue new shares.

 The Company currently meets the paid-up capital requirement as required by Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan.

 The statement of solvency is presented in note 39 to the financial statements. The Company meets the solvency requirement 
as required in the Insurance Ordinance, 2000.

Habib Insurance Company Limited

� 0DUNHW�SULFHV�DUH�VXEMHFW�WR�IOXFWXDWLRQ�DQG�FRQVHTXHQWO\�WKH�DPRXQW�UHDOL]HG�LQ�WKH�VXEVHTXHQW�VDOH�RI�DQ�
investment may significantly differ from the reported market value. Furthermore, amount realized in the sale 
of a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the security being sold. The Company has 
no significant concentration of price risk.

38.3.2.1 Sensitivity analysis
 The table below summarizes Company's equity price risk as of 31 December 2022 and 2021 and shows the 

effects of a hypothetical 10% increase / (decrease) in market prices as at the year end. The selected hypothetical 
change does not reflect what could be considered to be the best or worst case scenarios. Indeed, results 
could be worse in Company's equity investment portfolio because of the nature of equity markets.
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38.5 Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities   
    
    2022
   Liabilities  Equity
    Ordinary Reserves
    Share including
    Capital unappropriated
� � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
    
� %DODQFH�DV�DW�-DQXDU\���������� ����������� �������� � �������
 Changes from financing cash flow
 - Dividend for 2021 –00  –00� � ���������
 - Lease liability  (8,931 ) –00  –00
 Other Liability related changes during the year
    (including of WTO operations) 445,590  –00  –00
 Equity related changes during the year –00  –00  (9,350 )
  
 Balance as at December 31, 2022� ����������� �������� � �������

    2021
   Liabilities  Equity
    Ordinary Reserves
    Share including
    Capital unappropriated
� � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
    
� %DODQFH�DV�DW�-DQXDU\���������� ����������� �������� � �������
 Changes from financing cash flow
 - Dividend for 2020 –00  –00� � ���������
� ��/HDVH�OLDELOLW\�� ���������� ²00  –00
 Other Liability related changes during the year
� ����LQFOXGLQJ�RI�:72�RSHUDWLRQV�� ��������� ²00  –00
 Equity related changes during the year –00  –00� � ������
  
� %DODQFH�DV�DW�'HFHPEHU���������� ����������� �������� � �������

Habib Insurance Company Limited
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     2022 2021
    (Rupees in ' 000)
 Assets
� 3URSHUW\�DQG�HTXLSPHQW� ������� �������
� ,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV� ���� ����
 Investments
     Equity securities 821,124 1,210,429 
� ����'HEW�VHFXULWLHV� �������� �������
� ����7HUP�ILQDQFH�FHUWLILFDWH� �������� ²00 
� /RDQV�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV� �������� ��������
� ,QVXUDQFH��UHLQVXUDQFH�UHFHLYDEOH� �������� ����������
� 5HLQVXUDQFH�UHFRYHULHV�DJDLQVW�RXWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV� �������� ��������
� 6DOYDJH�UHFRYHULHV�DFFUXHG� ������� �������
� 'HIHUUHG�FRPPLVVLRQ�H[SHQVH� �������� ��������
� 3UHSD\PHQWV� �������� ��������
� 7D[DWLRQ���SD\PHQW�OHVV�SURYLVLRQV� ������ ������
� &DVK�DQG�EDQN�GHSRVLWV� �������� �������
� 7RWDO�DVVHWV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG��:72�2SHUDWLRQV�� �������� �������
� 7RWDO�DVVHWV��$�� ���������� ����������

 In-admissible assets as per following clauses 
   of section 32(2) of the Insurance Ordinance, 2000

� 3URSHUW\�DQG�HTXLSPHQW� ������� �������
� ,QWDQJLEOH�DVVHWV� ���� ����
 Investments
� � (TXLW\�VHFXULWLHV� �������� �������
� � 7HUP�ILQDQFH�FHUWLILFDWH� ������ ²00 
� /RDQV��GHSRVLWV�DQG�RWKHU�UHFHLYDEOHV� ������ �������
 Insurance / reinsurance receivable 414,595 280,949 
 Total of In-admissible Assets (B)� �������� ��������

 Total of Admissible Assets (C=A-B)� ���������� ���������

 Total Liabilities
 Underwriting provisions
� � 2XWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV�LQFOXGLQJ�,%15� �������� ��������
� � 8QHDUQHG�SUHPLXP�UHVHUYHV� ���������� ����������
� � 8QHDUQHG�UHLQVXUDQFH�FRPPLVVLRQ� �������� ��������
� 3UHPLXP�GHILFLHQF\�UHVHUYH� ������ ������
� 'HIHUUHG�WD[DWLRQ� ������� �������
� )LQDQFLDO�OHDVH�OLDELOLW\� ������� �������
� 3UHPLXP�UHFHLYHG�LQ�DGYDQFH� ������� �������
 Retirement benefit obligations 130,311 130,859 
� ,QVXUDQFH���UHLQVXUDQFH�SD\DEOHV� �������� ��������
� 2WKHU�FUHGLWRUV�DQG�DFFUXDOV� �������� ��������
� 7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV���2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG��:72�2SHUDWLRQV�� ������� �������
 Total Liabilities (D)� ���������� ����������

 Total Net Admissible Assets (E= C-D)� �������� ��������

 Minimum Solvency Requirement (higher of the following)� ��������� �������� �

� 0HWKRG�$���8�V�������D�� �������� �������
� 0HWKRG�%���8�V�������E�� �������� ��������
� 0HWKRG�&���8�V�������F�� �������� �������

 Excess in Net Admissible Assets over Minimum Requirements 204,848 212,328

Habib Insurance Company Limited
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���� 68%6(48(17�(9(176���121�$'-867,1*

 In the meeting held on May 05, 2023, the Board of Directors of the Company proposed a final cash dividend of 
5V�������SHU�VKDUH��������5V�������SHU�VKDUH��DPRXQWLQJ�WR�5V��������PLOOLRQ��������5V���������PLOOLRQ��IRU�
the year ended December 31, 2022, for approval by the members in Annual General Meeting to be held 
on May 29, 2023.

41. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

 The total average number of employees during the year end as at December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:  
     
  

   2022 2021

� $W�\HDU�HQG� � ���� ���

 Average during the year 254 238

42. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

 These financial statements have been authorised for issue on May 05, 2023 by the Board of Directors of the 
Company in its meeting held on that date.

43. GENERAL

 Figures has been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.    
     
   

Habib Insurance Company Limited

SYED ATHER ABBAS
Chief Executive

AUN MOHAMMAD A. HABIB
Director

MURTAZA HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer

MANSOOR G. HABIB
Director

RAFIQ M. HABIB
Chairman
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6KDULDK�$GYLVRU\�%RDUG·V�5HSRUW�WR�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV
IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU���������

The Company, Habib Insurance Company Limited commenced Window Takaful Operations on October 1, 2018. By 
the grace of Almighty Allah and sincere efforts of Management, the year under review was the fourth successful year 
of Window Takaful Operations.

As per the charter of the Company, it is mandatory on the management and employees to ensure application of Shariah 
guidelines issued by the Shariah Advisory Board and to ensure Shariah compliance in all activities of the Company. 
7KH�SULPH�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�HQVXULQJ�6KDULDK�FRPSOLDQFH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�RSHUDWLRQV�WKXV�OLHV�ZLWK�WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�

We acknowledge that as Shariah Advisory Board members of Takaful Operator, it is our responsibility to provide Shariah 
guidelines and develop framework for assurance that the financial arrangements, contracts and transactions undertaken 
by the Takaful Operator with its participants and stakeholders are in compliance with the requirements of Shariah rules 
and principles.

During the year, the Company executed variety of established Takaful transactions which are approved by the Shariah 
Advisory Board of the company. The Company is offering Shariah Compliant services in the following areas:

 • Fire and Property Takaful
 • Engineering Takaful
 • Marine Takaful
 • Motor Takaful
 • Miscellaneous Takaful

The Company invests its available funds in the approved Shariah Compliant avenues.

7KH�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWRU·V�DFWLYLWLHV�DQG�RSHUDWLRQV�DUH�SHULRGLFDOO\�FKHFNHG�DQG�PRQLWRUHG�E\�6KDULDK�$GYLVRU\�%RDUG��
In order to have an independent assessment of the Shariah Governance and Compliance environment of the Takaful 
operations under taken by the Operator and the conformity of Takaful operations with Shariah rules and principles an 
external Shariah audit was conducted. Further, Shariah Compliance review through Shariah Compliance officer was 
conducted as well. Based on their reports and statement of compliance with the Shariah Principles submitted by the 
Operator/Management to the Board of Director, We hereby present our report as follows:

In our opinion and to the best of our knowledge, the financial arrangements, products and transactions entered into 
by the Company and the Waqf, as the case may be, for the year ended December 31, 2022 are in compliance with 
the requirements of the Shariah rules and guidelines as prescribed by the Shariah Advisory Board and Allah knows 
the best. However, the following are recommended:

 • The Operator/ management should take concrete measures to play pivotal role in sound and transparent 
growth of Takaful countrywide.

 • Necessary steps should be taken to educate all staff including business development staff about the 
concept and practice of Takaful.

May Allah bless us with the best Tawfeeq to achieve these precious tasks and bestow us with success in world and 
LQ�WKH�ZRUOG�KHUHDIWHU��DQG�IRUJLYH�XV�IRU�RXU�PLVWDNHV��$·DPHHQ�

Mufti Muhammad Hanif
Shariah Advisor & Member
Shariah Advisory Board

Mufti Muhammad Ashraf Alam
Member
Shariah Advisory Board

Mufti Imtiaz Alam
Chairman & Member
Shariah Advisory Board

Karachi: May 05, 2023
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,QGHSHQGHQW�5HDVRQDEOH�$VVXUDQFH�5HSRUW�WR�WKH�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�
RQ�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�0DQDJHPHQW·V�$VVHVVPHQW�RI�

Compliance with the Shariah Principles

We were engaged by the Board of Directors of +DELE�,QVXUDQFH�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG (“the Company”) to report on the 
PDQDJHPHQW·V�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�FRPSOLDQFH�RI�WKH�:LQGRZ�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQV��´7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQVµ��RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\��
as set out in the annexed statement prepared by the management for the year ended 31 December 2022, with the 
Takaful Rules, 2012, in the form of an independent reasonable assurance conclusion about whether the annexed 
statement presents fairly the status of compliance of the Takaful Operations with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in all material 
respects.

$SSOLFDEOH�&ULWHULD

The criteria against which the subject matter information (the Statement) is assessed comprise of the provisions of 
Takaful Rules, 2012.

5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�RI�WKH�0DQDJHPHQW

The Board of Directors / management of the Company are responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining 
internal controls relevant to the preparation of the annexed statement that is free from material misstatement, whether 
due to fraud or error. It also includes ensuring the overall compliance of the Takaful Operations with the Takaful Rules, 
2012.

The Board of Directors / management of the Company are also responsible for preventing and detecting fraud and for 
identifying and ensuring that the Takaful Operations comply with laws and regulations applicable to its activities. They 
are also responsible for ensuring that the management, where appropriate, those charged with governance, and 
personnel involved with the Takaful Operations compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012 are properly trained, systems 
are properly updated and that any changes in reporting encompass all significant business units.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics for Chartered Accountants 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, which is founded on fundamental principles of integrity, 
objectivity, professional competence and due care, confidentiality and professional behavior.

The firm applies International Standard on Quality Control 1 “Quality Control for Firms That Perform Audits and Reviews 
of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements” and accordingly maintains 
a comprehensive system of quality control including documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with 
ethical requirements, professional standards and applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

2XU�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV 

Our responsibility is to examine the annexed statement and to report thereon in the form of an independent reasonable 
assurance conclusion based on the evidence obtained. We conducted our engagement in accordance with International 
Standard on Assurance Engagements (ISAE) 3000, “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of 
Historical Financial Information” issued by the International Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. That standard 
requires that we plan and perform our procedures to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annexed statement 
presents fairly the status of compliance of the Takaful Operations with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in all material respects.
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The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material non-compliances 
with the Takaful Rules, 2012, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we have considered 
internal control relevant to the Takaful Operations compliance with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in order to design assurance 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing a conclusion as to the 
HIIHFWLYHQHVV�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�RYHU�WKH�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQV·�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�7DNDIXO�5XOHV��������
Reasonable assurance is less than absolute assurance.

A system of internal control, because of its nature, may not prevent or detect all instances of non-compliance with 
Takaful Rules, 2012, and consequently cannot provide absolute assurance that the objective of compliance with Takaful 
Rules, 2012, will be met. Also, projection of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods is subject to the risk that 
the controls may become inadequate or fail.

The procedures performed included:

ï� (YDOXDWH�WKH�V\VWHPV��SURFHGXUHV�DQG�SUDFWLFHV�LQ�SODFH�ZLWK�UHVSHFW�WR�WKH�7DNDIXO�RSHUDWLRQV�DJDLQVW�WKH�7DNDIXO�
5XOHV�������DQG�6KDULDK�DGYLVRU·V�JXLGHOLQHV�

ï� (YDOXDWLQJ� WKH�JRYHUQDQFH�DUUDQJHPHQWV� LQFOXGLQJ� WKH� UHSRUWLQJ�RI�HYHQWV�DQG�VWDWXV� WR� WKRVH�FKDUJHG�ZLWK�
UHOHYDQW�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV��VXFK�DV�WKH�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH���6KDULDK�$GYLVRU�DQG�WKH�ERDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV�

ï� 7HVW�IRU�D�VDPSOH�RI�WUDQVDFWLRQV�UHODWLQJ�WR�7DNDIXO�RSHUDWLRQV�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKHVH�DUH�FDUULHG�RXW�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�
with the laid down procedures and practices including the regulations relating to Takaful operations as laid down 
LQ�7DNDIXO�5XOHV��������DQG

 
ï� 5HYLHZ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�PDQDJHPHQW·V�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�FRPSOLDQFH�RI�WKH�7DNDIXO�WUDQVDFWLRQV�GXULQJ�WKH�\HDU�

ended 31 December 2022 with the Takaful Rules, 2012.

Conclusion

Our conclusion has been formed on the basis of, and is subject to, the matters outlined in this report. We believe that 
the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our conclusion.

In our opinion, the annexed statement, for the year ended 31 December 2022, presents fairly the status of compliance 
of the Takaful Operations with the Takaful Rules, 2012, in all material respects.

 

'DWH��0D\���������� .30*�7DVHHU�+DGL�	�&R�� � �
 Chartered Accountants
.DUDFKL
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Statement of Compliance with the Takaful
5XOHV�������DQG�6KDULD�5XOHV�DQG�3ULQFLSOHV

The financial arrangements, contracts and transactions, entered into by Habib Insurance Company Limited - Window 
Takaful Operations (the Operator) for the year ended December 31, 2022 are in compliance with the Takaful Rules, 
2012 and the Shariah Rules and Principles determined by the Shariah Advisory Board of the Operator, (Shariah Rules 
and Principles). 

Further, we confirmed that:

 • The Company has developed and implemented all the policies and procedures in accordance with the Takaful 
Rules, 2012 and rulings of the Shariah Advisory Board along with a comprehensive mechanism to ensure 
compliance with such rulings and Takaful Rules, 2012 in their overall operations. Further, the governance 
arrangements including the reporting of events and status to those charged with relevant responsibilities, 
VXFK�DV�WKH�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH���6KDULDK�$GYLVRU\�%RDUG�DQG�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�KDYH�EHHQ�LPSOHPHQWHG�

 • The Operator has imparted trainings/ orientations and ensured availability of all manuals/ agreements approved 
by Shariah Advisory Board/ Board of Directors to maintain the adequate level of awareness, capacity and 
VHQVLWL]DWLRQ�RI�WKH�VWDII��PDQDJHPHQW��

 • All the products and policies have been approved by Shariah Advisory Board and the financial arrangement 
including investments made, policies, contracts and transactions entered into by Window Takaful Operations 
DUH�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�SROLFLHV�DSSURYHG�E\�6KDULDK�$GYLVRU\�%RDUG��DQG

� �� 7KH�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�RI�:LQGRZ�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQV��3DUWLFLSDQW�7DNDIXO�)XQG�DQG�2SHUDWRU·V�IXQG��DUH�
segregated from its other assets and liabilities, at all times in accordance with provisions of the Takaful Rules, 
2012

This has been duly confirmed by the Shariah Advisory Board of the Operator. 

 SYED ATHER ABBAS
Karachi: May 05, 2023 Chief Executive 
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,1'(3(1'(17�$8',725·6�5(3257�

7R�WKH�PHPEHUV�RI�+DELE�,QVXUDQFH�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG�²�:LQGRZ�7DNDIXO�2SHUDWLRQV

5HSRUW�RQ�WKH�$XGLW�RI�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of +DELE�,QVXUDQFH�&RPSDQ\�/LPLWHG - Window Takaful Operations 
(“the Operator”), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2022,  the statement of 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in fund and the statement of cash flows for the year then  ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other  explanatory 
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge 
and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of 
financial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in fund and the statement of 
cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof, conform  with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the Companies Act, 
2017 (XIX of �������LQ�WKH�PDQQHU�VR�UHTXLUHG�DQG�UHVSHFWLYHO\�JLYH�D�WUXH�DQG�IDLU�YLHZ�RI�WKH�VWDWH�RI�2SHUDWRU·V�
affairs as at December 31, 2022 and of the total comprehensive income, the changes in fund and its cash flows for 
the year then  ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�XQGHU� � WKRVH�VWDQGDUGV�DUH� IXUWKHU�GHVFULEHG� LQ� WKH�$XGLWRU·V�Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report.  We are independent of the Operator in accordance with the International 
(WKLFV�6WDQGDUGV�%RDUG�IRU�$FFRXQWDQWV·�&RGH�RI�(WKLFV�IRU�3URIHVVLRQDO�$FFRXQWDQWV�DV�DGRSWHG�E\�WKH�,QVWLWXWH�RI�
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other  ethical responsibilities in accordance 
with the Code.  We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion.

,QIRUPDWLRQ�2WKHU�WKDQ�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�DQG�$XGLWRU·V�5HSRUW�7KHUHRQ

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in 
WKH�$QQXDO�5HSRUW��EXW�GRHV�QRW�LQFOXGH�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DQG�RXU�DXGLWRU·V�UHSRUW�WKHUHRQ�

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the Other Information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other  information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other  information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we 
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other Information, we are required to report  that fact. We have 
nothing  to report  in this regard.
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5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�RI�0DQDJHPHQW�DQG�%RDUG�RI�'LUHFWRUV�IRU�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and, 
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

,Q�SUHSDULQJ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��PDQDJHPHQW�LV�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�DVVHVVLQJ�WKH�2SHUDWRU·V�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Operator or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

%RDUG�RI�GLUHFWRUV�DUH�UHVSRQVLEOH�IRU�RYHUVHHLQJ�WKH��2SHUDWRU·V�ILQDQFLDO�UHSRUWLQJ�SURFHVV�

$XGLWRU·V�5HVSRQVLELOLWLHV�IRU�WKH�$XGLW�RI�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about  whether the financial statements as a whole  are free from 
PDWHULDO�PLVVWDWHPHQW��ZKHWKHU�GXH� WR� IUDXG�RU�HUURU�� DQG� WR� LVVXH�DQ�DXGLWRU·V� UHSRUW� � WKDW� LQFOXGHV�RXU�RSLQLRQ��
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 
ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from 
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken  on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit, in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due  to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud 
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
2SHUDWRU·V�LQWHUQDO�FRQWURO�

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.

�� &RQFOXGH�RQ�WKH�DSSURSULDWHQHVV�RI�PDQDJHPHQW·V�XVH��RI�WKH�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ�EDVLV�RI�DFFRXQWLQJ�DQG��EDVHG�RQ�
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
VLJQLILFDQW�GRXEW�RQ�WKH�2SHUDWRU·V�DELOLW\�WR�FRQWLQXH�DV�D�JRLQJ�FRQFHUQ��,I�ZH�FRQFOXGH�WKDW�D�PDWHULDO�XQFHUWDLQW\�
H[LVWV��ZH�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�GUDZ�DWWHQWLRQ�LQ�RXU�DXGLWRU·V�UHSRUW�WR�WKH�UHODWHG�GLVFORVXUHV�LQ�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 
REWDLQHG�XS�WR�WKH�GDWH��RI�RXU�DXGLWRU·V�UHSRUW���+RZHYHU��IXWXUH��HYHQWV�RU�FRQGLWLRQV�PD\�FDXVH�WKH�2SHUDWRU�WR�
cease to continue as a going concern.
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation.

We communicate with the  board of directors regarding, among other  matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our 
audit.

5HSRUW�RQ�RWKHU�OHJDO�DQG�UHJXODWRU\�UHTXLUHPHQWV

Based on our audit, we further  report  that in our opinion:

a) proper  books of account have been kept by the Operator as required by the Insurance Ordinance, 2000 and the 
&RPSDQLHV�$FW��������;,;�RI�������

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in fund and 
the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Insurance 
2UGLQDQFH��������WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW��������;;,�RI��������DQG�DUH�LQ�DJUHHPHQW�ZLWK�WKH�ERRNV�RI�DFFRXQW�

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
2SHUDWRU·V�EXVLQHVV��DQG

d) no zakat was deductible at source under  the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report  is Amyn Pirani.

Date: May 08, 2023 � .30*�7DVHHU�+DGL�	�&R�� � �
 Chartered Accountants
Karachi

UDIN: AR202210201QU6R0ZHtj



� � 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � 3DUWLFLSDQW·V�)XQG
 December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
 2022 2021 2022 2021
 Note (Rupees in ' 000)
Assets
Investments
 Musharika certificate 5 –00  35,051  –00  80,116
Loans and other receivables 6 –00  249  2,823  1
Takaful/ retakaful receivable 7 –00  –00  130,585  142,414
Retakaful recoveries against
 outstanding claims  –00  –00  61,818  20,408
Salvage recoveries accrued   –00  –00  25  1,210
Deferred Wakala expense 19 –00  –00  44,221  13,019
Deferred commission expense 20 23,498  14,423  –00  –00
Receivable from PTF  21 7,469  7,577  –00  –00
Taxation - payments less provision   –00  694  5,640  803
Prepayments 8 465  300  55,998  43,143
Cash and bank balances 9 89,535  8,246  211,907  45,081
Total Assets  120,967  66,540  513,017  346,195
(48,7,(6�$1'�/,$%,/,7,(6
&DSLWDO�5HVHUYHV�$WWULEXWDEOH
� WR�&RPSDQ\·V�6KDUHKROGHUV
Share capital 1.2 50,000  50,000  –00  –00 
Accumulated deficit  (11,998 ) (20,957 ) –00  –00
7RWDO�6KDUHKROGHUV�(TXLW\  38,002  29,043  –00  –00
3DUWLFLSDQWV·�7DNDIXO�)XQG��37)�
Ceded money 1.2 –00  –00  500  500 
Accumulated surplus  –00  –00  100,534  76,011
Reserves  –00  –00  (342 ) (342 )
%DODQFH�RI�3DUWLFLSDQWV·�7DNDIXO�)XQG� � –00  –00  100,692  76,169
Qard-e-Hasna  –00  –00  –00  –00
/LDELOLWLHV� �
37)�8QGHUZULWLQJ�SURYLVLRQV 
Outstanding claims including IBNR 15 –00  –00  118,074  48,618 
Unearned contribution reserve 13 –00  –00  182,731  130,184 
Reserve for unearned retakaful rebate 14 –00  –00  11,254  8,646 
   –00  –00  312,059  187,448 

Unearned Wakala Fee 19 44,221  13,019  –00  –00
Contribution received in advance  –00  –00  19,697  7,328
Takaful/ retakaful payable 12 –00  –00  65,713  63,136
Other creditors and accrual 10 35,168  22,846  7,387  4,537
Payable to OPF 21 –00  –00  7,469  7,577
Taxation - payments less provision  1,620  –00  –00  –00
Retirement benefit obligation 11 1,956  1,632  –00  –00
    82,965  37,497  100,266  82,578
7RWDO�/LDELOLWLHV� � 82,965  37,497  412,325  270,026

7RWDO�(TXLW\�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV� � 120,967  66,540  513,017  346,195
Contingencies and commitments 26

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chief Financial Officer
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Director

RAFIQ M. HABIB
Chairman
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   December 31, December 31,
   2022 2021
  Note  (Rupees in ' 000)

3DUWLFLSDQWV·�7DNDIXO�)XQG

Contribution earned 13 274,835   184,486
Less: Contribution ceded to retakaful 13  (146,545 ) (94,963 )
Net contribution revenue   128,290  89,523

Retakaful rebate earned 14 24,458  16,138
1HW�8QGHUZULWLQJ�,QFRPH  152,748  105,661

Net Claims - reported / settled   (106,669 ) (45,472 )
      - IBNR  (15,422 ) (6,254 )
       15 (122,091 ) (51,726 )
Surplus before investment income   30,657  53,935
Other expenses 16 (1,427 ) –00 
Other Income 17 2,442  –00 
Provision for impairment 7 (24,304 ) (424 )
Investment income 18 17,155  5,625
Surplus transferred to accumulated surplus  24,523  59,136

Total comprehensive income for the year  24,523  59,136

Operator's Takaful Fund

Wakala fee  19 57,757  15,730
Commission expense 20 (40,566 ) (22,675 )
Management expenses 22 (12,207 ) (12,103 )
        4,984  (19,048 )
Investment income 18 9,300  3,067
Other expenses 23 (1,665 ) (1,156 )
3URILW���ORVV��EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ  12,619  (17,137 )

Taxation    25 (3,660 ) –00 
3URILW���ORVV��DIWHU�WD[DWLRQ�DWWULEXWDEOH�WR�VKDUHKROGHUV  8,959  (17,137 )

Other comprehensive income:

Unrealised loss on available-for-sale investments during the year  –00  (1,555 )
Net gain transferred to profit and loss on disposal / redemption / 
    impairment of investments  –00  1,470
Related Tax Impact  –00  25
Other comprehensive loss for the year  –00  (60 )
Total comprehensive loss for the year  8,959  (17,197 )
           
The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Statement of Comprehensive Income
IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU���������

Habib Insurance Company Limited

SYED ATHER ABBAS
Chief Executive

AUN MOHAMMAD A. HABIB
Director

MURTAZA HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer

MANSOOR G. HABIB
Director

RAFIQ M. HABIB
Chairman



Statement of Changes in Fund
IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU���������

   Operator's Fund    
     Statutory Accumulated Available-for- Total
   Fund (Deficit) sale reserve
     
     (Rupees in '000)

Balance as at January 01, 2021 50,000  (3,820 ) 60  46,240 

Comprehensive income for the year
Loss after tax for the year –00  (17,137 ) –00  (17,137 )
Other comprehensive loss - net gain on sale of
 available for sale investments –00  –00  (85 ) (85 )
Related tax impact –00  –00  25  25
Total comprehensive income for the year –00  (17,137 ) (60 ) (17,197 )

Balance as at December 31, 2021 50,000  (20,957 ) –00  29,043

Balance as at January 01, 2022 50,000  (20,957 ) –00  29,043
Comprehensive income for the year
Income for the year –00  8,959  –00  8,959
Total comprehensive income for the year –00  (11,998 ) –00  38,002

Balance as at December 31, 2022 50,000  (11,998 ) –00  38,002

� � � 3DUWLFLSDQWV·�7DNDIXO�)XQG� � �
      Ceded Accumulated Available-for- Total
   Money (Deficit)/ sale reserve
    Surplus  
     (Rupees in '000)

Balance as at January 01, 2021 500  16,875  (342 ) 17,033

Comprehensive income for the year
Surplus for the year –00  59,136  –00  59,136
Other Comprehensive loss –00  –00  –00  –00 
Total comprehensive income for the year –00  59,136  –00  59,136

Balance as at December 31, 2021 500  76,011  (342 ) 76,169

Comprehensive income for the year
Surplus for the year –00  24,523  –00  24,523
Other Comprehensive Income –00  –00  –00  –00 
Total comprehensive income for the year –00  24,523  –00  24,523

Balance as at December 31, 2022 500  100,534  (342 ) 100,692

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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  OPF PTF
 December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
 2022 2021 2022 2021
     (Rupees in ' 000)
 Operating activities
(a) Takaful activities
 Contribution received  –00  –00  382,846  189,824
 Retakaful contribution paid  –00  –00  (156,823 ) (86,983 )
 Claims paid  –00  –00  (135,113 ) (70,882 )
 Retakaful and other recoveries received  –00  –00  42,253  26,104
 Commission paid  (39,521 ) (19,990 ) –00  –00 
 Wakala fee  89,067  12,407  (89,067 ) (12,407 )
 Commission received  –00  –00  27,066  18,544
 Net cash inflows from takaful activities  49,546  (7,583 ) 71,162  64,200
(b) Other operating activities
 Other operating payments  (13,166 ) (13,544 ) (9,812 ) –00
 Other operating receipts  –00  –00  –00  –00
 Net cash flows from other operating activities (13,166 ) (13,544 ) (9,812 ) –00
 Total cash flows from all operating activities 36,380  (21,127 ) 61,350  64,200
 Investment activities
 Profit / return received  3,052  486  11,285  5,625
 Dividend received  3,283  2,581  8,835  –00 
 Qard-e-hasna  –00  10,209  –00  (10,209 )
 Payments for investments  (194,016 ) (35,000 ) (135,324 ) (80,000 )
 Proceeds from investments  232,590  36,363  220,680  –00 
 Total cash flows from investing activities  44,909  14,639  105,476  (84,584 )
 Cash flows from financing activities  –00  –00  –00  –00 
 Net cash flows from all activities  81,289  (6,488 ) 166,826  (20,384 )
 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 8,246  14,734  45,081  65,465 
� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV�DW�HQG�RI�SHULRG 89,535  8,246  211,907  45,081 
� 5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�WR�SURILW�DQG�ORVV�DFFRXQW� �
 Operating cash flows  36,380  (21,127 ) 61,350  64,200 
 Leave encashment  (30 ) 58  –00  –00 
 Profit / return received  3,052  486  11,285  5,625 
 Provision for impairment  –00  –00  (24,304 ) (424 )
 Provision for for taxation  (3,660 ) –00  –00  –00
 Dividends received  3,283  1,111  8,835  –00
 Capital gain  –00  1,470  –00  –00
 (Increase)/ decrease in assets other than cash 2,313  6,751  74,103  64,460
 (Decrease)/ Increase in liabilities  (32,379 ) (5,886 ) (106,746 ) (74,725 )
� 3URILW���ORVV��DIWHU�WD[DWLRQ� � 8,959  (17,137 ) 24,523  59,136

� $WWULEXWHG�WR�
� 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � ������ (17,137 ) –00  –00
� 3DUWLFLSDQWV·�7DNDIXO�)XQG� � ²00  –00  24,523  59,136
   8,959  (17,137 ) 24,523  59,136

The annexed notes from 1 to 36 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to or Forms Part of Financial Statements
IRU�WKH�\HDU�HQGHG�'HFHPEHU���������

�� /(*$/�67$786�$1'�1$785(�2)�%86,1(66

��� Habib Insurance Company Limited (the Operator) was incorporated in Pakistan in 1942 as a public limited 
company under the Companies Act, 2017  to carry on general insurance business. The Operator was allowed 
to work as Window Takaful Operator on  July 18, 2018 by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP) under SECP Takaful Rules, 2012 to carry on General Window Takaful Operations (WTO) in Pakistan. 
The Operator is listed at Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the Operator is situated 
at Habib Square, M.A. Jinnah Road, Karachi.

��� The Operator transferred statutory fund of Rs. 50 million in a separate bank account for the Window Takaful 
2SHUDWLRQV�DV�SHU�WKH�UHTXLUHPHQW�RI�FLUFXODU���RI�������7KH�2SHUDWRU�KDV�IRUPHG�D�:DTI�IRU�3DUWLFLSDQWV·�
Fund, Participants Takaful Fund (PTF) by executing the Waqf deed dated June 12, 2018 and deposited a cede 
PRQH\�RI�5V������PLOOLRQ��7KH�FHGH�PRQH\� LV� UHTXLUHG� WR�EH� LQYHVWHG� LQ�6KDUL·DK�FRPSOLDQW� UHPXQHUDWLYH�
LQVWUXPHQW�ZKLFK�PD\�EH�XVHG�WR�DFTXLUH�LPPRYDEOH�:DTI�SURSHUW\�LI�6KDUL·DK�DQG�ODZ�VR�ZDUUDQWV��:DTI�
Deed governs the relationship of Operator and participants for management of takaful operations, investments 
RI�SDUWLFLSDQWV·�IXQGV�DQG�LQYHVWPHQWV�RI�WKH�2SHUDWRU·V�IXQGV�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�VKDUL·DK�DGYLVRU�RI�WKH�2SHUDWRU�

�� %$6,6�2)�35(3$5$7,21�$1'�67$7(0(17�2)�&203/,$1&(

 These financial statements are prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in 
Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and Islamic Financial Accounting Standards 
(IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan, as are notified under the Companies Act, 
2017, provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 2000, 
the Takaful Rules, 2012 and the General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019.

 In case requirements differ, the provisions or directives of the Companies Act, 2017, the Insurance Ordinance, 
2000, the Takaful Rules 2012 and the General Takaful Accounting Regulations, 2019 shall prevail.

 These financial statements reflect the financial position and results of operations of both of the Operator (OPF) 
and Participants Takaful Fund (PTF) (collectively WTO) in a manner that the assets, liabilities, income and 
expenses of the Operator and Participants Takful Fund remain separately identifiable.

���� %DVLV�RI�PHDVXUHPHQW

 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis except for available for sale 
investments that are measured at fair value.

���� )XQFWLRQDO�DQG�SUHVHQWDWLRQ�FXUUHQF\

� 7KHVH�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�LQ�3DN�5XSHHV�ZKLFK�LV�DOVR�WKH�:72·V�IXQFWLRQDO�FXUUHQF\��$OO�
financial information presented in Pak Rupees has been rounded to nearest thousand Rupees, unless otherwise 
stated.

���� 6WDQGDUGV��LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV�DQG�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�SXEOLVKHG�DSSURYHG�DFFRXQWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�WKDW�ZHUH�
effective in the current year

 There are certain new and standards, interpretations and amendments that are mandatory for the WTO's 
accounting periods beginning or after January 01, 2022 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have 
any significant effect on the WTO and therefore have not been detailed in these financial statments.

���� 6WDQGDUGV��LQWHUSUHWDWLRQV�DQG�DPHQGPHQWV�WR�SXEOLVKHG�DSSURYHG�DFFRXQWLQJ�VWDQGDUGV�WKDW�DUH�QRW�
yet effective

 The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies 
Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2023:
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 - Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 in January 2020) apply 
retrospectively for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 (as deferred vide amendments 
to IAS 1 in October 2022) with earlier application permitted. These amendments in the standards have 
been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as current. Convertible debt may need to be 
UHFODVVLILHG�DV�¶FXUUHQW·��7KH�VWDQGDUG�DOVR�DPHQGV�WKH�DVSHFW�RI�FODVVLILFDWLRQ�RI�OLDELOLW\�DV�QRQ�FXUUHQW�
E\�UHTXLULQJ�WKH�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�WKH�HQWLW\·V�ULJKW�DW�WKH�HQG�RI�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�SHULRG�WR�GHIHU�WKH�VHWWOHPHQW�
of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity's expectation and discretion at 
the reporting date to refinance or to reschedule payments on a long-term basis are no longer relevant for 
the classification of a liability as current or non-current. An entity shall apply those amendments 
retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8. Application of this amendment is not expected to have any 
LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�:72·V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

 - Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (amendment to IAS 1 in October 2022) aims to improve the 
information an entity provides when its right to defer settlement of a liability for at least twelve months is 
subject to compliance with conditions. The amendment is also intended to address concerns about 
classifying such a liability as current or non-current. Only covenants with which a company must comply 
on or before the reporting date affect the classification of a liability as current or non-current. Covenants 
ZLWK�ZKLFK�WKH�FRPSDQ\�PXVW�FRPSO\�DIWHU�WKH�UHSRUWLQJ�GDWH��L�H��IXWXUH�FRYHQDQWV��GR�QRW�DIIHFW�D�OLDELOLW\·V�
classification at that date. However, when non-current liabilities are subject to future covenants, companies 
will now need to disclose information to help users understand the risk that those liabilities could become 
repayable within 12 months after the reporting date. The amendments apply retrospectively for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with earlier application permitted. These amendments 
also specify the transition requirements for companies that may have early-adopted the previously issued 
but not yet effective 2020 amendments to IAS 1 (as referred above). Application of this amendment is not 
H[SHFWHG�WR�KDYH�DQ\�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�:72·V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��

 - Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) – the Board 
has issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies and to help 
companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

  - requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting 
policies.

  - clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions are 
WKHPVHOYHV�LPPDWHULDO�DQG�DV�VXFK�QHHG�QRW�EH�GLVFORVHG��DQG

  - clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions 
DUH�WKHPVHOYHV�PDWHULDO�WR�D�FRPSDQ\·V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV�

  The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional examples 
on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are effective for annual 
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted.

 - Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) introduce a new definition for accounting 
estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial statements that are subject to 
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the relationship between accounting policies and 
accounting estimates by specifying that an entity develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective 
set out by an accounting policy. The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2023, with earlier application permitted, and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates 
and changes in accounting policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period 
in which the company applies the amendments. Application of this amendment is not expected to have 
DQ\�PDWHULDO�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�:72·V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�EDODQFHV�FXUUHQWO\�KHOG�

 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12) 
narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not apply to transactions that 
give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result, companies will need to recognize a 
deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising on initial recognition of a 
lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases and decommissioning liabilities, the associated 
deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be recognized from the beginning of the earliest comparative 
period presented, with any cumulative effect recognized as an adjustment to retained earnings or other 
components of equity at that date. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning 
on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application permitted. Application of this amendment is not expected 
WR�KDYH�DQ\�PDWHULDO�LPSDFW�RQ�WKH�:72·V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�EDODQFHV�FXUUHQWO\�KHOG�
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 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback (amendment to IFRS 16 in September 2022) adds subsequent 
measurement requirements for sale and leaseback transactions that satisfy the requirements to be accounted 
for as a sale. The amendment confirms that on initial recognition, the seller-lessee includes variable lease 
payments when it measures a lease liability arising from a sale-and-leaseback transaction. After initial 
recognition, the seller-lessee applies the general requirements for subsequent accounting of the lease 
liability such that it recognizes no gain or loss relating to the right of use it retains. A seller-lessee may 
adopt different approaches that satisfy the new requirements on subsequent measurement. The amendments 
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 with earlier application 
permitted. Under IAS 8, a seller-lessee will need to apply the amendments retrospectively to 
sale-and-leaseback transactions entered into or after the date of initial application of IFRS 16 and will need 
to identify and re-examine sale-and-leaseback transactions entered into since implementation of IFRS 16 
in 2019, and potentially restate those that included variable lease payments. If an entity (a seller-lessee) 
applies the amendments arising from Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback for an earlier period, the 
entity shall disclose that fact. Application of this amendment is not expected to have any material impact 
RQ�WKH�:72·V�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQWV��EDVHG�RQ�WKH�EDODQFHV�FXUUHQWO\�KHOG�

 - Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments to 
IFRS 10 and IAS 28) amend accounting treatment on loss of control of business or assets.  The amendments 
also introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction that involves neither cost nor full step-up of 
certain retained interests in assets that are not businesses. The effective date for these changes has been 
deferred indefinitely until the completion of a broader review.

 - IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been notified by the IASB to be effective for annual periods beginning 
on or after January 1, 2023, however it is yet to be notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission 
of Pakistan. In addition, the Company has opted for the temporary exemption from the application of IFRS 
9 as allowed by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) for entities whose activities are 
predominantly connected with insurance. Further details relating to the temporary exemption from the 
application of IFRS 9 are given in the notes below.

  The management is in the process of assessing the impacts of these standards and amendments on the 
financial statements of the WTO.

 - Temporary Exemption from the Application of IFRS 9 (Financial Instruments)
  As an insurance entity, the management has opted for the temporary exemption from the application of 

IFRS 9 as allowed by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) for entities whose activities 
are predominantly connected with insurance as the percentage of the total carrying amount of its liabilities 
connected with insurance relative to the total carrying amount of all its liabilities is greater than 90 percent 
and the entity doesn't engage in significant activities unconnected with insurance based on historical 
available information. Additional disclosures, as required by IASB, for being eligible to apply the temporary 
exemption from the application of IFRS 9 are as follows:

  Financial assets with contractual cash flows that meet the SPPI criteria     
� � � � � 2SHUDWRUV·�)XQG� 3DUWLFSDQW�7DNDIXO�)XQG
� � 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � $V�DW�'HFHPEHU����� $V�DW�'HFHPEHU����
     2022 2021 2022 2021
� � 'HEW�VHFXULWLHV�²�$YDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH� � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����� �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Opening fair value 35,051 –00 80,116 –00 
 (Disposals) / additions during the year (35,051 ) 35,000 (80,116 ) 80,000
 Adjustment in the value –00 51 –00 116
 Closing fair value –00 35,051 –00 80,116

 Financial assets with contractual cash flow that do not meet the SPPI criteria

 (TXLW\�6HFXULWLHV�²�$YDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH

 Opening fair value –00 36,448  –00 20,481
 (Disposals) / additions during the year –00 (36,363 ) –00 20,370
 Adjustment in the fair value –00 (85 ) –00 (40,851 )
 Closing fair value –00 –00  –00 –00
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�� 6800$5<�2)�6,*1,),&$17�$&&2817,1*�32/,&,(6
 The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent to all 

the years presented. Details of these accounting policies are as follows:
���� 7DNDIXO�FRQWUDFWV
 The takaful contracts are based on the principles of Wakala. The takaful contracts so agreed usually inspire 

concept of tabarru (to donate for benefit of others) and mutual sharing of losses with the overall objective of 
eliminating the element of uncertainty.

 A separate Participants Takaful Fund (PTF) has been created in which all contribution received under general 
takaful contribution net off any government levies and administrative surcharge are credited. The role of takaful 
operator is of the management of the PTF. At the initial stage of the setup of the PTF, the takaful operator makes 
an initial donation to the PTF. The terms of the takaful contracts are in accordance with the generally accepted 
principles and norms of insurance business suitably modified with guidance by the Shariah Advisor of the Takaful 
operator.

 These contracts are entered with group companies, corporate clients, and individuals residing or located in 
Pakistan.

 Once a contract has been classified as an takful contract, it remains a takaful contract for the remainder of its 
period, even if the takaful risk reduces significantly during this period, unless all rights and liabilities are extinguished 
or expired.

 Takaful contracts are classified into following main categories:
������ )LUH�DQG�SURSHUW\
 The perils covered under fire insurance include damages caused by fire, riot and strike, explosion, earthquake, 

atmospheric damage, flood, electric fluctuation, impact and other coverage.
������ 0DULQH�DQG�WUDQVSRUW
 Marine and transport takaful provides coverage against cargo risk, war risk and damages occurring in inland transit.
������ 0RWRU
 Motor takaful provides comprehensive car coverage and indemnity against third party loss.
������ 2WKHU�FODVVHV
 Other classes includes mainly bankers blanket bond, liability, engineering, etc.

  Other details of financial assets which pass the SPPI test are as follows:
  Gross carrying amounts and fair values of other financial instruments that pass the SPPI test:    
      
� � 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� � 'HFHPEHU���������� 'HFHPEHU���������
    Rating AAA Unrated / AAA Unrated /
      Unavailable  Unavailable
� � � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Bank balances 89,535 –00 8,246 –00 
 Receivable from PTF –00  7,469 –00  7,577
   89,535  7,469 8,246  7,577

� � 3DUWLFLSDQW·V�7DNDIXO�)XQG� � 'HFHPEHU���������� 'HFHPEHU���������
    Rating AAA Unrated / AAA Unrated /
      Unavailable  Unavailable
� � � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Bank balances 211,901 –00 45,076 –00 
 Takaful / retakaful receivable –00  130,585 –00  142,414
 Loans and other receivables –00  2,823 –00  1
 Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims –00  61,818 –00  20,408
 Salvage recoveries accrued –00  25 –00  1,210
   211,901  195,251 45,076  164,033
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���� &RPPLVVLRQ
������ 'HIHUUHG�FRPPLVVLRQ�H[SHQVH
 Commission expense incurred in obtaining and recording takaful contracts is deferred and recognised in the 

Statement of Comprehensive Income as an expense in accordance with the pattern of recognition of contribution 
revenue.

������ 5HEDWH�LQFRPH
 Rebate income from retakaful operator is recognised on the date of the commencement of the underlying takaful 

contract. These are deferred and recognised as liability and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income as revenue in accordance with the pattern of recognition of the retakaful contributions.

���� 8QHDUQHG�&RQWULEXWLRQ
 Contribution under a policy is recongnised on the time of commencement of the takaful contract.
 The unearned contribution reserve is the unexpired portion of the contribution including administrative surcharge. 

Unearned premiums have been calculated by applying 1/24th / 1/6th method as applicable and specified in the 
Insurance Rules, 2017. Remaining portion is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

���� &RQWULEXWLRQ�GHILFLHQF\�UHVHUYH
 The WTO is required as per Insurance Rules, 2017, to maintain a provision in respect of contribution deficiency 

for the class of business where the unearned contribution reserve is not adequate to meet the expected future 
liability, after retakaful, from claims and other expenses, including retakaful expense, commissions and other 
underwriting expenses, expected to be incurred after the balance sheet date in respect of the unexpired takaful 
contract in  that class of business at the balance sheet date. The movement in the contribution deficiency reserve 
is recorded as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and the same is recognized as a liability.

 The WTO determines adequacy of liability of contribution deficiency by carrying out analysis of expired periods. 
For this purpose actuarial valuation has been carried out to determine the amount of contribution deficiency 
reserve as required by under Insurance Rules, 2017 issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan on January 09, 2012. However, the management, including on the basis of this actuarial valuation as 
of December 31, 2022, consider that no contribution deficiency reserve is required to the maintained.

���� 5HWDNDIXO�FRQWUDFWV�KHOG
 Takaful contracts entered into by the WTO (for PTF) with retakaful operator for compensation of losses suffered 

on takaful contracts issued are retakaful contracts. These retakaful contracts include both facultative and treaty 
arrangement contracts and are classified in same categories of takaful contracts for the purpose of these financial 
statements. The WTO recognizes the entitled benefits under the contract as retakaful assets. Outward retakaful 
contribution are accounted for in the same period as the related contribution for the direct or accepted retakaful 
business being covered under the retakaful arrangement.

 Retakaful liabilities represent balances due to retakaful entities. Amounts payable are estimated in a manner 
consistent with the related retakaful contract.

 Retakaful assets represent balances due from retakaful companies. Amounts recoverable from retakaful operator 
are estimated in a manner consistent with the provision for outstanding claims or settled claims associated with 
the retakaful contract and are in accordance with the related retakaful contract. Retakaful assets are not offset 
against related retakaful liabilities. Income or expenses from retakaful contracts are not offset against expenses 
or income from related retakaful assets / liabilities.

 The deferred portion of retakaful contribution ceded is recognized as a prepayment which is calculated in 
accordance with the pattern of recognition of revenue.

 The WTO assesses its retakaful assets for impairment on financial statement date. If there is an objective 
evidence that the retakaful asset is impaired, the WTO reduces the carrying amount of the retakaful asset to its 
recoverable amount and recognises that impairment loss in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

���� 5HFHLYDEOHV�DQG�SD\DEOHV
������ 5HFHLYDEOHV�UHODWHG�WR�7DNDIXO�FRQWUDFW
 Receivables related to takaful contracts are recognized and due at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 

given less provision for impairment, if any. If there is an objective evidence that the takaful receivable is impaired, 
as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition, the WTO reduces the carrying amount 
of the takaful receivables accordingly and recognizes that impairment loss in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.

 Provision for impairment on contribution receivables is estimated on a systematic basis after analyzing the 
receivables as per their ageng. 



������ &UHGLWRUV��DFFUXDOV�DQG�SURYLVLRQV
 Liabilities for creditors and other amounts payable are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration 

to be paid in future for the goods and / or services received, whether or not billed to the WTO.
 Provisions are recognised when the WTO has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events 

and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

 Provisions are reviewed at each financial statement date and adjusted to reflect the current estimate.
���� 5HWDNDIXO�UHFRYHULHV�DJDLQVW�RXWVWDQGLQJ�FODLPV
 Claims recoveries against outstanding claims from the retakaful operators and salvage are recognised as an 

asset at the same time as the claims which give rise to the right of recovery are recognised as a liability and are 
measured at the amount expected to be received.

���� 6HJPHQW�UHSRUWLQJ
 An operating segment is a component of the WTO that engages in business activities from which it may earn 

UHYHQXHV�DQG�LQFXU�H[SHQVHV�LQFOXGLQJ�UHYHQXHV�DQG�H[SHQVHV�WKDW�UHODWH�WR�WUDQVDFWLRQV�ZLWK�DQ\�RI�WKH�:72·V 
RWKHU�FRPSRQHQWV��$OO�RSHUDWLQJ�VHJPHQWV·�UHVXOWV�DUH�UHYLHZHG�UHJXODUO\�E\�WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�WR�PDNH�GHFLVLRQV 
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, for which discrete financial information 
is available.

 The WTO presents segment reporting of operating results using the classes of business as specified under the 
Insurance Rules, 2017 and General Takalful Accounting Regulation, 2019. The reported operating segments 
are also consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Board of Directors who assess the performance 
of the operating segments. The performance of segments is evaluated on the basis of underwriting results of 
each segment.

 Assets, liabilities and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to specify segments are assigned to them, 
while the carrying amount of certain assets (liabilities) used (incurred) jointly by two or more segments are 
allocated to segments on a reasonable basis. Those assets and liabilities which cannot be allocated to a particular 
segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.

 The WTO has four primary business segments for reporting purposes, namely fire and property, marine and 
transport, motor and other classes. The nature and business activities of these segments are disclosed in note 
no. 3.1. Income and expenses directly attribute to a particular segment is so allocated. Underwriting expenses 
have been allocated to various classes of business on a basis deemed equitable by the management. Expenses 
not attributable to the underwriting business are charged as other expenses.

���� &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQWV
 Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the financial statement at cost. For the purpose of cash flow statement, 

cash and cash equivalents consists of cash in hand, stamps in hand and current and saving accounts with banks.
����� 5HYHQXH�UHFRJQLWLRQ
������ &RQWULEXWLRQ
 The revenue recognition policy for Contribution is given under note 3.3.
������� 5HWDNDIXO�UHEDWH�LQFRPH
 The revenue recognition policy for rebate from retakaful operators is given under note 3.2.
������� 'LYLGHQG�LQFRPH
 Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.
������� *DLQ���ORVV�RQ�VDOH���UHGHPSWLRQ�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV
 Gain / loss on sale / redemption of investments is taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the year 

of sale / redemption.
������� ,QFRPH�RQ�GHEW�VHFXULWLHV�DQG�EDQN�EDODQFHV
 Income from debt securities and bank balances is recognised on a time proportionate basis taking account the 

effective yield on the investment / bank balance.
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������� :DNDOD�DQG�0XGDULE�IHHs
 The Takaful operator manages the general takaful operations for the Participants. The wakala fee for January 

2022 was 10% and for the remaining period of the year it was 25% (2021: 10%) of the gross contribution on all 
classes of business as per approval of Shariah Advisory Board . Wakala fee is recognized on the same basis 
on which the related revenue is recognized. Unexpired portion of wakala fee is recognized as liability of OPF 
and asset of PTF.

 The Takaful operator also manages the participants' investment as Mudarib and charges 30% of the investment 
/ deposit income earned by the Participants' Takaful Fund as Mudarib's share (for the period from January 01, 
2022 to September 30, 2022 it was 10% per annum).

����� ,QYHVWPHQWV
 These comprises of the following:  

 - In equity securities
 - In debt securities
������� 5HFRJQLWLRQ
 All investments are initially recognised at cost, being the fair value of the consideration given and include 

transaction costs except for held for trading investments in which case transaction costs are charged to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income. All purchase and sale of investments that require delivery within the 
required time frame established by regulations or market convention are accounted for at the trade date. Trade 
date is the date when the WTO commits to purchase or sell the investments. These are recognised and classified 
as follows:

 - Investment at fair value through profit and loss (held for trading)
 - Available-for-sale
 - Held to maturity
������ Measurement
���������,QYHVWPHQW�DW�IDLU�YDOXH�WKURXJK�SURILW�RU�ORVV��KHOG�IRU�WUDGLQJ�
 At the time of acquisition, quoted investments which are acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit 

from short term fluctuations in price or are part of portfolio for which there is a recent actual pattern of short term 
profit taking are classified as held for trading.

 Subsequent to initial recognition these are remeasured at fair value by reference to quoted market prices (as 
explained below) with the resulting gain or loss being included in net profit or loss for the period in which it arises.

���������$YDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH
 Available-for-Sale investments are those non-derivative instruments / contracts that are designated as 

available-for-sale or are not classified in any other category.
 At the time of acquisition, investments which are intended to be held for an undefined period of time but may 

be sold in response to the need for liquidity or changes in interest rates are classified as available-for-sale.
 Subsequent to initial measurement, the available-for-sale investments are remeasured at fair value. Surplus / 

(deficit) on revaluation from one reporting date to other is taken to other comprehensive income in the statement 
of comprehensive income. On derecognition or impairment, the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in 
other comprehensive income is transferred to profit and loss for period within statement of comprehensive 
income.

 Fair value of the listed equity shares are determined with reference to the rates quoted on the stock exchange, 
while the fair value of the mutual funds units and of term finance certificates are determined with reference to 
the rates quoted on the MUFAP website. The fair value of the Government securities are determined with 
reference the rates quoted on the PKRV page.

 These are reviewed for impairment at year end and any losses arising from impairment in values are charged 
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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�������� Held-to-maturity
 At the time of acquisition, investments with fixed maturity, where management has both the intent and the ability 

to hold till maturity, are classified as held-to-maturity.
 Subsequently, these are measured at amortised cost less provision for impairment in value, if any. Amortised 

cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition by using the effective yield 
method.

 The difference between the redemption value and the purchase price of the held-to-maturity investments is 
amortised and taken to the profit and loss account over the term of the investment.

 These are reviewed for impairment at year end and any losses arising from impairment in values are charged 
to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

����� 2II�VHWWLQJ�RI�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statement, if 

the WTO has a legally enforceable right to set-off and the WTO intends either to settle the assets and liabilities 
on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

����� 7D[DWLRQ
������� &XUUHQW��RI�23)�
 Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income of the operator for the year determined in accordance 

with the tax rates enacted on substantially enacted as at the year end. The charge for current tax also include 
adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from assessments 
finalized during the current year for such years / relating to the operators fund operated.

������� 'HIHUUHG��RI�23)�
 Deferred tax is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method, in respect of temporary differences arising 

at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes.

 Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets 
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilised.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the periods when 
the asset is utilized or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profit and loss account 
except in the case of items credited or charged to equity in which case it is included in equity.

����� 6WDII�UHWLUHPHQW�EHQHILWV
������� 'HILQHG�FRQWULEXWLRQ�SODQ
 The WTO operates a recognised Provident Fund scheme for its employees. Equal contributions are made by 

the WTO and the employees at the applicable rate.
������� 'HILQHG�EHQHILW��RSHUDWRU��SODQ
 The WTO operates an unfunded approved gratuity scheme for all of its eligible permanent employees. Gratuity 

LV�EDVHG�RQ�HPSOR\HHV·�ODVW�GUDZQ�EDVLF�VDODU\�
 Provisions are made to cover the obligations under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation and are 

charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. The most recent valuation was carried out as of December 
31, 2022 using the “Projected Unit Credit Method”.

 Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability, which comprises actuarial gain and losses are recognized 
immediately in other comprehensive income. The WTO determines the net interest expense (income) on the 
net defined benefit liability (asset) for the year by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit 
obligation at the beginning of the annual year to the then net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account 
any change in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the year as a result of contribution and benefit 
payments. Net interest expense and other expense related to defined benefit plans are recognized in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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 When the benefits of the plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefits that 
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. The WTO recognises gain and loss on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement 
occurs.

������� (PSOR\HHV
�FRPSHQVDWHG�DEVHQFHV
 The WTO accounts for its liability towards accumulating compensated absences, when the employees render 

service that increase their entitlement to future compensated absences. An actuarial valuation has been carried 
out using Projected Unit Credit method to determine the amount of charge and liability to be recognized at the 
financial statement date. Charge for these benefits are immediately recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.

����� ,PSDLUPHQW�RI�DVVHWV
 A financial asset is assessed at each financial statement date to determine whether there is any objective 

evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if there is an objective evidence that 
one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset. If a decline in 
fair value is significant or prolonged, than there is an objective evidence, of impairment regardless of how long 
management intends to hold the investment.

 The carrying amount of non financial assets is reviewed at each financial statement date to determine whether 
there is any indication of impairment of any asset or group of assets. If such indication exist, the recoverable 
amount of such asset is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its 
fair value less cost of sell. An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its 
estimated recoverable amount.

 All impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Provision for impairment are 
reviewed at each financial statement date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Change in the 
provisions are recognised as an income or expense.

����� )RUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�WUDQVODWLRQV
 Transactions in foreign currencies are accounted for in rupees at the rates prevailing on the date of the transactions. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into rupees at the rates of 
exchange which approximate those prevailing at the financial statement date. Exchange differences are taken 
to the profit and loss account.

����� 6DOYDJH�UHFRYHULHV�DFFUXHG
 Salvage recoveries are recognized as an asset and measured at the amount expected to be received.
����� 3URYLVLRQ
������ Claims
 Takaful claims include all claims incurred during the year, whether reported or not, related internal and external 

claims handling costs that are directly related to the processing and settlement of claims.
������ Provision for outstanding claims
 The WTO recognizes liability in respect of all claims incurred up to the financial statement date which is measured 

at the undiscounted value of the expected future payments. The claims are considered to be incurred at the time 
of the incident giving rise to the claim except as otherwise expressly indicated in an insurance contract.

 The liability for claims include amounts relating to unpaid reported claims, claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) 
and expected claims settlement costs. Provision for liability in respect of unpaid reported claims is made on the 
basis of individual estimates (comprising of reports by the surveyors).

������� &ODLPV�LQFXUUHG�EXW�QRW�UHSRUWHG
 The provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is made at the financial statement date. In accordance 

with SECP circular No. 9 of 2016, the WTO takes actuarial advice for the determination of IBNR claims. IBNR 
claims have been estimated using Chain Ladder (CL) methodology. The Chain Ladder (CL) Method involves 
determination of development factors or link ratios for each period. These are then subsequently combined to 
determine Cumulative Development Factor (CDF) which represents the extent of future development of claims 
to reach their ultimate level.
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����� )LQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV

 Financial assets and financial liabilities within the scope of IAS-39 are recognized at the time when the WTO 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument and are derecognized when the WTO loses 
control of contractual rights that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial liabilities when the 
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the 
financial assets and financial liabilities is included in the Statment of Comprehensive Income. Fair value of 
financial assets at discounted interest rates are determined initially and the difference carried forward as a 
prepayment (staff bonus), which then is expensed out over the period in which the services are rendered.

����� 7DNDIXO�VXUSOXV

 Takaful surplus attributable to the participants is calculated after charging all direct cost and setting aside various 
reserves. Allocation to participants, if applicable, is made after adjustment of claims paid to them during the year.

����� 4DUG�H�+DVQD

 Qard-e-hasna is provided by Operators' Fund to Participants Takaful Fund in case of deficit in PTF. Qard-e-Hasna 
is recognised at the amount provided to Participant Takaful Fund less impairment, if any.

�� &5,7,&$/�$&&2817,1*�(67,0$7(6�$1'�-8'*(0(176

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of 
DSSO\LQJ�WKH�:72·V�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFHV��7KH�HVWLPDWHV���MXGJPHQWV�DQG�DVVRFLDWHG�DVVXPSWLRQV�XVHG�LQ�WKH�
preparation of the financial statements are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations 
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis 
of making the estimates about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources.

 Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised, 
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects 
ERWK�FXUUHQW�DQG�IXWXUH�SHULRGV��,Q�WKH�SURFHVV�RI�DSSO\LQJ�WKH�:72·V�DFFRXQWLQJ�SROLFLHV��PDQDJHPHQW�KDV�
made the following estimates and judgments which are significant to the financial statements:

   Note

 Contribution deficiency reserve 3.4
 Takaful / retakaful receivable - impairment 3.6.1
 Provision for outstanding claims including IBNR 3.18
 Taxation 3.13
 Staff retirement benefits 3.14
 Impairment of assets 3.15
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��� ,19(670(17�,1�086+$5.$�&(57,),&$7(6 'HFHPEHU���� ���� December 31, 2021
 - held to maturity Cost Impairment Carrying Cost Impairment Carrying
  � �� 9DOXH   Value 
� � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 OPF 
 First Habib Modaraba –00  –00  –00  35,000  –00  35,051 

 PTF 
 First Habib Modaraba –00  –00  –00  80,000  –00  80,116
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��� /2$16�$1'�27+(5�5(&(,9$%/(6 'HFHPEHU��������� December 31, 2021
  2SHUDWRU·V� 3DUWLFLSDQW� 7RWDO� 2SHUDWRU·V� 3DUWLFLSDQW� 7RWDO
  � �SURYLVLRQ� 9DOXH  provision Value 
� � 1RWH� �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Agent commission receivable –00  –00  –00  249  –00  249 

 Receivable from conventional operations 6.1 –00  2,823  2,823  –00  1  1
   –00  2,823  2,823  249  1  250

��� This represents contribution received in advance. The amount credited in the conventional operational bank account.

��� 7$.$)8/���5(7$.$)8/�5(&(,9$%/(���8QVHFXUHG
   December 31, December 31,
   2022 2021
   Note (Rupees in '000)

 Due from Takaful contract holders
 Considered good   79,223 73,638 
 Considered doubtful 7.1 20,602 1,988 
 Less: Provision for impairment of receivables from
     takaful contract holders (20,602) (1,988 )
   79,223 73,638

 Due from other takaful / retakaful operators - Considered good 51,362 68,776
   130,585 142,414

���� 0RYHPHQW�RI�FRQVLGHUHG�GRXEWIXO

 Opening balance 1,988 1,564
 Add: Provision for impairment of due
        from other insurers / reinsurers 18,614 424
 Closing balance  20,602 1,988

��� 35(3$<0(176
   December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
      OPF PTF Total OPF PFT Total
   Note  (Rupees in '000)

 Prepaid     
 Retakaful contribution ceded   –00 55,998 55,998 –00 43,143 43,143
 Others  8.1 465 –00 465 300 –00 300
    465 55,998 56,463 300 43,143 43,443

��� This represents accrual maintenance charges of Takaful software.

��� &$6+�$1'�%$1.

 &DVK�DQG�FDVK�HTXLYDOHQW     
    – Policy stamps   –00 6 6 –00 5 5

 &DVK�DW�EDQN     
    – Profit and loss sharing (PLS) accounts  9.1 89,535 211,901 301,436 8,246 45,076 53,322
    89,535 211,907 301,442 8,246 45,081 53,327
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��� These balances are held with a related party and carry profit at a rate of 9.25% to 14.75% (2021: 6.5% to 8.25%).

���� 27+(5�&5(',7256�$1'�$&&58$/6
   December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
� � � � � 1RWH� 2SHUDWRU·V� 3DUWLFLSDQW� 7RWDO� 2SHUDWRU·V� 3DUWLFLSDQW� 7RWDO
      Fund Takaful Fund  Fund Takaful
     (Rupees in '000)

 Federal takaful fee   –00 475 475 –00 454 454
 Federal Excise Duty   –00 6,658 6,658 –00 4,083 4,083
 Commission payable   30,129 –00 30,129 20,009 –00 20,009
 Provision for compensated clerance  10.1 408 –00 408 438 –00 438
 Payable to Habib Insurance Company
    Limited - Conventional Operations  10.2 2,407 –00 2,407 1,453 –00 1,453
 Other creditors   228 254 482 170 –00 170
 Other accrued expenses   1,996 –00 1,996 776 –00 776

    35,168 7,387 42,555 22,846 4,537 27,383

���� This includes provision for staff compensated absences amounting to Rs. 0.408 million (2021: Rs. 0.438 million). 
The liability is determined through an actuarial valuation carried out under the projected unit credit (PUC) actuarial 
cost method (by an actuary). An amount of Rs. 0.03 million (2021: Rs. 0.058 million) has been charged to profit 
and loss account in the current year based on the actuarial advice.

���� Due for expenses incurred on behalf of the PTF Operations.

��� 5(7,5(0(17�%(1(),7�2%/,*$7,216

� 'HILQHG�EHQHILW�REOLJDWLRQ���XQIXQGHG�JUDWXLW\�VFKHPH

���� The Company is operating an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees. Gratuity entitlement is 
based on the last drawn basic salaries. The obligation under this scheme is determined under an actuarial valuation 
carried out by a qualified actuary using the Projected Limit Credit Method. The latest valuation was carried out 
as of December 31, 2022.

      

      2022 2021
      (No. of Employees)

 The number of employees covered under the defined benefit scheme are: 02 02

���� The following principal actuarial assumptions were used for the valuation of above mentioned scheme:

      2022 2021
         
 Financial assumptions   
 - Discount rate (per annum compounded)   14.25% 11.75%
 - Salary increase per annum   14.25% 11.75%
 Demographic assumptions
  - Expected service length of the employees   15 years 15 years
  - Normal retirement   60 years 60 years
  - Rate of employee turnover   Light Light
  - Mortality rate   SLIC (2001-05)-1 SLIC (2001-05)-1
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      2022 2021
      �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

�����/LDELOLW\�LQ�ILQDQFLDO�VWDWHPHQW   

 Present value of defined benefit obligations   1,956 1,632

�����5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI���PRYHPHQW�LQ�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�REOLJDWLRQV   

 Present value of defined benefit obligations as at Januar 01,   1,632 –00
 Current service cost   164 816
 Interest cost    200 816
 Actuarial gain on obligation   (40 ) –00
 Present value of defined benefit obligations as at December 31,  1,956 1,632

�����&KDUJH�RI�WHK�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�SODQ   

 Cost recognised in profit and loss   
 Current service cost   164 816
 Interest cost    200 816
       364 1,632

�����$FWXDULDO�JDLQ�RQ�GHILQHG�EHQHILW�REOLJDWLRQ
    recognised in other comprehensive income   

 Actuarial gain on defined benefit obligation   
 - (Gain) /  Loss due to change in financial assumptions   22 26
 - (Gain) / Loss due to change in experience adjustments   (62 ) (26 )
       (40 ) –0

�����6HQVLWLYLW\�DQDO\VLV

 Sensitivity analysis has been performed by varying one assumption keeping all other assumptions constant and 
calculating the impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligations on various employee benefit schemes. 
The increase / (decrease) in the present value of defined benefit obligations as a result of change in each 
assumption is summarized below:

      2022 2021
      �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Increase in discount rate by 0.5%   (1,814 ) (1,505 )
 Decrease in discount rate by 0.5%   2,110  1,770
 Increase in expected future increment in salary by 0.5%   2,114  1,773
 Deceease in expected future increment in salary by 0.5%   (1,809 ) (1,501 )

���� 7$.$)8/�5(7$.$)8/�3$<$%/(

 Due to other takaful / retakaful   59,213  63,136

�����'XH�WR�RWKHU�WDNDIXO���UHWDNDIXO

 - Foreign retakaful   46,482  29,550
 - Local retakaful   12,731  13,225
 - Co-takaful    –��  20,361

       59,213  63,136
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 The Company has co-insurance and re-insurance arrangements with various insurance and a domestic re-insurance 
company. Under the above arrangements, the receivable and payable balances originate mainly due to premiums 
collected or claims settled by the lead insurer on behalf of other co-insurers, and in case of re-insurance, the 
premium ceded to and claims recoverable from the re-insurer under the respective contracts. As per the prevailing 
industry practices, settlements of balances under co-insurance arrangements are done between the respective 
insurance companies in normal course of business. The current balances of co- insurers and re-insurer reflected 
in the records of the Company are based on the underlying contracts and transactions. As advised by SECP, 
the process for reconciliation of these balances with the respective insurance companies will be formalized as 
per the guidelines suggested by the Insurance Association of Pakistan for the insurance industry.

      December 31, December 31,
      2022 2021
      (Rupees in ' 000)
���� 1(7�&2175,%87,21
 :ULWWHQ�JURVV�FRQWULEXWLRQ�����������������  385,139 255,326
 Less: Wakala Fee  (57,757 ) (15,730 )
 &RQWULEXWLRQ�1HW�RI�:DNDOD�)HH�������������������  327,382  239,596 
 Add: Unearned contribution reserve opening  130,184  75,074
 Less: Unearned contribution reserve closing  (182,731 ) (130,184 )
 &RQWULEXWLRQ�HDUQHG  274,835 184,486

 5HWDNDIXO�FRQWULEXWLRQ�FHGHG�����������������  159,400 105,435
 Add: Prepaid retakaful contribution opening  43,143  32,671
 Less: Prepaid retakaful contribution closing  (55,998 ) (43,143 )
 5HWDNDIXO�H[SHQVH�������������������  146,545  94,963 
 1HW�FRQWULEXWLRQ�������������������  128,290  89,523 

���� 5(7$.$)8/�5(%$7(
 Retakaful rebate received                   27,066 18,544
 Add: Unearned retakaful rebate - opening  8,646  6,240
 Less: Unearned retakaful rebate - closing  (11,254 ) (8,646 )
 Retakaful rebate                    24,458  16,138 

���� 7$.$)8/�&/$,06�(;3(16(
 Claims paid                   135,113 70,882
 Add: Outstanding claims including IBNR closing  118,074  48,618
 Less: Outstanding claims including IBNR opening  (48,618 ) (59,783 )
 &ODLPV�H[SHQVH�������������������  204,569  59,717 

 5HWDNDIXO�DQG�RWKHU�UHFRYHULHV�UHFHLYHG�����������������  42,253 26,104
 Add: Retakaful and other recoveries in respect of
  outstanding claims net of impairment - closing  61,843  21,618
 Less: Retakaful and other recoveries in respect of
  outstanding claims net of impairment - opening  (21,618 ) (39,731 )
 5HWDNDIXO�DQG�RWKHU�UHFRYHULHV�UHYHQXH�������������������  82,478  7,991 
 1HW�FODLP�H[SHQVH�������������������  122,091  51,726

���� 27+(5�(;3(16(6���37)
 This represents co-takaful service charges.

���� 27+(5�,1&20(���37)
 This represents the amounts pertaining to liabilities written back that are no longer payable.
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���� � ,19(670(17�,1&20(���QHW� � 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� 3DUWLFLSDQW�7DNDIXO�)XQG
    Note December 31, December 31, December 31, December 31,
     2022 2021 2022 2021
� � � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Income from mutual fund units 
� �����DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH

 Dividend income 3,283 1,060 8,835 –00 
 Capital gain  –00  1,470 –00  –00

 Income from mutual fund units 
� �����DYDLODEOH�IRU�VDOH

 Profit on certificate of Musharika 2,194 51 5,651 116 
 Profit on certificate of Sharikah –00  –00 1,775  –00

 Return on bank balances 858 486 3,859 5,509 
 Mudarib fees  18.1 2,965  –00 (2,965 ) –00
 Total investment income 9,300  3,067 17,155  5,625

���� Introduced from the current year

      December 31, December 31,
     Note 2022 2021
     (Rupees in ' 000)
���� :$.$/$�)((

 Gross Wakala Fee  88,959  24,995
 Add: Deferred wakala fee - opening  13,019  3,754
 Less: Deferred wakala fee - closing  (44,221 ) (13,019 )
 Net wakala fee  57,757  15,730

���� &200,66,21�(;3(16(

 Commissions paid or payable  49,641  29,070
 Add: Deferred commission - opening  14,423  8,028
 Less: Deferred commission - closing  (23,498 ) (14,423 )
 Commission expense  40,566  22,675

���� 5(&(,9$%/(�)520�37)�3$<$%/(�72�27)

 Opening balance  7,577  (5,011 )
 Wakala fee income  88,959  24,995
 Wakala fee received  (92,032 ) (12,407 )
 Mudarib fees   2,965  –00
 Closing balance  7,469  7,577
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      December 31, December 31,
     Note 2022 2021
     (Rupees in ' 000)
���� 0$1$*(0(17�(;3(16(6���23)

 Employee benefit cost 22.1 4,491  5,152
 Traveling expenses  –00  211
 Utilities - electricity and water  1,745  895
 Repairs and maintenance   1,978  3,386
 Vehicle running expenses  428  234
 Legal and professional charges  2,522  1,475
 Postages, telegrams and telephone  341  185
  Miscellaneous  702  565
    12,207  12,103

���� This includes Rs.2.918 million (2021: Rs. 2.718 million) being salaries and other benefits Rs.0.162 million 
 (2021: Rs. 0.134) being contribution to employees' provident fund.

      December 31, December 31,
     Note 2022 2021
     (Rupees in ' 000)
���� 27+(5�(;3(16(6���23)

 Auditors remuneration 23.1 1,170  1,122
 Subscription  495  34
    1,665  1,156

�����$XGLWRU·V�UHPXQHUDWLRQ

 Audit fee  746  701
 Review of condensed interim financial statements  281  295
 Out-of-pocket expenses  143  126
    1,170  1,122

���� &/$,0�'(9(/230(17���37)

 The following table shows the development of claims over a period of time on gross basis. For each class of 
business the uncertainty about the amount and timings of claims payment is usually resolved within a year:   
       

 Accident year 2018  2019  2020 2021 2022
  (Rupees in '000)
 (VWLPDWH�RI�XOWLPDWH�FODLPV�FRVWV�
  

 At end of accident year 1,931  27,242  87,248  82,069  223,366

 One year later 1,213  23,328  64,951  62,870  –00

 Two year later 1,028  23,233  65,229  –00  –00

 Three year later –00  23,367  –00  –00  –00

 Estimate of cumulative claims –00  23,367  65,229  62,870  223,366

 Cumulative payment made to date –00  (22,662 ) (58,902 ) (59,996 ) (115,198 )

 Liability for outstanding claims –00  705  6,327  2,874  108,168
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      December 31, December 31,
      2022 2021
     (Rupees in ' 000)
���� 7$;$7,21

 For the year
 Current  3,660  –00

�����5HODWLRQVKLS�EHWZHHQ�WD[�HSHQVH�DQG�DFFRXQWLQJ�SURILW

 Profit / (Los) before taxation  12,619  (17,137 )

 Tax at enacted rate of 29% (2021: 29%)  3,660  –00

���� Deferred tax of Rs. 4.97 million (2021: Rs. 4.97 million) on losses has not been recognized under prudence.

���� &217,1*(1&,(6�$1'�&200,70(176

�����&RQWLQJHQFLHV

 There are no contingencies outstanding as at December 31, 2022.

�����&RPPLWPHQWV

 There are no commitments as at December 31, 2022.

���� 75$16$&7,216�:,7+�5(/$7('�3$57,(6

 Related parties comprise of directors, major share holders, key management personnel, associated companies, 
entities with common directors and employee retirement benefit funds. The transactions with related parties are 
carried out at commercial terms and conditions. The transactions and balances with related parties are as follows:

      December 31, December 31,
      2022 2021
      (Rupees in ' 000)
����� 2SHUDWRU
V�)XQG 
 Transactions
 Wakala fee charged during the year 88,959  24,995
 Mudarib fees charged during the year 2,965  –00
 Qard-e-Hasna repayment received during the year –00  10,209
 Transactions during the year with associated companies
 Profit on bank accounts 858  486
 Balances with associated companies
 Bank balance 84,830  8,246

 Transactions during the year with other related parties
   including key management personnel
 Contribution to the provident fund 162  134
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      2022 2021
      (Rupees in ' 000)
����� 3DUWLFLSDQWV
�7DNDIXO�)XQG
 Transactions
 Associated companies
  - Contribution written 19,649  12,560
  - Claim paid 8,371  9,040
  - Profit on bank accounts 3,859  5,270

 Others
  - Mudarib fee charged during the year 2,965  –00
 
  - Qard-e-Hasna repaid during the year –00  10,209

  Commission income 17,196  11,791

 Balances
 Associated companies
  - Contribution due but unpaid 2,441  9,774
  - Claim outstanding 4,411  3,227
  - Bank balance 186,557  19,779

� � � � � � 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG
     Held to Available 
     Maturity for sale Total
      (Rupees in ' 000)
���� 029(0(17�,1�,19(670(176

 $V�DW�-DQXDU\��������� –00  36,448  36,448
 Additions 35,000  –00  35,000
 Disposals (sale and redemption) –00  (36,363 ) (36,363 )
 Fair value net gains (excluding net realized gains) –00  (85 ) (85 )
 Impairment of investments 51  –00  51
 $V�DW�'HFHPEHU��������� 35,051  –00  35,051

 Disposals (sale and redemption) (35,000 ) –00  (35,000 )
 Fair value net gains (excluding net realized gains) (51 ) –00  (51 )
 $V�DW�'HFHPEHU��������� –00  –00  –00



��� 0$1$*(0(17�2)�7$.$)8/�$1'�),1$1&,$/�5,6.
 The Operator issue contracts that transfer takaful risk or financial risk or both. This section summarises the 

takaful risks and the way the Operator manages them.
����� 7DNDIXO�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW
�������7DNDIXO�ULVN
 The risk under any takaful contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the 

amount of compensation to the participant. Generally most takaful contracts carry the takaful risk for a period 
of one year, although in case of marine contract, it may be of lesser period.

 The Operator's risk exposure is mitigated by employing a comprehensive framework to identify, assess, manage 
and monitor risk. This framework includes implementation of underwriting strategies which aim to ensure that 
the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and amount of the risk. Adequate retakaful is arranged 
to mitigate the effect of the potential loss to the PTF from individual to large or catastrophic insured events. 
Further, the Operator adopts strict claim review policies including active management and prompt pursuing of 
the claims and regular detailed review of claim handling procedures and frequent investigation of possible false 
claims to reduce the takaful risk.

�������)UHTXHQF\�DQG�VHYHULW\�RI�FODLPV
 Risk associated with general takaful contracts includes the reasonable possibility of significant loss as well as 

the frequent occurrence of the covered events. This has been managed by having in place underwriting strategy, 
retakaful arrangements and proactive claim handling procedures.

 The retakaful arrangements against major risk exposure include excess of loss, quota share, surplus arrangements 
and catastrophic coverage. The objective of having such arrangements is to mitigate adverse impacts of severe 
losses on PTF's net retentions.

�������8QFHUWDLQW\�LQ�WKH�HVWLPDWLRQ�RI�IXWXUH�FODLP�SD\PHQWV
 Claims on takaful contracts are payable on a claim occurrence basis. The PTF is liable for all covered events 

that occur during the term of the takaful contracts respectively, including the event reported after the expiry of 
the takaful contract term.

 An estimated amount of the claim is recorded immediately on the intimation to the Operator. The estimation of 
the amount is based on management judgement or preliminary assessment by the independence surveyor 
appointed for the purpose. The initial estimates include expected settlement cost of the claims. Provision for 
IBNR claims is determined based on actuary advice and is  estimated using Chain Ladder (CL) methodology. 
The Chain Ladder (CL) Method involves determination of development factors or link ratios for each period. 
These are then subsequently combined to determine Cumulative Development Factor (CDF) which represents 
the extent of future development of claims to reach their ultimate level.
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      Participant Takaful Fund
     Held to Available 
     Maturity for sale Total
      (Rupees in ' 000)

 $V�DW�-DQXDU\��������� –00  –00  –00
 Additions 80,000  –00  80,000
 Disposals (sale and redemption) –00  –00  –00
 Fair value net gains (excluding net realized gains) –00  –00  –00
 Amortisation of premium / discount 116  –00  116
 $V�DW�'HFHPEHU��������� 80,116  –00  80,116

 Disposals (sale and redemption) (80,000 ) –00  (80,000 )
 Fair value net gains (excluding net realized gains) (116 ) –00  (116 )
 $V�DW�'HFHPEHU��������� –00  –00  –00
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 There are several variable factors which affect the amount and timing of recognised claim liabilities. The Operator 
takes all reasonable measures to mitigate the factors affecting the amount and timing of claim settlements. 
However, uncertainty prevails with estimated claim liabilities and it is likely that final settlement of these liabilities 
may be different from initial recognised amount. Outstanding claims are reviewed on a periodic basis.

�������.H\�DVVXPSWLRQV

 The process used to determine the assumptions for calculating the outstanding claim reserve is intended to 
result in neutral estimates of the most likely or expected income. The nature of the business makes it very 
difficult to predict with certainty the likely outcome of any particular claim and the ultimate cost of notified claims. 
Each notified claim is assessed on a separate case to case basis with due regard to the claim circumstances, 
information available from surveyors and historical evidence of the size of similar claims. Core estimates are 
reviewed regularly and are updated as and when new information is available.

 The principal assumption underlying the liability estimation of IBNR and Contribution Deficiency Reserves is 
that the PTF's future claim development will follow similar historical pattern for occurrence and reporting. The 
management uses qualitative judgement to assess the extent to which past occurrence and reporting pattern 
will not apply in future. The judgement includes external factors e.g. treatment of one-off occurrence claims, 
changes in market factors, economic conditions, etc.

 The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost 
of settling claims already notified to the Operator, in which case information about the claim event is available. 
IBNR provisions are initially estimated at a gross level and a separate calculation is carried out to estimate the 
size of the reinsurance recoveries. The estimation process takes into account the past claims reporting pattern 
and details of reinsurance programs.

�������6HQVLWLYLW\�DQDO\VLV

 The risks associated with the takaful contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables which complicate 
quantitative sensitivity analysis. The Operator makes various assumptions and techniques based on past claims 
development experience. This includes indications such as average claims cost, ultimate claims numbers and 
expected loss ratios. The Operator considers that the liability for claims recognised in the balance sheet is 
adequate. However, actual experience may differ from the expected outcome.

 The claim liabilities are sensitive to the incidence of covered events and severity / size of claims. As the Operator 
enters into short term takaful contracts, it does not assume any significant impact of changes in market conditions 
on unexpired risks. However, some results of sensitivity testing are set out below, showing the impact on profit 
before tax net of retakaful. The impact of 10 % increase / decrease in incidence of covered events on gross 
claim liabilities, underwriting results, net claim liabilities, profit before tax and shareholder's equity is as follows:

   Participant Takaful Fund
   December 31, December 31,
   2022 2021
   Underwriting Underwriting
   results and results and
   Fund balance Fund balance
    (Rupees in '000)

 Average claim cost
 Fire and property 6,503  1,211
 Marine and transport 1,718  (89 )
 Motor  12,147  4,742
 Other classes 90  108
   20,458  5,972
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�������&RQFHQWUDWLRQ�RI�ULVN

 To optimise benefits from the principle of average and law of large numbers, geographical spread of risk is of 
extreme importance. There are a number of parameters which are significant in assessing the accumulation 
of risk with reference to the geographical location, the most important of which is risk survey. Risk surveys are 
carried out on a regular basis for the evaluation of physical hazards associated with the insured property.

 The adequate event limit is a multiple of the treaty capacity or the primary recovery from excess of loss treaty, 
which is very much in line with the risk management philosophy of the Operator. Retakaful ceded does not 
relieve the Operator from its obligation towards participants and, as a result the Operator remains liable for the 
portion of outstanding claims retakaful to the extent that retakaful operator fails to meet the obligation under 
the retakaful agreements. The Operator minimises its exposure to significant losses by obtaining retakaful from 
a number of retakaful, who are dispersed over several geographical regions.

 The concentration of risk by type of contracts based on single risk with maximum exposure is summarised below: 
       
    2022

   Gross sum  Retakaful Net
   covered  
   (Rupees in '000)

 Fire and property 2,400,000 2,385,000 15,000
 Marine and transport 457,235 450,376 6,859
 Motor  36,500 33,000 3,500
 Other classes 279,072 270,107 8,965
   3,172,807 3,138,483 34,324

    2021
   Gross sum  Retakaful Net
   covered  
   (Rupees in '000)

 Fire and property 1,030,551 1,011,795 18,756
 Marine and transport 680,064 672,441 7,623
 Motor  26,000 24,500 1,500
 Other classes 35,116 26,337 8,779
   1,771,731 1,735,073 36,658
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���� 6(*0(17�,1)250$7,21
����� 3DUWLFLSDQWV·�7DNDIXO�)XQG
  2022
  Fire  Marine  Motor Other Aggregate
  and and  classes
  property transport
  (Rupees in '000)
 Contribution receivable (inclusive of federal 
     excise duty and administrative surcharge) 129,125  42,003  264,333  5,907  441,368 
 Less: Federal Excise Duty  (16,597 ) (4,575 ) (30,635 ) (658 ) (52,465 )
          Federal Insurance Fee (1,111 ) (368 ) (2,238 ) (47 ) (3,764 ) 
 Gross written contribution 
     (inclusive of adminsitrative surcharge) 111,417  37,060  231,460  5,202  385,139
 Wakala fees (16,709 ) (5,558 ) (34,711 ) (780 ) (57,757 )
 Takaful contribution earned 94,083  38,186  194,055  6,268  332,592
 Takaful contribution ceded to retakaful operators (85,100 ) (31,602 ) (24,756 ) (5,087 ) (146,545 )
 Net takaful contribution (7,726 ) 1,026  134,588  401  128,290
 Retakaful rebate 16,492  6,798  114  1,054  24,458  
 Net underwriting income 8,766  7,824  134,702  1,455  152,748
 Takaful claims (65,025 ) (17,175 ) (121,465 ) (904 ) (204,569 )
 Takaful claims recoverd from retakaful 59,428  14,974  7,418  658  82,478 
 Net claims (5,597 ) (2,201 ) (114,047 ) (246 ) (122,091)
 Surplus before investment income 3,170  5,623  20,655  1,209  30,657
 Provision for impairment         (24,304 )
 Other expenses         (1,427 )
 Other income         2,442
 Net investment income 1,774  3,147  11,558  677  17,155
 Surplus transferred to balance of PTF 4,944  8,770  32,213  1,886  24,523

 Allocated Assets
 Premium due but unpaid 11,202  11,927  55,886  208  79,223
 Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 51,002  2,948  480  1,568  55,998
 Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 47,438  11,650  256  2,474  61,818
 Deferred Wakala expense 14,263  854  28,595  509  44,221
 Salvage recoveries outstanding –00  25  –00  –00  25
  123,905  27,404  85,217  4,759  241,285

 8QDOORFDWHG�$VVHWV
 Amount deu from other insurers/ reinsurers         51,362
 Cash and Cash equivalents         211,907
 Loan - secured, considered good         2,823
 Taxation - provision less payment         5,640
          271,732
 Total assets         513,017 
 $OORFDWHG�/LDELOLWLHV 
 Outstanding Claims 52,504  13,500  48,662  3,408  118,074
 Unearned Premium 58,010  3,577  119,062  2,082  182,731
 Reserve for unearned retakaful rebate 10,235  645  42  332  11,254
  120,749  17,722  167,766  5,822  312,059

 8QDOORFDWHG�/LDELOLWLHV
 Contribution received in advance         19,697
 Amount due to other insurer/ reinsurers         65,713
 Other creditors and accruals         7,387
 Payable to OPF         7,469
          100,266
 7RWDO�OLDELOLWLHV         412,325
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  2022
  Fire  Marine  Motor Other Aggregate
  and and  classes
  property transport
  (Rupees in '000)

����� 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG
 Wakala fee         57,757
 Commission expense         (40,566 ) 

Management expenses         (12,207 )
          4,984

 Investment income         9,300
 Other expenses         (1,665 )
 /RVV�EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ         (12,619 )
 Taxation         (3,660 )
 Loss after tax for the period         8,959

 Segment assets         120,967

 6HJPHQW�OLDELOLWLHV� �� �� �� �� 82,965
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� 6(*0(17�,1)250$7,21
� 3DUWLFLSDQWV·�7DNDIXO�)XQG
  2021
  Fire  Marine  Motor Other Aggregate
  and and  classes
  property transport
  (Rupees in '000)
 Contribution receivable (inclusive of federal 
     excise duty and administrative surcharge) 89,157  31,236  166,892  6,435  293,720 
 Less: Federal Excise Duty  (11,465 ) (3,788 ) (19,831 ) (786 ) (35,870 )
          Federal Insurance Fee (768 ) (270 ) (1,430 ) (56 ) (2,524 ) 
 Gross written contribution 
     (inclusive of adminsitrative surcharge) 76,924  27,178  145,631  5,593  255,326
 Wakala fees (4,739 ) (1,674 ) (8,972 ) (345 ) (15,730 )
 Takaful contribution earned 64,773  26,924  102,387  6,132  200,216
 Takaful contribution ceded to retakaful operators (54,566 ) (22,070 ) (13,585 ) (4,742 ) (94,963 )
 Net takaful contribution 5,468  3,180  79,830  1,045  89,523
 Retakaful rebate 10,371  4,757  75  935  16,138 
 Net underwriting income 15,839  7,937  79,905  1,980  105,661
 Takaful claims (12,112 ) 885  (47,414 ) (1,076 ) (59,717 )
 Takaful claims recoverd from retakaful 9,277  (632 ) (1,421 ) 767  7,991 
 Net claims (2,835 ) 253  (48,835 ) (309 ) (51,726 )
 Surplus before investment income 13,004  8,190  31,070  1,671  53,935
 Provision for impairment –00  –00  –00  –00  (424 )
 Net investment income 27  18  67  4  116
 Profit on bank balances –00  –00  –00  –00  5,509
 Surplus transferred to balance of PTF 13,031  8,208  31,137  1,675  59,136

 Allocated Assets
 Premium due but unpaid 12,959  9,572  50,060  1,047  73,638
 Prepaid reinsurance premium ceded 36,077  4,074  331  2,661  43,143
 Reinsurance recoveries against outstanding claims 12,393  5,600  –00  2,415  20,408
 Deferred Wakala expense 4,068  470  8,166  315  13,019
 Salvage recoveries outstanding –00  10  1,200  –00  1,210
  65,497  19,726  59,757  6,438  151,418
 Unallocated Assets
 Amount due from other insurers/ reinsurers         68,776
 Investment         80,116
 Cash and Cash equivalents         45,081
 Loan - secured, considered good         1
 Taxation - provision less payment         803
          194,777
 Total assets         346,195 
 $OORFDWHG�/LDELOLWLHV 
 Outstanding Claims 14,922  6,595  23,880  3,221  48,618
 Unearned Premium 40,675  4,702  81,658  3,149  130,184
 Reserve for unearned retakaful rebate 7,195  873  31  547  8,646
  62,792  12,170  105,569  6,917  187,448

 8QDOORFDWHG�/LDELOLWLHV
 Contribution received in advance         7,328
 Amount due to other insurer/ reinsurers         63,136
 Other creditors and accruals         4,537
 Payable to OPF         7,577
          82,578
 Total liabilities         270,026



  2021
  Fire  Marine  Motor Other Aggregate
  and and  classes
  property transport
  (Rupees in '000)

� 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG
 Wakala fee         15,730
 Commission expense         (22,675 ) 

Management expenses         (12,103 )
          (19,048 )

 Investment income         2,581
 Other expenses         (1,156)
 /RVV�EHIRUH�WD[DWLRQ         (17,623 )
 Profit on bank balance         486
 Other income         –00
 Loss after tax for the period         (17,137 )

 Segment assets         66,540

 6HJPHQW�OLDELOLWLHV� �� �� �� �� 37,497
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��� 0$1$*(0(17�2)�7$.$)8/�$1'�),1$1&,$/�5,6.
 Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies are consistent with those disclosed in financial 

statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.
����� &UHGLW�ULVN
 Credit risk is the risk that arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge 

its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Operator attempts to control credit risk by 
monitoring credit exposures by undertaking transactions with a large number of counterparties in various 
industries and by continually assessing the credit worthiness of counterparties.

�������0DQDJHPHQW�RI�FUHGLW�ULVN
 The Operator's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the guidelines set by the Board of 

Directors. Credit risk is managed and controlled by the management of the Operator in the following manner:
 - Credit rating and / or credit worthiness of the counter party is taken into account along with  the financial 

background so as to minimize the risk of default. Collaterals are obtained wherever appropriate / relevant.
 - The risk of counterparty exposure due to failed agreements causing a loss to the Operator is mitigated by 

a periodic review of the credit ratings, financial statements, credit worthiness, etc. on a regular basis and 
makes provision against those balances considered doubtful of recovery.

 - Loans given to employees are deductible from the salary of the employees. 
 - Cash is held with reputable banks only.
 To reduce the credit risk the management continuously reviews and monitors the credit exposure towards the 

policyholders and other insurers/reinsurers and makes provision against those balances considered doubtful 
of recovery.

�������([SRVXUH�WR�FUHGLW�ULVN
 In summary, compared to the amount included in statement of assets and liabilities, the maximum exposure 

to credit risk as at December 31, 2022 is as follows:

    December 31, 2022
� � � 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� 3DUWLFLSDQW�7DNDIXO�)XQG
   Balance as per Maximum Balance as per Maximum
   the financial  exposure the financial  exposure
   statement  statement 
    (Rupees in '000)

 Loan and other receivables –00 –00 2,823 2,823
 Takaful / retakaful receivable –00 –00 130,585 130,585
 Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims –00 –00 61,818 61,818
 Salvage recoveries accrued –00 –00 25 25
 Receivable from PTF 7,469 7,469 –00 –00
 Balance with banks 89,535 89,535 211,901 211,901
   97,004 97,004 407,152 407,152

    December 31, 2021
� � � 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� 3DUWLFLSDQW�7DNDIXO�)XQG
   Balance as per Maximum Balance as per Maximum
   the financial  exposure the financial  exposure
   statement  statement 
    (Rupees in '000)
  
 Investment in debt securities 35,051 35,051 80,116 80,116
 Loans and other receivables 249 249 1 1
 Takaful / retakaful receivable –00 –00 142,414 142,414
 Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims –00 –00 20,408 20,408
 Salvage recoveries accrued –00 –00 1,210 1,210
 Receivable from PTF 7,577 7,577 –00 –00
 Bank balances 8,246 8,246 45,076 45,076
   51,123 51,123 289,225 289,225
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�������3DVW�GXH���LPSDLUHG�DVVHWV
 Age analysis of contribution due but unpaid at the reporting date was:
    December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
    Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
    (Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)

 Upto 1 year  82,875 3,652  70,122  –00
 1-2 year  13,510 13,510  5,055  1,988
 Over 2 years  3,441  3,441  449  –00
 Total  99,826 20,603  75,626  1,988

 Age analysis of amount due from other takaful / retakaful Operators at the reporting date was:

    2022  2021
    Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
    (Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)

 Upto 1 year  45,187 –00  37,463  –00
 1-2 year  16,246 –00  19,054  –00
 Over 2 years  4,680  –00  12,259  –00
 Total  66,113 –00  68,776  –00

 Age analysis of retakaful and other recoveries against outstanding claims at the reporting date was:

    2022  2021
    Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
    (Rupees in '000) (Rupees in '000)

 Upto 1 year  49,060 –00  4,915  –00
 1-2 year   (3,920) –00  16,703  –00
 Over 2 years  16,703  –00  –00   –00
 Total  61,843 –00  21,618  –00

 In respect of the aforementioned takaful and retakaful assets, the Company takes into account its past history 
/ track record of recoveries and financial position of the counterparties while creating provision for impairment. 
Further, retakaful recoveries are made when corresponding liabilities are settled.

�������&UHGLW�5DWLQJ�DQG�&ROODWHUDO
 The credit quality of Operator's bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit rating as follows:

      
  December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
� � � 6KRUW��/RQJ� 5DWLQJ� 2SHUDWRU·V� 3DUWLFLSDQW� 2SHUDWRU·V� 3DUWLFSDQW
   term Rating Agency Fund Takaful Fund Fund Takaful Fund
� � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����� �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Bank AL Habib Limited A1+ / AAA PACRA 84,830 186,557 8,246 19,779
 Habib Bank Limited  A1+ / AAA JCR-VIS 4,705 7,429 –00 –00
 Meezan Bank Limited A1+ / AAA JCR-VIS –00 17,915 –00 25,297
     89,535 211,901 8,246 45,076
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 The Operator enters into re-takaful / co-takaful arrangements with re-takaful / other takaful operators having 
sound credit ratings accorded by reputed credit rating agencies. The Operator is required to comply with the 
requirements of circular no. 32 / 2009 dated October 27, 2009 issued by SECP which requires an insurance 
company to place at least 80% of their outward treaty cessions with reinsurers rated 'A' or above by Standard 
& Poors with the balance being placed with entities rated at least 'BBB' by reputable ratings agency. An analysis 
of re-takaful assets relating to outward treaty cessions recognised by the rating of the entity from which it is 
relates is as follows:

    Reinsurance  
   Amount due recoveries Prepaid 
   from other against reinsurance  
   insurers / outstanding premium  
    reinsurers claims ceded 2022 2021
� � � �5XSHHV�LQ�·����
 A or above
     (including PRCL)  51,362 61,843 55,998 169,203 133,537

�������&RQFHQWUDWLRQ�RI�FUHGLW�ULVN

 Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties have a similar type of business activities. 
As a result, any change in economic, political or other conditions would effect their ability to meet contractual 
obligations in similar manner. The company manages concentration of credit risk through diversification of 
activities among individuals, groups and industry segments.

 Sector-wise analysis of contribution due but unpaid at the reporting date was:

  Partcipant Takaful Fund Partcipant Takaful Fund
    December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
    (Rupees in '000) % (Rupees in '000) %
      
 Automobiles  22,015 27.79 34,004 46.18
 Banks, modaraba and leasing 1,049 1.32 7,833 10.64
 Textile and composite 38,317 48.37 9,940 13.50
 Chemicals and allied industries 2,953 3.73 526 0.71
 Cable, engineering and steel 1,684 2.13 3,792 5.15
 Food and confectionary 3,535 4.46 2,558 3.47
 Sugar  671 0.85 2,898 3.94
 Pharmaceuticals 126 0.16 2,130 2.89
 Others  8,873 11.20 9,957 13.52
    79,223 100.00 73,638 100.00
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�������6HWWOHPHQW�ULVN�

� 7KH�2SHUDWRU·V�DFWLYLWLHV�PD\�JLYH�ULVH�WR�ULVN�DW�WKH�WLPH�RI�VHWWOHPHQW�RI�WUDQVDFWLRQV��6HWWOHPHQW�ULVN�LV�WKH�
risk of loss due to the failure of an entity to honor its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as 
contractually agreed on sale.

 This risk is addressed more or less in accordance with the parameters set out in the credit risk management above.
����� /LTXLGLW\�ULVN

 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Operator will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall 
due. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Operator could be required to pay its liabilities earlier 
than expected or may face difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities 
as they fall due.

�������0DQDJHPHQW�RI�OLTXLGLW\�ULVN

� 7KH�2SHUDWRU·V�DSSURDFK�WR�PDQDJLQJ�OLTXLGLW\�LV�WR�HQVXUH��DV�IDU�DV�SRVVLEOH��WKDW�LW�ZLOO�DOZD\V�KDYH�VXIILFLHQW�
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable 
losses or risking damage to the Operator's reputation. Due to nature of the business, the Operator maintains 
IOH[LELOLW\� LQ� IXQGLQJ�E\�PDLQWDLQLQJ� FRPPLWWHG� FUHGLW� OLQHV�DYDLODEOH��7KH�2SHUDWRU·V� OLTXLGLW\�PDQDJHPHQW�
LQYROYHV�SURMHFWLQJ� FDVK� IORZV�DQG� FRQVLGHULQJ� WKH� OHYHO� RI� OLTXLG� DVVHWV� QHFHVVDU\� WR� IXOILO� LWV� REOLJDWLRQ��
monitoring balance sheet liquidity ratios against internal and external requirements and maintaining debt 
financing plans.

�������0DWXULW\�DQDO\VLV�IRU�ILQDQFLDO�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV

 The table below analyses the Operator's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the 
remaining period at the balance sheet date to maturity date and represents the undiscounted cash flows. The 
amounts in the table are the gross nominal undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments): The 
information given below is based on contractual repricing on maturity dates, which ever is earlier.

Habib Insurance Company Limited

    December 31, 2022
   Interest/ Non-Interest/
                           Markup Non-markup
  bearing bearing
  Maturity upto Maturity upto Total
 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG one year one year
� � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 ),1$1&,$/�$66(76

 Receivable from PTF –00  7,469  7,469
 Cash and bank balances 89,535  –00  89,535
 As at December 31, 2022 89,535  7,469  97,004

 ),1$1&,$/�/,$%,/,7,(6

 Other creditors and accrual –00  34,760  34,760
 As at December 31, 2022 –00  34,760  34,760

 Net 89,535  (27,291 ) 62,244



    December 31, 2021
   Interest/ Non-Interest/
                           Markup Non-markup
  bearing bearing
  Maturity upto Maturity upto Total
 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG one year one year
� � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 ),1$1&,$/�$66(76

 Loans and receivables –00  249  249
 Investments
 Investment in debt securities 35,051  –00  35,051
 Balance with banks 8,246  –00  8,246
 Receivable from PTF –00  7,577  7,577
 As at December 31, 2021 43,297  7,826  51,123

 ),1$1&,$/�/,$%,/,7,(6

 Other creditors and accrual –00  22,408  22,408
 As at December 31, 2021 –00  22,408  22,408

 Net 43,297  (14,582 ) 28,715

    December 31, 2022
   Interest/ Non-Interest/
                           Markup Non-markup
  bearing bearing
  Maturity upto Maturity upto Total
 Participant Takaful Fund one year one year
� � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 ),1$1&,$/�$66(76

 Loans and other receivables –00  2,823  2,823
 Takaful/ retakaful receivables –00  130,585  130,585
 Balance with banks 211,901  –00  211,901
 Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims –00  61,818  61,818
 Salvage recoveries accrued –00  25  25
 As at December 31, 2002 211,901  195,251  407,152

 ),1$1&,$/�/,$%,/,7,(6

 Outstanding claims including IBNR –00  118,074  118,074
 Takaful/ retakaful payables –00  65,713  65,713
 Payable to OPF –00  7,469  7,469
 Other creditors and accruals –00  255  255
 As at December 31, 2022 –00  191,511  191,511
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    December 31, 2021
   Interest/ Non-Interest/
                           Markup Non-markup
  bearing bearing
  Maturity upto Maturity upto Total
 Participant Takaful Fund one year one year
� � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 ),1$1&,$/�$66(76

 Investments in debt securities 80,116  –00  80,116
 Loans and other receivables –00  1  1
 Takaful/ retakaful receivables –00  142,414  142,414
 Retakaful and other recoveries against outstanding claims –00  21,618  21,618
 Balance with banks 45,076  –00  45,076
 As at December 31, 2021 125,192  164,033  289,225

 ),1$1&,$/�/,$%,/,7,(6

 Outstanding claims including IBNR –00  48,618  48,618
 Takaful/ retakaful payables –00  63,136  63,136
 Payable to OPF –00  7,577  7,577
 As at December 31, 2021 –00  119,331  119,331
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����� 0DUNHW�ULVN
 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices, foreign exchange 

rates and credit spreads� �QRW� UHODWLQJ� WR� FKDQJHV� LQ� WKH�REOLJRU·V� �� LVVXHU·V� FUHGLW� VWDQGLQJ��ZLOO� HIIHFW� WKH�
2SHUDWRU·V�LQFRPH�RU�WKH�YDOXH�RI�LWV�KROGLQJV�RI�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQWV��7KH�REMHFWLYH�RI�PDUNHW�ULVN�PDQDJHPHQW 
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on 
risk.

 The Operator is exposed to interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk.
������� ,QWHUHVW�UDWH�ULVN�
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates. Interest rate exposure arises from balances held in profit and loss sharing 
accounts with reputable banks and government securities. The Operator limits interest rate risk by monitoring 
changes in interest rates. Other risk management procedures are the same as those mentioned in the credit 
risk management.

 Refer note 31.22 for the details of maturLty analysis of financial instruments.
�������� Sensitivity analysis
 $W�WKH�EDODQFH�VKHHW�GDWH�WKH�LQWHUHVW�UDWH�SURILOH�RI�WKH�2SHUDWRU·V�LQWHUHVW�EHDULQJ�ILQDQFLDO�LQVWUXPHQW�DUH�DV�

follows:

� � � � � 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG� 2SHUDWRU·V�)XQG
     Decmeber 31, 2022 Decmeber 31, 2021
    Effective (Rupees in Effective (Rupees in
� � � � LQWHUHVW�UDWH� ¶����� LQWHUHVW�UDWH� ·����
    in %  in %
       Financial assets  
 Assets subject to variable rate 
    - Bank balances 9.25%-14.75% 89,535 6.50%-8.25% 8,246
 Assets subject to financial interest rates 
    - Musharaka instrument –000 –00 10.60% 35,051
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     2022 2021
     Mark-up 100 bps Mark-up 100 bps

     Operator,s Fund Operator,s Fund
    Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
� � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����� �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����
      
   Cash flow sensitivity 8,954 (8,954) 825 (825)

     Participant Takaful Fund Participant Takaful Fund
    Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
� � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����� �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

   Cash flow sensitivity 21,191 (21,191) 4,508 (4,508)

�������3ULFH�ULVN
 Price risk represents the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the 

market prices (other than those arising from interest / mark-up rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes 
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all or similar 
financial instruments traded in the market.

 The WTO's strategy is to hold its strategic investments for long period of time. Thus, WTO's management is not 
concerned with short term price fluctuations with respect to its strategic investments provided that the underlying 
business, economic and management characteristics of the investee remain favorable. WTO strives to maintain 
above average levels of shareholders' capital to provide a margin of safety against short term equity price 
volatility. WTO manages price risk by monitoring exposure in these securities and implementing the strict 
discipline in internal risk management and investment policies.

 Market prices are subject to fluctuation and consequently the amount realized in the subsequent sale of an 
investment may significantly differ from the reported market value. Furthermore, amount realized in the sale of 
a particular security may be affected by the relative quantity of the security being sold.

 The WTO has no significant concentration of price risk.

     Participant Takaful Fund Participant Takaful Fund
     Decmeber 31, 2022 Decmeber 31, 2021
    Effective (Rupees in Effective (Rupees in
� � � � LQWHUHVW�UDWH� ¶����� LQWHUHVW�UDWH� ·����
    in %  in %
       Financial assets  
 Assets subject to variable rate 
    - Bank balances 6.50%-8.25% 211,901 6.50%-8.25% 45,076
 Assets subject to financial interest rates 
    - Musharaka instrument –000 –00 10.60% 80,116

 )DLU�YDOXH�VHQVLWLYLW\�DQDO\VLV�IRU�IL[HG�UDWH�LQVWUXPHQWV
 The Operator does not account for any fixed rate financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, 

a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit and loss account and Fund of the Operator.
 &DVK�IORZ�VHQVLWLYLW\�DQDO\VLV�IRU�YDULDEOH�UDWH�LQVWUXPHQWV
 The Operator is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in respect of its balances with profit and loss sharing 

account with banks. A hypothetical change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have 
decreased / (increased) profit for the year by the amounts shown below. It is assumed that the changes occur 
immediately and uniformly to each category of instrument containing interest rate risk. Variations in market 
interest rates could produce significant changes at the time of early repayments. For these reasons, actual 
results might differ from those reflected in the details specified below. The analysis assumes that all other 
variables remain constant.
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���� )$,5�9$/8(�2)�),1$1&,$/�,167580(176
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).

 Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the 
statement of assets and liabilities date. The estimated fair value of all other financial assets and financial liabilities 
is considered not significantly different from book value.

 The following table shows financial instruments recognized at fair value, analysed between those whose fair 
value is based on:

� /HYHO���� TXRWHG�SULFHV�LQ�DFWLYH�PDUNHWV�IRU�LGHQWLFDO�DVVHWV�RU�OLDELOLWLHV�

 Level 2: those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
RU�OLDELOLW\��HLWKHU�GLUHFWO\��DV�SULFHV��RU�LQGLUHFWO\��GHULYHG�IURP�SULFHV���DQG

 Level 3: those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable 
inputs).

�������)RUHLJQ�FXUUHQF\�ULVN
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate 

because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The WTO, at present is not materially exposed to currency risk 
as majority of the transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.

����� )XQG�PDQDJHPHQW
 The Operator's objective when managing capital is to safe guard the WTO's ability to continue as a going concern 

so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain 
a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its businesses.

� 7KH�2SHUDWRU�PDQDJHV�LWV�IXQG�VWUXFWXUH�E\�PRQLWRULQJ�UHWXUQ�RQ�QHW�DVVHWV¬�DQG�PDNHV�DGMXVWPHQWV�WR�LW�LQ�WKH�
light of changes in economic conditions.

 The statement of solvency is presented in note 33 to the financial statements.

�����5HFRQFLOLDWLRQ�RI�PRYHPHQW�RI�OLDELOLWLHV�WR�FDVK�IORZV�DULVLQJ�IURP�ILQDQFLQJ�DFWLYLWLHV

  2022 2021
   Liabilities Equity Liabilities Equity 
    Share Reserves  Share Reserves
    Capital (including  Capital (including
     unappropriated   unappropriated
     profit)   profit)
 Operator Fund    �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����� � �
     
 Balance as at January 01, 37,497 50,000 (20,959 ) (3,279 ) 50,000  (9,760 )
 Liability related changes during the year 45,468 –00 –00  40,776  –00  –00
 Equity related changes during the year –00 –00 8,959  –00  –00  (11,197 )
 Balance as at December 31, 82,965 50,000 (12,000 ) 37,497  50,000  (20,957 )

 Participants Participation Fund    �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����� � �
     
 Balance as at January 01, 270,026 500 75,669  205,533  500  16,533
 Liability related changes during the year 142,299 –00 –00  64,493  –00  –00
 Equity related changes during the year –00 –00 24,523  –00  –00  59,136
 Balance as at December 31, 412,325 500 100,192  270,026  500  75,669
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    December 31, 2021
 Held to Loans & Other financial Total Fair value measurement using 
  maturity receivable liabilities  
   assets   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
� � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
     Certificate of investments 80,116   –00  –00   –00   80,116  –00  –00  –00

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loans and other receivables –00    1   –00    –00    1    –00  –00  –00 
Takaful/ retakaful receivables –00    142,414   –00    –00    142,414    –00  –00  –00 
Retakaful recoveries against  
  outstanding claims –00    20,408   –00    –00    20,408    –00  –00  –00 
Salvage Recoveries Accrued –00    1,210   –00    –00    1,210    –00  –00  –00 
Cash and bank balances –00    –00   45,076    –00    45,076    –00  –00  –00 
  80,116    164,033   45,076    –00    289,225    –00  –00  –00 

)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�QRW�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH
Payable to OPF –00    –00   –00    7,577    7,577    –00  –00  –00 
Outstanding claims including IBNR –00    –00   –00    48,618    48,618    –00  –00  –00 
Takaful / retakaful payables –00    –00   –00    63,136    63,136    –00  –00  –00 
  –00    –00  –00   119,331   119,331   –00  –00  –00 

The carrying values of remaining financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate to 
their fair value, as there are mostly short term in mature or repriced frequently.     

Particpant Takaful Fund
    December 31, 2022
 Held to Loans & Other financial Total Fair value measurement using
 maturity receivable financial liabilities  
   assets   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
� � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

Financial assets measured at fair value
Loans and other receivables –00    2,823   –00    –00    2,823    –00  –00  –00 
Takaful/ retakaful recoveries –00    130,585   –00    –00    130,585    –00  –00  –00 
Retakaful recoveries receivable 0 
  outstanding claims –00    61,818   –00    –00    61,818    –00  –00  –00 
Salvage Recoveries Accrued –00    25   –00    –00    25    –00  –00  –00 
Cash and bank balances –00    –00   211,901    –00    211,901    –00  –00  –00 
  –00    195,251   211,901    –00    407,152    –00  –00  –00 

)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�QRW�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH
Payable to OPF –00    –00   –00    7,469    7,469   –00  –00  –00 
Outstanding claims including IBNR –00    –00   –00    118,074   118,074   –00  –00  –00 
Takaful / retakaful payables –00    –00   –00    65,713   65,713   –00  –00  –00 
Other creditors and accruals –00    –00   –00    255    255   –00  –00  –00 
  –00    –00   –00    191,511    191,511   –00  –00  –00 
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    December 31, 2021
 Held to Loans & Other financial Total Fair value measurement using
 maturity receivable financial liabilities  
   assets   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
� � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

Financial assets measured at fair value
Investments
     Certificate of investments 35,051   –00  –00   –00   35,051  –00  –00  –00

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Loans and other receivables –00    249   –00    –00    249    –00  –00  –00 
Receivable from PTF –00    7,577   –00    –00    7,577    –00  –00  –00 
Cash and bank balances –00    8,246   –00    –00    8,246    –00  –00  –00 
  35,051    16,072   –00    –00    51,123    –00  –00  –00 

)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�QRW�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH
Other creditors and accruals –00    –00   –00    22,408    22,408    –00  –00  –00 
  –00    –00  –00   22,408   22,408   –00  –00  –00 

The carrying values of remaining financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate to 
their fair value, as there are mostly short term in mature or repriced frequently.

Operators Fund
    December 31, 2022
 Held to Loans & Other financial Total Fair value measurement using 
  maturity receivable financial liabilities  
   assets   Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
� � � � �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

Financial assets measured at fair value
Salvage Recoveries Accrued –00    7,469   –00    –00    7,469    –00  –00  –00 
Cash and bank balances –00    –00   89,535    –00    89,535    –00  –00  –00 
  –00    7,469   89,535    –00    97,004    –00  –00  –00 

)LQDQFLDO�OLDELOLWLHV�QRW�PHDVXUHG�DW�IDLU�YDOXH
Other creditors and accruals –00    –00   –00    34,760    34,760   –00  –00  –00 
  –00    –00   –00    34,760    34,760   –00  –00  –00 
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���� �'$7(�2)�$87+25,=$7,21�)25�,668(            
  These financial statements have been authorised for issue on May 05, 2023 by the Board of Directors.
���� 180%(5�2)�(03/2<((6
  The total average number of employees during the year end as at December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

  2022  2021

At year end 2  2

Average during the year 2  2

���� *(1(5$/
 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest Thousand Rupees.

���� 67$7(0(17�2)�62/9(1&<
      December 31, December 31,
      2022 2021
      �5XSHHV�LQ�¶����

 Investments
 Musharika certificate –00  80,116
 Loans and other receivables 2,823  1
 Takaful / retakaful receivable 130,585  142,414
 Retakaful recoveries against outstanding claims 61,818  21,618
 Salvage recoveries accrued 25  –00
 Deferred Wakala expense 44,221  13,019
 Taxation - payments less provision 5,640  803
 Prepayments  55,998  43,143
 Cash and bank  211,907  45,081
 7RWDO�$VVHWV��$� 513,017  346,195

 ,Q�DGPLVVLEOH�DVVHWV�DV�SHU�IROORZLQJ�FODXVHV�RI�VHFWLRQ������
� RI�WKH�,QVXUDQFH�2UGLQDQFH������

 Contribution due since more than three months (58,470 ) (30,098 )
 Investments    –00   –00
 7RWDO�,Q�DGPLVVLEOH�DVVHWV��%� (58,470 ) (30,098 )

 7RWDO�$GPLVVLEOH�$VVHWV�& �$�% 454,547  316,097

 /LDELOLWLHV

 PTF underwriting provisions
 Outstanding claims including IBNR 118,074  48,618
 Unearned contribution reserve 182,731  130,184
 Reserve for unearned retakaful rebate 11,254  8,646
 Contribution received in advance 19,697  7,328
 Takaful / retakaful payable 65,713  63,136
 Other creditors and accrual 7,387  4,537
 Payable to OTF 7,469  7,577
 7RWDO�/LDELOLWLHV��'� 412,325  270,026

 1HW�6XUSOXV�DV�DW�'HFHPEHU�����( &�'� 42,222  46,071

SYED ATHER ABBAS
Chief Executive

AUN MOHAMMAD A. HABIB
Director

MURTAZA HUSSAIN
Chief Financial Officer

MANSOOR G. HABIB
Director

RAFIQ M. HABIB
Chairman



 857 1 to 100 12,404
 244 101 to 500 71,730
 187 501 to 1000 147,071
 416 1001 to 5000 1,129,065
 137 5001 to 10000 1,028,732
 93 10001 to 15000 1,155,906
 50 15001 to 20000 894,585
 31 20001 to 25000 733,034
 31 25001 to 30000 863,816
 13 30001 to 35000 426,792
 10 35001 to 40000 377,540
 13 40001 to 45000 554,080
 17 45001 to 50000 831,412
 5 50001 to 55000 258,152
 6 55001 to 60000 349,269
 18 60001 to 65000 1,125,023
 5 65001 to 70000 339,189
 2 70001 to 75000 143,242
 4 75001 to 80000 314,094
 3 80001 to 85000 244,193
 8 85001 to 90000 695,786
 1 90001 to 95000 94,592
 11 95001 to 100000 1,091,004
 2 100001 to 105000 208,241
 2 105001 to 110000 213,080
 2 115001 to 120000 234,058
 6 120001 to 125000 742,486
 1 125001 to 130000 129,132
 5 130001 to 135000 660,229
 2 135001 to 140000 277,203
 2 140001 to 145000 286,542
 3 145001 to 150000 441,874
 2 150001 to 155000 303,560
 2 155001 to 160000 316,197
 1 165001 to 170000 166,856
 5 170001 to 175000 855,608
 1 185001 to 190000 185,807
 3 190001 to 195000 579,938
 2 195001 to 200000 396,326
 3 205001 to 210000 627,078
 1 210001 to 215000 210,037
 4 220001 to 225000 889,778
 4 225001 to 230000 909,114
 8 245001 to 250000 1,986,553
 1 250001 to 255000 250,058
 1 255001 to 260000 256,504
 3 270001 to 275000 819,178
 1 275001 to 280000 275,863
 2 280001 to 285000 564,196
 1 290001 to 295000 295,000
 1 300001 to 305000 300,183
 2 305001 to 310000 615,670
 1 320001 to 325000 321,696
 4 330001 to 335000 1,328,270
 2 340001 to 345000 685,604
 1 345001 to 350000 348,250
 1 355001 to 360000 357,992
 1 385001 to 390000 387,848
 1 390001 to 395000 393,152
 1 410001 to 415000 410,721
 1 420001 to 425000 420,300
 1 430001 to 435000 432,318
 2 445001 to 450000 894,016
 1 480001 to 485000 481,010
 1 490001 to 495000 493,416
 1 495001 to 500000 500,000
 1 510001 to 515000 513,007

3DWWHUQ�RI�6KDUHKROGLQJ�DV�DW�'HFHPEHU���������
Number of Shareholders 6KDUHKROGLQJV·�6ODE Total Shares Held
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 1 520001 to 525000 524,175
 1 525001 to 530000 526,915
 4 540001 to 545000 2,171,829
 1 570001 to 575000 575,000
 1 580001 to 585000 584,046
 1 590001 to 595000 591,650
 2 600001 to 605000 1,205,543
 1 615001 to 620000 619,338
 1 620001 to 625000 620,360
 1 625001 to 630000 625,654
 1 630001 to 635000 633,270
 1 665001 to 670000 666,091
 1 690001 to 695000 693,695
 1 705001 to 710000 707,263
 1 710001 to 715000 712,500
 1 735001 to 740000 736,117
 1 755001 to 760000 757,323
 1 765001 to 770000 769,511
 2 770001 to 775000 1,549,633
 1 800001 to 805000 800,219
 1 805001 to 810000 809,452
 1 810001 to 815000 813,114
 3 880001 to 885000 2,648,592
 1 925001 to 930000 927,692
 1 930001 to 935000 930,194
 1 990001 to 995000 990,198
 1 995001 to 1000000 1,000,000
 2 1085001 to 1090000 2,177,874
 1 1090001 to 1095000 1,092,797
 2 1115001 to 1120000 2,232,734
 1 1195001 to 1200000 1,200,000
 1 1205001 to 1210000 1,208,386
 1 1215001 to 1220000 1,219,590
 1 1225001 to 1230000 1,227,082
 1 1245001 to 1250000 1,248,800
 3 1265001 to 1270000 3,807,065
 1 1395001 to 1400000 1,399,918
 1 1405001 to 1410000 1,407,497
 1 1475001 to 1480000 1,475,052
 1 1610001 to 1615000 1,610,364
 1 1630001 to 1635000 1,630,317
 1 1810001 to 1815000 1,813,828
 1 1875001 to 1880000 1,877,462
 1 2350001 to 2355000 2,353,618
 1 2420001 to 2425000 2,420,929
 1 2720001 to 2725000 2,721,386
 1 2990001 to 2995000 2,994,651
 1 4975001 to 4980000 4,979,761
 1 5360001 to 5365000 5,363,772
 1 5415001 to 5420000 5,419,516
 1 5735001 to 5740000 5,735,396
 1 6220001 to 6225000 6,222,926

  2,318     123,874,755

3DWWHUQ�RI�6KDUHKROGLQJ�DV�DW�'HFHPEHU���������

Number of Shareholders 6KDUHKROGLQJV·�6ODE Total Shares Held

Categories of Shareholders Numbers of shares Shares Held Percentage

1. Individuals 2,260 73,926,617 59.68
2. Insurance companies 6 6,840,091 5.52
3. Charitable Trusts and Others 39 27,804,956 22.45
4. Government institutions 1 30 0.00
5. Foreign investors 10 9,267,482 7.48
6. Associated Company 1 5,735,396 4.63
7. Mutual Funds 1 300,183 0.24

  2,318 123,874,755 100.00
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3DWWHUQ�RI�6KDUHKROGLQJ�DV�DW�'HFHPEHU���������

Additional Information

6KDUHKROGHUV
�&DWHJRU\�� 1XPEHU�RI�VKDUHKROGHUV���IROLRV�� 1XPEHU�RI�VKDUHV�KHOG�
   
Assoaciated Companies    
   
Thal Limited    1   5,735,396 
   
'LUHFWRUV    
   
Mr. Rafiq M. Habib    1   166,856 
Mr. Abbas D. Habib    3   898,957 
Mr. Mansoor G. Habib    1   100,000 
Mr. Muhmmad Hyder Habib    1   774,803 
Mr. Qumail R. Habib    2   592,497 
Mr. Aun Mohammad A. Habib    2   1,203,578 
Mr. Shahid Ghaffar    1   2,000 
Mr. Ali Fadoo    1   2,000 
Ms. Maleeha Humayun Bangash    1   2,000 
   
'LUHFWRUV�DQG�WKHLU�VSRXVH�V��DQG�PLQRU�FKLOGUHQ    
   
Mrs. Jamila Rafiq w/o Mr. Rafiq M. Habib    1   1,116,797 
Mrs. Naimat-e-Fatima w/o Mr. Abbas D. Habib    1   20,877 
Mrs. Farah Fatima Habib w/o Mr. Muhammad Hyder Habib  1   1,475,052 
   
Individuals/ Others    2,251   68,488,578 
   
&KDULWDEOH�7UXVWV��6RFLWLHV�DQG�*RYHUQPHQW�,QVWLWXWLRQV� 39   27,804,956 
   
Foreign Investors    10   9,267,482 
   
6KDUHKROGHUV�KROGLQJ����RU�PRUH    1   6,222,926 
   
   2,318   123,874,755 
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NOTICE is hereby given that the 80th Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of the Company will be held at 
Institute of Bankers Pakistan located at Moulvi Tamizuddin Khan Road, Sultanabad, Karachi on Monday, May 29, 2023 
at 11:00 am to transact the following business. The shareholders may also attend the meeting through video conference 
facility managed by the Company as per instructions given in the notes section.

Ordinary Business

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 
December 31, 2022 together with the Directors' and Auditors' Report thereon.

2. To consider and approve payment of cash dividend @ 12.5% i.e., Rs. 0.625 per share of Rs. 5/- each for the 
year ended December 31, 2022 as recommended by the Board of Directors.

3. To appoint Auditors for the year ending December 31, 2023 and to fix their remuneration M/s. Grant Thornton 
Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, offered themselves for appointment.

4. To consider any other business of the Company with the permission of the Chair. 

Special Business

5. To consider and if thought fit, pass the following Special Resolution for authorising investment by way of purchase 
of shares of the under-mentioned associated companies:

 “RESOLVED that the Company be and is hereby authorised to invest the under-mentioned amounts by way of 
purchase of ordinary shares of the under-mentioned associated companies within a period of two years.

 6U��1R�� 1DPH�RI�WKH�&RPSDQ\� 5V��,Q�PLOOLRQ

 1 Bank AL Habib Limited 200

 2 Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited 200

 3 Indus Motor Company Limited 200
 4 Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited 200

 5 Thal Limited 200

 )857+(5�5(62/9(' that the Company be and is hereby also authorized to invest upto Rs. 700 million in the 
units of Funds, managed by AL Habib Asset Management Limited within a period of two years. 

 )857+(5�5(62/9(' that the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer be and are hereby authorised 
jointly to make the aforesaid investments as and when deemed appropriate and to delegate the aforesaid powers 
to any officers of the Company as he may deem fit."

For item # 5, a statement under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 relating to the aforesaid Special Business 
to be transacted at the said Annual General Meeting is attached.

  By order of the Board

          

  Muhammad Maaz Akbar
Karachi: May 05, 2023 Company Secretary

Notice of $QQXDO�*HQHUDO�0HHWLQJ
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Notes:
��� 3DUWLFLSDWLRQ�LQ�WKH�$QQXDO�*HQHUDO�0HHWLQJ�WKURXJK�9LGHR�/LQN�)DFLOLW\�
  The entitled shareholders who are interested to attend AGM through online platform and whose names appeared 

in the Books of the Company by the close of business on May 15, 2023 are hereby requested to get themselves 
registered with the Company Secretary Office by providing the following details at the earliest but not later than 
48 hours before the time of AGM (no account shall be taken of any part of the day that is not a working day) at 
investor.relations@habibinsurance.net

 
 Name of shareholder CNIC No. Folio No. / CDS No. Cell Number Email address
 

 Upon receipt of the above information from interested shareholders, the Company will send the login details at their 
email addresses. On the AGM day, shareholders will be able to login and participate in the AGM proceedings through 
their smartphones or computer devices from any convenient location

 The login facility will be opened 30 minutes before the meeting time to enable the participants to join the meeting 
after identification and verification process.

 The entitled shareholders (whose names appeared in the Books of the Company by the close of business on May 
15, 2023) along with the details mentioned above may send their comments/suggestions for the proposed Agenda 
items at the above email address at least 48 hours before the time of AGM (no account shall be taken of any part of 
the day that is not a working day).

2. The share transfer books of the Company will remain closed from Tuesday, May 16, 2023 to Monday, May 29, 2023 
(both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual General Meeting and payment of final dividend.

3. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting is entitled to appoint another member of the Company as his/ 
her proxy to attend and vote on his/ her behalf. Proxy form, in order to be effective, must be received at the Registered 
Office of the Company duly stamped and signed not less than 48 hours before the meeting.

4. The entitled shareholders are requested to keep with them their original Computerized National Identity Cards 
(CNICs) / Passport along with their folio numbers / participant(s) ID numbers and CDC account numbers at the time 
of attending the Annual General Meeting in order to facilitate identification of the respective shareholders. The proxy 
shall also produce his/her original CNIC or Passport at the time of the meeting. In case of a corporate entity, the 
Board of Directors' Resolution/Power of Attorney with specimen signatures shall be submitted along with Proxy Form.

5. Members are requested to promptly communicate any change in their address to our Share Registrar, M/s. CDC 
Share Registrar Services Limited.

6. Pursuant to the directive of the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), it is mandatory to mention 
CNIC number of members on members' register and other statutory returns. Those shareholders who have not 
submitted copy of their CNIC to the Company are once again requested to submit copy of their CNIC, otherwise the 
Company will be constrained under section 243(2)(a) of the Companies Act, 2017 to withhold dividend of such 
shareholders.

7. The Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2022 has made certain amendments in Section 150 of the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby different rates are prescribed for deduction of withholding tax on the amount of dividend 
paid by the companies. These tax rates are as under:

 (i) For filers of income tax returns 15%
 (ii) For non-filers of income tax returns 30%

 To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30% all the 
shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Tax-payers List (ATL) provided on the website of Federal 
Board of Revenue (FBR), despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered 
LQWR�$7/�EHIRUH�WKH�GDWH�RI�SD\PHQW�RI�FDVK�GLYLGHQG�L�H���0D\�����������RWKHUZLVH��WD[�RQ�WKHLU�FDVK�GLYLGHQG�ZLOO�
be deducted @ 30% instead of 15%.
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 Company Folio/CDC Total Principal Shareholder Joint Shareholder
 Name Account shares
  No.  Name and CNIC# Shareholding Proportion Name and CNIC # Shareholding Proprotion
     (No. of Shares)  (No. of Shares)

 
 In case the required information is not provided to our Share Registrar latest by May 15, 2023, it will be assumed 

that the shares are equally held by them.
 In case of corporate entity, withholding tax exemption from dividend income shall only be allowed if copy of valid tax 

exemption certificate is made available to our Share Registrar latest by May 15, 2023, whereas physical shareholders 
should send a copy of their NTN certificate to the Company or Company's Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar 
Services Limited. The shareholders while sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the case may be, must quote company 
name and their respective folio numbers

 As per instructions of SECP and Central Depository Company of Pakistan (CDC) circular No. 6 of 2018, the 
shareholders are hereby informed that the CDC has developed Centralized Cash Dividend Register (CCDR) on 
eServices Web Portal which contains details of cash dividend such as either paid or unpaid, withheld by the Bank, 
total amount of cash dividend, tax and zakat deductions and net amount credited into designated bank account of 
shareholders. The shareholders are requested to register themselves to CDC's eServices Portal link, 
https://eservices.cdcaccess.com.pk to obtain the aforesaid information.

 The Corporate shareholders having CDC account are required to have their National Tax number (NTN) updated 
with their respective participants, whereas physical shareholders should send a copy of their NTN certificate to the 
Company or Company's Share Registrar, M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited. The shareholders while 
sending NTN or NTN certificates, as the case may be, must quote company name and their respective folio numbers.

��� 3D\PHQW�RI�&DVK�'LYLGHQG�WKURXJK�(OHFWURQLF�0RGH
 Under the provision of Section 242 of Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 

2017, it is mandatory for a listed company to pay cash dividend to their shareholders only through electronic mode 
directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholders instead of issuing physical dividend warrants.

 In order to receive cash dividend directly into the designated bank account, members who have not yet provided 
the bank account details are requested to fill and sign the "E-Dividend Mandate Form" available on the Company's 
website www.habibinsurance.net and send to the relevant Participants/Investor Account Services of the CDC/Share 
Registrar of the Bank (as the case may be) latest by May 15, 2023 along with a copy of their valid CNICs.

 In case of non-receipt or incorrect International Bank Account Number (IBAN) with other related details or non-availability 
of valid CNICs, the Company will withhold cash dividend of such members.

��� 'HSRVLW�RI�3K\VLFDO�6KDUHV�LQWR�&'&�$FFRXQWV
 The shareholders having physical share certificates of the Company are advised to place / convert their physical 

shares into Book-Entry form in CDC as required under the provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017.
���� 8QFODLPHG�8QSDLG�'LYLGHQG�DQG�6KDUH�&HUWLILFDWHV
 In compliance of Section 244 of the Act, the Company has already requested through individual letters to shareholders 

and also through newspaper to collect their unclaimed shares / unpaid cash dividend, if any. Shareholders are once 
DJDLQ�UHTXHVWHG�WR�ORGJH�D�FODLP�IRU�XQFODLPHG�VKDUHV���XQSDLG�FDVK�GLYLGHQGV�ZLWK�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�6KDUH�5HJLVWUDU�
i.e. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

���� 7UDQVPLVVLRQ�RI�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV�	�1RWLFHV�WKURXJK�HPDLO
 ,Q�SXUVXDQW�WR�6HFWLRQ�����RI�WKH�&RPSDQLHV�$FW�������$QQXDO�5HSRUW������ZKLFK�LQFOXGHV�$XGLWRUV·�5HSRUW�DORQJ�

ZLWK�$XGLWHG�)LQDQFLDO�6WDWHPHQWV��'LUHFWRUV·�5HSRUW��&KDLUPDQ·V�5HYLHZ�5HSRUW�DQG�1RWLFH�RI�$QQXDO�*HQHUDO�
Meeting are being e-mailed to the members who have provided their e-mail addresses for the said purpose. Members 
are also requested to intimate change (if any) in their registered e-mail addresses to our Share Registrar for the 
aforesaid purpose. Members of the Company who wish to receive soft copy of Annual Report are requested to send 
WKHLU�H�PDLO�DGGUHVVHV�WR�RXU�6KDUH�5HJLVWUDU�WKURXJK�FRQVHQW�IRUP��DYDLODEOH�RQ�WKH�&RPSDQ\·V�ZHEVLWH

���� �3RVWDO�%DOORW���(�9RWLQJ�
 In accordance with the Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018 and in compliance of Sections 143 and 144 of 

the Companies Act, 2017, the shareholders will be allowed to exercise right of vote through postal ballot i.e., by post 
or through electronic mode in accordance with requirements and procedures mentioned in the aforesaid regulations.

For any query / clarification / information, the shareholder may contact the Share Registrar at the following address:
0�V��&'&�6KDUH�5HJLVWUDU�6HUYLFHV�/LPLWHG
CDC House, 99-B, Block-B 
SMCHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal 
Karachi-74400
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STA7(0(17�81'(5�6(&7,21��������2)�7+(�&20P$1,(6�$&7������

The statement is annexed to the Notice of the 80th Annual General Meeting to be held on May 29, 2023 at which 
certain business are to be transacted. The purpose of this statement is to set forth material facts concerning such 
special business.
,7(0�180%(5���2)�7+( $*(1'$

As recomended by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on May 05, 2023, it is proposed to make investment by 
way of purchase of shares of our associated companies. In this regard the Company seeks the approval of the 
shareholders under section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017.

In compliance with Regulations No. 8 of Companies (Investment in Associated Companies or Associated Undertakings) 
Regulations, 2012 the following information is annexed with the notice for approval of investment in associated 
companies.

%DQN�$/�+DELE�/LPLWHG

5HJXODWLRQ�1R������D

,QIRUPDWLRQ�5HTXLUHGSr��1R�� � � 'HVFULSWLRQ

 1 Name of the associated company or associated undertaking 
along with criteria based on which the associated relationship 
is established

 2 Purpose, benefits and period of investment

 
 3 Maximum amount of investment

 4 Maximum price at which securities will be acquired

 5 Maximum number of securities to be acquired

 6 Number of securities and percentage thereof held before and 
after the proposed investment

 7 In case of investment in listed securities, average of the 
preceding twelve monthly average price of the security intended 
to be acquired

 8 In case of investment in unlisted securities, fair market value of 
such securities determined in terms of regulation 6(1)

 9 Break-up value of securities intended to be acquired on the 
basis of the latest audited financial statements

 10 Earning per share of the associated company or associated 
undertaking for the last three years

 11 Sources of fund from which securities will be acquired 

Bank AL Habib Limited being associated on the basis of common 
directorship. Mr. Abbas D.Habib and Mr. Qumail R. Habib, 
Directors of the Company are also Chairman and Director of 
Bank AL Habib Limited.

Long term investment to earn dividend income as well as 
prospective capital gains

Rs. 200 million 
 
Not more than the price quoted on the stock exchange 

Equivalent to the amount of investment

2,000,000 shares (0.180%) held before proposed investment. 
Number of shares and percentage after proposed investment 
will depend on the prevailing prices at the time of actual 
acquisition of shares which could vary with the market price at 
which shares are purchased in future

Rs. 65.49 per share

Not Applicable

December 31, 2022: Rs. 85.70

2022: Rs. 14.91 per share
2021: Rs. 16.83 per share
2020: Rs. 16.03 per share

Own source

126



Habib Insurance Company Limited

,QIRUPDWLRQ�5HTXLUHGSr��1R�� � � 'HVFULSWLRQ

 12 Where the securities are intended to be acquired using borrowed 
funds:

��� � L�� -XVWLILFDWLRQ�IRU�LQYHVWPHQW�WKURXJK�ERUURZLQJV��DQG
    ii) Detail of guarantees and assets pledged for obtaining such 
       funds
 13 Salient features of the agreement(s), if any, entered into with 

its associated company or associated undertaking with regards 
to the proposed investment

 14 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, majority 
shareholders and their relatives, if any, in the associated 
company or associated undertaking or the transaction under 
consideration

 15 Any other important details necessary for the members to 
understand the transaction

 16 In case of investment in securities of a project of an associated 
company or associated undertaking that has not commenced 
operations, in addition to the information referred to above, the 
following further information, is required, namely: 

    i) Description of the project and its history since 
FRQFHSWXDOLVDWLRQ�

��� � LL�� 6WDUWLQJ�DQG�H[SHFWHG�GDWHV�RI�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�ZRUN��
    iii) Time by which such project shall become commercially 

RSHUDWLRQDO��DQG
    iv) Expected time by which the project shall start paying return 

on investment

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

No Director or Chief Executive has any interest in the proposed 
investment, except in their individual capacities as Directors/ 
Chief Executive and/ or as shareholders of the Company 

None

Not Applicable

5HJXODWLRQ�1R������

,QIRUPDWLRQ�5HTXLUHGSr��1R�� � � 'HVFULSWLRQ

  The directors of the investing company while presenting the 
special resolution for making investment  in  its  associated  
company  or  associated  undertaking  shall  submit  an 
undertaking to the members of the investing company that they 
have carried out necessary due diligence for the proposed 
investment

The Directors of the Company submit that they have carried 
out necessary due diligence for the proposed investment in 
shares of Bank AL Habib Limited.

127



Habib Insurance Company Limited

128

,QIRUPDWLRQ�5HTXLUHGSr��1R�� � � 'HVFULSWLRQ

 1 Name of the associated company or associated undertaking 
along with criteria based on which the associated relationship 
is established

 2 Purpose, benefits and period of investment

 3 Maximum amount of investment

 4 Maximum price at which securities will be acquired

 5 Maximum number of securities to be acquired

 6 Number of securities and percentage thereof held before and 
after the proposed investment

 

 7 In case of investment in listed securities, average of the 
preceding twelve monthly average price of the security intended 
to be acquired

 8 In case of investment in unlisted securities, fair market value 
of such securities determined in terms of regulation 6(1)

 9 Break-up value of securities intended to be acquired on the 
basis of the latest audited financial statements

 10 Earning per share of the associated company or associated 
undertaking for the last three years

 11 Sources of fund from which securities will be acquired
 12 Where the securities are intended to be acquired using 

borrowed funds:
� � L�� -XVWLILFDWLRQ�IRU�LQYHVWPHQW�WKURXJK�ERUURZLQJV��DQG
  ii) Detail of guarantees and assets pledged for obtaining such 

funds
 13 Salient features of the agreement(s), if any, entered into with 

its associated company or associated undertaking with regards 
to the proposed investment

 14 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, majority 
shareholders and their relatives, if any, in the associated 
company or associated undertaking or the transaction under 
consideration

 15 Any other important details necessary for the members to 
understand the transaction

 16 In case of investment in securities of a project of an associated 
company or associated undertaking that has not commenced 
operations, in addition to the information referred to above, the 
following further information, is required, namely:

  i) Description of the project and its history since 
FRQFHSWXDOLVDWLRQ�

� � LL�� 6WDUWLQJ�DQG�H[SHFWHG�GDWHV�RI�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�ZRUN�
  iii) Time by which such project shall become commercially 

RSHUDWLRQDO��DQG
  iv) Expected time by which the project shall start paying return 

on investment

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited being associated on the basis 
of common directorship. 
Mr. Muhammad Hyder Habib, Director of the Company is also 
Director of Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited.
Long term investment to earn dividend income as well as 
prospective capital gains

Rs. 200 million

Not more than the price quoted on the stock exchange

Equivalent to the amount of investment

6,705,924 shares (0.64%) held before proposed investment. 
Number of shares and percentage after proposed investment will 
depend on the prevailing prices at the time of actual acquisition 
of shares which could vary with the market price at which shares 
are purchased in future

Rs. 41.46 per share

Not Applicable

December 31, 2022: Rs. 71.11 per share

2022: Rs. 13.61 per share 
2021: Rs. 12.84 per share 
2020: Rs. 11.46 per share 
Own source

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

No Director or Chief Executive has any interest in the proposed 
investment, except in their individual capacities as Directors/ Chief 
Executive and/ or as shareholders of the Company

None

Not Applicable

+DELE�0HWURSROLWDQ�%DQN�/LPLWHG

5HJXODWLRQ�1R������D
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5HJXODWLRQ�1R������

,QIRUPDWLRQ�5HTXLUHGSr��1R�� � � 'HVFULSWLRQ

  The directors of the investing company while presenting the 
special resolution for making investment in its associated 
company or associated undertaking shall submit an undertaking 
to the members of the investing company that they have carried 
out necessary due diligence for the proposed investment

The Directors of the Company submit that they have carried 
out necessary due diligence for the proposed investment in 
shares of Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited.
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,QIRUPDWLRQ�5HTXLUHGSr��1R�� � � 'HVFULSWLRQ

 1 Name of the associated company or associated undertaking 
along with criteria based on which the associated relationship 
is established

 2 Purpose, benefits and period of investment

 3 Maximum amount of investment

 4 Maximum price at which securities will be acquired

 5 Maximum number of securities to be acquired

 6 Number of securities and percentage thereof held before and 
after the proposed investment

 

 7 In case of investment in listed securities, average of the 
preceding twelve monthly average price of the security intended 
to be acquired

 8 In case of investment in unlisted securities, fair market value 
of such securities determined in terms of regulation 6(1)

 9 Break-up value of securities intended to be acquired on the 
basis of the latest audited financial statements

 10 Earning per share of the associated company or associated 
undertaking for the last three years

 11 Sources of fund from which securities will be acquired
 12 Where the securities are intended to be acquired using 

borrowed funds:
� � L�� -XVWLILFDWLRQ�IRU�LQYHVWPHQW�WKURXJK�ERUURZLQJV��DQG
  ii) Detail of guarantees and assets pledged for obtaining such 

funds
 13 Salient features of the agreement(s), if any, entered into with 

its associated company or associated undertaking with regards 
to the proposed investment

 14 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, majority 
shareholders and their relatives, if any, in the associated 
company or associated undertaking or the transaction under 
consideration

 15 Any other important details necessary for the members to 
understand the transaction

 16 In case of investment in securities of a project of an associated 
company or associated undertaking that has not commenced 
operations, in addition to the information referred to above, the 
following further information, is required, namely:

  i) Description of the project and its history since 
FRQFHSWXDOLVDWLRQ�

� � LL�� 6WDUWLQJ�DQG�H[SHFWHG�GDWHV�RI�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�ZRUN�
  iii) Time by which such project shall become commercially 

RSHUDWLRQDO��DQG
  iv) Expected time by which the project shall start paying return 

on investment

Indus Motor Company Limited being associated on the basis of 
common directorship. Mr. Muhammad Hyder Habib, Director of 
the Company is also Director of Indus Motor Company Limited.

Long term investment to earn dividend income as well as 
prospective capital gains

Rs. 200 million

Not more than the price quoted on the stock exchange

Equivalent to the amount of investment

24,015 shares (0.03%) held before proposed investment. Number 
of shares and percentage after proposed investment will depend 
on the prevailing prices at the time of actual acquisition of shares 
which could vary with the market price at which shares are 
purchased in future

Rs. 1,213.5 per share

Not Applicable

June 30, 2022 : Rs. 687.16 per share

2022: Rs. 201.04 per share 
2021: Rs. 163.21 per share
2020: Rs. 64.66 per share 
Own source

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

No Director or Chief Executive has any interest in the proposed 
investment, except in their individual capacities as Directors/ Chief 
Executive and/ or as shareholders of the Company

None

Not Applicable

,QGXV�0RWRU�&RPSDQ\��/LPLWHG

5HJXODWLRQ�1R������D
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5HJXODWLRQ�1R������

,QIRUPDWLRQ�5HTXLUHGSr��1R�� � � 'HVFULSWLRQ

  The directors of the investing company while presenting the 
special resolution for making investment in its associated 
company or associated undertaking shall submit an undertaking 
to the members of the investing company that they have carried 
out necessary due diligence for the proposed investment

The Directors of the Company submit that they have carried 
out necessary due diligence for the proposed investment in 
shares of Indus Motor Company Limited.
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,QIRUPDWLRQ�5HTXLUHGSr��1R�� � � 'HVFULSWLRQ

 1 Name of the associated company or associated undertaking 
along with criteria based on which the associated relationship 
is established

 2 Purpose, benefits and period of investment

 3 Maximum amount of investment

 4 Maximum price at which securities will be acquired
 5 Maximum number of securities to be acquired
 6 Number of securities and percentage thereof held before and 

after the proposed investment
 7 In case of investment in listed securities, average of the 

preceding twelve weekly average price of the security intended 
to be acquired 

 8 In case of investment in unlisted securities, fair market value 
of such securities determined in terms of regulation 6(1)

 9 Break-up value of securities intended to be acquired on the 
basis of the latest audited financial statements

 10 Earning per share of the associated company or associated 
undertaking for the last three years

 11 Sources of fund from which securities will be acquired
 12 Where the securities are intended to be acquired using 

borrowed funds:
� � L�� -XVWLILFDWLRQ�IRU�LQYHVWPHQW�WKURXJK�ERUURZLQJV��DQG
  ii) Detail of guarantees and assets pledged for obtaining such 

funds
 13 Salient features of the agreement(s), if any, entered into with 

its associated company or associated undertaking with regards 
to the proposed investment

 14 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, majority 
shareholders and their relatives, if any, in the associated 
company or associated undertaking or the transaction under 
consideration

 15 Any other important details necessary for the members to 
understand the transaction

 16 In case of investment in securities of a project of an associated 
company or associated undertaking that has not commenced 
operations, in addition to the information referred to above, the 
following further information, is required, namely:

  i) Description of the project and its history since 
FRQFHSWXDOLVDWLRQ�

� � LL�� 6WDUWLQJ�DQG�H[SHFWHG�GDWHV�RI�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�ZRUN�
  iii) Time by which such project shall become commercially 

RSHUDWLRQDO��DQG
  iv) Expected time by which the project shall start paying return 

on investment

Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited being associated on the basis 
of common directorship. Mr. Rafiq M. Habib, Chairman of the 
Company is also Chairman of Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited.

Long term investment to earn dividend income as well as 
prospective capital gains

Rs. 200 million

Not more than the price quoted on the stock exchange
Equivalent to the amount of investment

Nil

Rs. 16.36 per share

Not Applicable

June 30, 2022 : Rs. 10.37

2022: Rs. 2.08 per share 
2021: Rs. 3.86 per share
2020: Rs. (1.36) per share 
Own source

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

No Director or Chief Executive has any interest in the proposed 
investment, except in their individual capacities as Directors/ Chief 
Executive and/ or as shareholders of the Company

None

Not Applicable

6KDEELU�7LOHV�	�&HUDPLFV��/LPLWHG

5HJXODWLRQ�1R������D
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5HJXODWLRQ�1R������

,QIRUPDWLRQ�5HTXLUHGSr��1R�� � � 'HVFULSWLRQ

  The directors of the investing company while presenting the 
special resolution for making investment in its associated 
company or associated undertaking shall submit an undertaking 
to the members of the investing company that they have carried 
out necessary due diligence for the proposed investment

The Directors of the Company submit that they have carried 
out necessary due diligence for the proposed investment in 
shares of Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited.
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,QIRUPDWLRQ�5HTXLUHGSr��1R�� � � 'HVFULSWLRQ

 1 Name of the associated company or associated undertaking 
along with criteria based on which the associated relationship 
is established

 2 Purpose, benefits and period of investment

 3 Maximum amount of investment

 4 Maximum price at which securities will be acquired
 5 Maximum number of securities to be acquired
 6 Number of securities and percentage thereof held before and 

after the proposed investment
 7 In case of investment in listed securities, average of the 

preceding twelve weekly average price of the security intended 
to be acquired 

 8 In case of investment in unlisted securities, fair market value 
of such securities determined in terms of regulation 6(1)

 9 Break-up value of securities intended to be acquired on the 
basis of the latest audited financial statements

 10 Earning per share of the associated company or associated 
undertaking for the last three years

 11 Sources of fund from which securities will be acquired
 12 Where the securities are intended to be acquired using 

borrowed funds:
� � L�� -XVWLILFDWLRQ�IRU�LQYHVWPHQW�WKURXJK�ERUURZLQJV��DQG
  ii) Detail of guarantees and assets pledged for obtaining such 

funds
 13 Salient features of the agreement(s), if any, entered into with 

its associated company or associated undertaking with regards 
to the proposed investment

 14 Direct or indirect interest of directors, sponsors, majority 
shareholders and their relatives, if any, in the associated 
company or associated undertaking or the transaction under 
consideration

 15 Any other important details necessary for the members to 
understand the transaction

 16 In case of investment in securities of a project of an associated 
company or associated undertaking that has not commenced 
operations, in addition to the information referred to above, the 
following further information, is required, namely:

  i) Description of the project and its history since 
FRQFHSWXDOLVDWLRQ�

� � LL�� 6WDUWLQJ�DQG�H[SHFWHG�GDWHV�RI�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�ZRUN�
  iii) Time by which such project shall become commercially 

RSHUDWLRQDO��DQG
  iv) Expected time by which the project shall start paying return 

on investment

Thal Limited being associated on the basis of common directorship. 
Mr. Rafiq M. Habib, Chairman of the Company is also Chairman 
of Thal Limited.

Long term investment to earn dividend income as well as 
prospective capital gains

Rs. 200 million

Not more than the price quoted on the stock exchange
Equivalent to the amount of investment

Nil

Rs. 264 per share

Not Applicable

December 31, 2022 : Rs. 336.05 per share

2022: Rs. 52.54 per share 
2021: Rs. 42.97 per share
2020: Rs. 23.04 per share 
Own source

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

No Director or Chief Executive has any interest in the proposed 
investment, except in their individual capacities as Directors/ Chief 
Executive and/ or as shareholders of the Company

None

Not Applicable

7KDO��/LPLWHG

5HJXODWLRQ�1R������D
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,QIRUPDWLRQ�5HTXLUHGSr��1R�� � � 'HVFULSWLRQ

  Information to be disclosed to the members:-

 1 If the associate  Company  or associated  undertaking  in which 
the investment is being made or any of its sponsors or directors 
is also a member  of the investing  company,  the information 
about interest of the associated company or associated 
undertaking  and its sponsors  and directors  in the investing 
company  shall be disclosed  in the notice of general  meeting 
FDOOHG�IRU�VHHNLQJ�PHPEHUV·�DSSURYDO�SXUVXDQW�WR�VHFWLRQ�����
of the Ordinance

 2 In case any decision to make investment under the authority 
of a resolution passed pursuant to provisions of section 208 of 
the Ordinance  is not implemented  either  fully or partially  till 
the holding of subsequent  general meeting(s),  the status of 
the decision must be explained to the members through a 
statement having the following details namely:

 a) total investment approved:

 b) amount of investment made to date:

 c) reasons for not having made complete investment so far where 
resolution required it to be implemented  in specified time:

 
 d) material change in financial statements of associated company 

or associated undertaking  since date of the resolution passed 
for approval of investment in such company

Bank AL Habib Limited being the associated company on the basis 
of common directorship of Mr. Abbas D. Habib and Mr. Qumail R. 
Habib Director of the Company are also Chairman and Director 
of Bank AL Habib Limited

Rs. 250 million approved by the shareholders at Annual General
Meeting held on April 28, 2022

Rs. 50 million

Remaining amount may be invested on availability of Term 
Finance Certificates at reasonable price within the period 
specified in the earlier resolution

Various

Status of approvals for investments in associated companies

%DQN�$/�+DELE�/LPLWHG
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I/We___________________________________________________of ___________________________

being a member(s) of Habib Insurance Company Limited and holding_____________________________

ordinary shares, as per Register Folio No./CDC Account and Participant's I.D. No.___________________

do hereby appoint _________________________________ Folio No./CDC Account and Participant's I.D. 

No. ___________________of____________________________________________________________

or failing him/her __________________________________ Folio No./CDC Account and Participant's I.D.

No. ___________________of____________________________________________________________

another member of the Habib Insurance Company Limited as my/our proxy to vote for me/us and on my/our behalf 
at the Eightieth Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Monday, May 29, 2023 and at any adjournment 
thereof.

As witness my/our hand this__________________day of_________________2023.

(The signature of the shareholder should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company 
or as per CNIC/ Passport in case the share(s) is/ are registered in CDC account).

A member entitled to attend the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote 
instead of him/ her. No person shall act as proxy (except for a corporation) unless he/ she is entitled to be 
present and vote in his/ her own right. 
CDC account holder or sub-account holder appointing a proxy should furnish attested copies of his/ her 
RZQ�DV�ZHOO� DV� WKH�SUR[\·V�&1,&��3DVVSRUW�ZLWK� WKH�SUR[\� IRUP��7KH�SUR[\�VKDOO� DOVR�SURGXFH�KLV�� KHU�
original CNIC/ Passport at the time of the meeting. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors 
resolution/ power of attorney with specimen signature shall be submitted along with proxy form. 
The instrument appointing a proxy should be signed by the member or by his/ her attorney duly authorised 
in writing. If the member is a corporation, its common seal (if any) should be affixed to the instrument. 
The proxy forms, together with the power of attorney (if any), under which it is signed or a notarially certified 
copy thereof, shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours before the 
time of the meeting.

Witnesses:
1. Signature  _____________________ 2. Signature               _____________________ 
    Name  _____________________     Name          _____________________
    Address  _____________________     Address          _____________________
    CNIC/Passport No. _____________________     CNIC/Passport No._____________________

REVENUE
STAMP
RS. 5

SIGNATURE OF MEMBER (S)






